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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2022 2021

£m £m

Core revenue 386.8 353.2
Licensingevenue 28.0 16.3
Revenue 414.8 369.5
Revenue at constant currency 4186 369.5
Core operating profit 131.7 136.7
Licensingperating profit 254 15.0
Operating profit 157.1 151.7
Operating profit at constant currency 161.5 151.7
Profit befae taxation 156.5 150.9
Net increase in castpre-dividends paid 79.3 93.4
Earnings per share 391.3p 372.7p
Dividends per share declared in theriod 235p 235p
Dividends per share paid in tiperiod 285p 185p

Seethe glossary on page 84 for details on téernative performance measureARPMg used by the Group. Where appropriate, a reconciliation betwes
an APM andts closest statutory equivalent is praed.
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Our purpose remains unchanged. We design, make and sell the best fantasy miniatures in the world, to engegrarmir customers,

and to sell our products globally at a profdur decisions are focused on letegm success, not shoterm gains* f or ever’ i s an
word to us. We know that to achieve our ambition to be around forever, running the coyrpan we love, we have to have a responsible

and principled approach in our dealings with all of our stakeholdeus colleagues, customers, shareholders, suppliers, local

neighbourhoods and the world in which we live.

This year we have built uponetgood progress we made in previous years, spending more board time focused on ensuring effective
engagement with and consideration of all of these key stakeholders. As a relatively new boareveehave been working together on
establishing our positionn things like key ESG and corporate governance principles and how these should apply to Games Workshop.
From these agreed positions, we are building an action plan which will include deliverable and measurable prioritiedeAluagee are
working wth the executive to future proof the busines®mefocus area®f our work this year include:

)

1 Ourcustomerswe wer e delighted to support the einprovecustomer s propos
experience onlineThe progress on improvgnour warehouse facilities should improve shipping times back to more normal
levels;

1  The environment our work this year on gap analysis and scenario planning in readiness for TCFD reporting, supported by the
recruitment of dedicated resource, positions well; tohelp usset achievable sciendeased targets so that we can play our part
in tacklingthe challenge otlimate change;

1 Our suppliers our ongoing work on ethical sourcing and supply policies have ensured that we are promoting responsible
marufacture throughout our supply chain alongside our commitment to ensuring modern slavery has no place within any of our
operations;

1  Our people our executives have updated our global communication forum into quarterly department level meetings, which all
of our nonexecutive directors are encouraged to attend by rotation. John Brewis has been appointed as-#weenative
director responsible for developing a plan for effective board and employee engagement

There are many big topics for us to dissas a board and our work is ongoing. As we set out in some detail later in this annual report, we
strive to ensure that our lonterm approach is evident across all aspects of our business. We believe we have made great progress again
this year and we wlicontinue to update you on this fature annual reporsand at our AGM.

Il " m delighted that once agai n we aperiedended?9 Way POR2y witboretewehua exceeding r e S
£386 million and profit before tax of £6%nillion. This performance is even more impressive because it has been delgaiedta
backdrop of the following ongoing global challenges:

1 global inflationary pressures;
1 the uncertainty arising from the current war in Ukraine; and
1 the well pullicised supply chain issues that internationalbusinessesire facing.

These results continue to be a true testament to the leadership of our executive directors, to the strength of our opktadéionand to
the resilience of our business model.

Overall, we invested@&million in capital projects to support our growing business. We declared 235 pence per share in dividends totalling
£77 million- in line with the prior year. We were delighted to distribute £10 million in cash as group prafi,stqually to all our staff to
recognise their significant role in delivering these results. We also paid some discretionary bonuses (like we do mostgeagsjtion

of this performance. These payments were made entirely out of surplus cash gethevée continue to have no borrowings and to retain
sufficient cash both to invest in future growth andhelp protect the business against unforeseen risks and headwinds.

Our work on refreshing the composition of the board of the Company has coutithieyear. Finding great people has always been one of
the biggest risks and challenges. We take our time to ensure that we run a process free from any bias and we hold otor neselve
compromise our high standards of cultural fit when assessingmiial candidates. After an extensive search process starting in November
2021 and concluding in May 2022, we were delightediedcomeRandal Cassao the boardfrom 1 July 2022as an independent nen
executive director and the chair of our audit andkremmittee. Randal brings a wealth of experience of working as an audit partner with a
wide range of Plcs and large private companies over his 30 year career at PwC, where he was most recently hewhafesient in

the audit practicor the Northernregion in the UK.

Our work is not yet done. We continue to look forward and build our board for the futMeecare currentlyrecruiting foran additional
non-executive directorl am very aware that in November this year | will have served nine geatse board at Games Workshop. |
recognise personally the importance of observing good corporate governance. To this end, | have communicated to thetboard tha
following this nexnon-executiveappointment and an appropriate period of induction four new board members, | intend to ask the
nomination committee to commence a search for my successor asariido not anticipate standinépr re-election at the 2023 AGM
am very hopeful that my successor will come from within the existing pool ofrecutive directorsl expect that all options will be
considered. As is appropriate, | will not lead this recruitment process for the nomination committee, but | will lend suppgrivay |
can. As previously, | will commit to ensuring we always hawebity team of norexecutives to support our high performing executive
directors. Ensuring we surround ourselves with those who are moral, ethical and quality ohsesdeulies to be a key priority.
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In the coming year, we plan to continue to focus mwhwe engage with our key stakeholders particularly around what we can credibly
commit to in orderto play our part for the environment; by investing further to continue to create a positive and inclusive workplace for

our current and future staff; by proating responsible manufacturing and supply chains; and by driving continuous improvement in our
governance by clarifying our principles, confirming our position and establishing what this looks like for us as atedflicslisess

operating on a globatage. We will also continue to invest to put our rich intellectual property in front of new audiences and to explore
new product types designed to engage those beyond the tabletop market, encouraging them to get involved in the fantadtisalfwo
Warhammer. We are making progress on our major investments and we will continue to focus on delivering our capital operational and
technology projects on time and within budget, which will future proof our great business. All of these plans will costmbtieyjr

value will only truly be known in future years, but we believe that by investing in these strong foundations we will camtielieer on

our commitment of ‘forever’ which we are sure is truly in the

Last yar, we were disappointed not to host our AGM on site and to have to discourage your attendance in person. This year, we are
delighted towelcomeback our shareholders to our HQ in Nottingham.

Finally, in concluding, | would like to extend my sinceemks:

9  Firstly, to our executive directors and the entire Games Workshop global team. The &formance and spirit has been
second to none in ongoing challenging times.

1  Secondly, to our loyal customers for continuing to engage in the Warhamméytinlsuch a positive way. We will do our best to
keep supporting and delighting you.

1 Thirdly, to our shareholders for your ongoing support.

With kind regards

9f I AYS hQs52yyStt
Non-executive chair
25 July 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy andobjectives
Games Workshop is committed te continuous development of our IP anthking the Warhammer hobby and our business ever better.

Our ambitions remain clear: to make the best fantasy miniatures in the world, to engage and inspire our cuysamihéossell our
products globally at a profit. We intend to do this forever. Our decisions are focused ctelomguccess, not shoterm gains.

Let me go through our strategy pay-part:

The first element is that we make high quality miniature® Widerstand that what we make may not appeal to everyone, so to recruit
and retain customers we are absolutely focused on making our models the best in the world. In order to continue to deveatfiod to
deliver a decent return to our owners, we kelr miniatures for a price that we believe represents the investment in their quality.

The second element is that we make fantasy miniatures based in our endless, imaginary worlds. This gives us contrghagerytend
styles we use, and ownershi the intellectual property(‘IP). Aside from our core business, we are constantly looking to grow our
licensing income from opportunities to use our IP in other markets.

The third element is that we are customer focused. We aim to communicate inean &m way. Whoever and wherever our customers
are, and in whichever way they want to engage with Warhammer, we will do our utmost to support them.

The fourth element is the global nature of our business. Our customers can be found anywhere, and therseslt all over the world.

They'  re a passionate bunch with an interest in sci ersboekldversct i on
and much more. And while no twaustomersengage with Warhammer in exactly thesameay , t hey’  re all deeply
characters and settings of our IP.

To reach them, we have two key tools: our retail chain and our digital content. In retail, we showcase the Warhammer taifgr an
fantastic customer experience. Our dgibffering has never been richer. Througarhammercommunity.com and social media we reach
thousands of people every day, showing them the very best aspects of the Warhammer hobby and inviting them to join our global
community of enthusiastic fans.

Ourretail channel is supported by our own online store (it has the full range of our products) and our independent stodketiend
accounts across the world. These independent accounts do a great job supporting our customers in parts of the world witeee we
have not yet opened one of our stores or where it is not commercially viable for us to have one. Guartorggal is to have all three
channels (retail, trade and online) growing in harmony. We will always have more independent accounts than stares. Our strategy
is to grow our business through geographic spread, growing all of the three complementary channels.

The fifth element is being focused on cash. By delivering a good cash return every year we can continue to innovateyrsilopligbt
our loyal existing customers and new customers with great products. To be around forever we also need to invest in ftetimloapital
and shortterm maintenance projects every year, pay our staff what they have earned for the value they ettt deliver surplus
cash to our shareholders. Our dedication and focus should ensure we deliver on time and within our agreed cash limits.

We measure our longerm success by seeking a high return on investment. In the short term, we measure c@sssanmur ability to

grow sales whilst maintaining our core operating profit margin at current levels. The way we go about implementing &gy &riat

recruit the best staff we can. We look for those with the appropriate attitude and behaviour a gieequires and for those who are

aligned with our principles angtho arequality obsessedit is also important that everyone we employ has a real desire to learn the skills
needed to do their job and has aadylnmomentharét Tio supmbrethemons afferdalsof auth a n g €
staff both personal development and skills training.

We continue to believe there are great opportunities for our business to grow, particularly in North America and Asttertheitzg on a
longer timeframe.

Our brands
We have originated and are in control of a number of strong, globally recognised brands with their own identities, assauiatiogos.

Our key consumer facing brand is ‘“Warhammer'’

We design, make and sell products undemenber of brands and subrands, which denote setting, tone and product type, the key ones
being:

1  Warhammer: Age of Sigmaour unique fantasy setting
1  Warhammer 40,000 our most popular and recognisable brand is a space fantasy setting
1 HorusHeresyan of f shoot of War hammer 40, 000, the Horus Heresy br

We believe our IP to be among the best in the world.
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Strategy and objectives continued

Our brandscontinued

The Warhammer settings are incrediblyc h and evocative backdrops. They’'re popul ate
characters and comprise thousands of exciting narratives. We are committed to making it easier than ever for peopledn disgage

with and immerse themselves our IP. Aided by a small, senior team we have already begun to find new partners, and new ways to help

us bring the worlds of Warhammer to I|ife |Iike neverrbefwebel | Tc
present the very bst aspects of our rich IP, delighting audiences while always ensuring we do no harm to our core miniatures business.

Business model and structure

We design, manufacture, distribute and sell our fantasy miniatures and related products. These arerfani@syes from our own
Warhammer 40,000 and Warhammer: Age of Sigmar universes. We are an international business centrally run from our H@hianNottin
with 78%of our sales coming from outside the UK. We added a small dedicated factory, just fomgedtt.operationally went live in May
and this, together with our two main factories, two warehouse facilities, design studios and back office support funetialhbased in or
near Nottingham.

Design

We design all of our products at our HQ in Nottiagh. Employin@84people, the design studio creates all the IP and all the associated
miniatures, artwork, games and publications that we sell. Annually, these specialist staff produce hundreds of newlisstitpt&ris,

rules, stories etc. enablingsuo deliver new products everyeek and continue to keep our customers engaged and excited. In 2021/22 we
invested A6.7million in the studio (including software costs) with a furth&Zmillion spenton tooling for new plastic miniatures. We

are commited to investing in these areas at an appropriate level every year.

All of our plastic miniatures are branded as Citadel Miniatures, a mark with an unparalleled reputation for quality. ésdmthta style
and level of detail that we apply to both oawn worlds (Warhammer 40,000, Warhammer: Age of Sigmar, etc.) and those of others, e.g.
Lord of the Rings.

Our resin miniatures, designed for more experienced customers, are branded as Forge World and are less widely avatlaitepihatic
countemparts.

Many customers love personalising their miniatures and our Citadel Colour paint range, brushes and accompanying pamiagesyst
designed to help everyone from the complete beginner to the most experienced painters in the world achieve gritat Irethe pursuit
of ever better, we continually develop new types of paint and ways of using them. The-resufpaints are used the world over. And for
painting more than just our miniatures!

When not interacting with our miniatures, many custors@njoy reading stories set in our rich and immersive worlds. Under our Black
Library imprint we publishewtitles everyyear, from short stories and audio dramas through to full length novels and audio books. These
we make available in physical bookstsr third party digital platforms and through our own retail and other specialist stores.

Manufacture
We are proud to manufacture our product in Nottinghan's Wwhere we started and where we intend to stay.

Logistics

Our product is distributed from ounain warehouse at our HQ or our new rented warehouse facility approximately 25 minutes away.
These facilities supply our two hubs; one in Memphis, Tennessee and one in Sydney, Australia. Between these fouwviailgiable to
directly supply our idependent retailers, our own retail stores and fulfil our online orders.

Sell
Our core revenue igeneratedv i a t hree channel s, our own stores ‘Retail ', thir
“Online’ . We al gpartnere We suppirtdhese channdlsiard aatiwstiesrvia our digital and marketing team.

Retail- our stores provide the focus for the Warhammer hobby in their geographical areas. Our stores only stock Games Workshop
product. They are where we probablycreit the majority of our new customers. To do so, the stores'doffier the full range of our

product, only starter sets, new release products and the appropriate extended range. périoe end, we had 518 of our own retail

stores in 23 countries. Owtores contributed 3% of the yeds sales. We have 400 single staff stores: small sites, each one operated by
only one store manager. We also have 118 rathiff stores, which, like our single staff stores, are constantly reviewed to ensure they
remainprofitable. If not, they will probably be converted to single staff stores.

Trade- we sell to third party retailers under closely controlled terms and conditions. Independent retailers are an integralgoetrt of
business model helping us to sell our guots around the world and importantly in areas where we 'tihave our own stores. Games
Workshop strives to support those outlets which help to build the Warhammer hobby community in their local areas. Thebuliates

to independent retailers are ade via our telesales teams based in Memphis and Nottingham. We also have small telesales teams in
Sydney, Tokyo, Shanghai, Singapore, Hong Kong and Kuala Lumpur. In 2021/22 we had 6,200 independent retailers (2022: 5,400) i
countries. We strive to daler excellent service, operating in 23 languages covering all time zones. 55%cofeoregvenuecame from

sales to independent retailers in theeriod reported. These sales are from their physical stores as well as their own online web stores.
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STRATEGIREPORT continued

Business model and structure continued

Sell continued

Online- sales via our own web stores accounted 28f0of total core revenuen 2021/22. All of our retail stores also have a web store
terminal that allows our customers to accahs full range from within the store. Our web stores are run centrally from our HQ.

Licensing we grant licences to a number of carefully chosen partners. This allows us to leverage our IP to broaden the presennd and bra
exposure of Warhammer aroundehworld, often entering new markets such as board games, apparel or accessories and media and
entertainment. It also allows us to generate additional income. Currently, the majority of this income is generated lgaméscsales in

North America, the UKnd Continental Europe.

Marketing- keeps us customer focused. This team acts as the bridge between our other business areas, ensuring we have a joined up
approach between product (design to manufacture) and sales. Marketing spends a lot of time listeshidgveloping a two way dialogue
with our customers to make sure we keep their needs at the forefront, championing the Warhammer hobby around the glolpectind in
our content and communications with a real sense of passion and fun.

Structure

We contol the business centrally from our HQ in Nottingham; it is where the majority of people with experience and knowledgengf run
our business work. | have put in place a flat structure: the people with senior responsibility that make all of the gsleeigort

directly to me. My structure is now split into two teams: a core business team doensingousiness team.

The core business is split into five parts: product design and IP creation, manufacturing and supply chain, sales, madkepargtions
and supportLlicensings now split into two main areas: media and video games. | also have an executive assistant, who supports me, and
runs a team that supports the day to day running of the teams above.

We have a global IP and product desigmector who is responsible for our design studios (miniatures, books and box games, specialist
systems, Warhammer hobby product and our publishing businBtack Library)They work very closely with our new creative director
who manages our licensingam. Together, hey ensure any content that is produced, whether physical or virtual, truly represents.our IP

The responsibility for our retail chain is split between two retail territory heads, one for North America and Asia aodtbeedst of the
world. Our trade sales are the responsibility of a single head of trade sales. Our online store (our biggest store) isesparikibility of
our rest of the world retail manager, who also manages our biggest physical\&tareammer World.

These saleshannels are supported by a merchandising team, managed by the global manufacturing and supply chain director, and by the
marketing team that sits under the group marketing manager. The global manufacturing and supply chain director also ranages t
factories and our four main warehouse facilities in Nottingham, Memphis and Sydney.

Our operations and support structure includes a chief financial officer for Games Workshop who is responsible for adgplegal &hd
compliance and IT.

Key performanceridicators

The board and management team use a number of key performance indicators to provide a consistent method of analysingperforma
in addition to allowing the board to benchmark performance against our forecast. The key performance indichsexs lyithe board can
be split into key financial performance indicators and key-financial performance indicators.

Our key financial performance indicators are:
Monthly and year to date core business sales growth by channel
This measures the core bimess sales growth achieved in each of our core channels on a monthly and year to date basis: see page 13.

Monthly and year to date core gross margin
This measures the core gross margin achieved on core sales after taking account of the direct aegpseamation of manufacturing
equipment and shipping our product to customers/stores on a monthly and year to date basis: see page 14.

Year to date core operating profit percentage
The ratio of core operating profit againsbrerevenue, as a percentagsee page 4. This is considered to be a measure which reflects
sales under our direct control.

Monthly and year to date coreperatingprofit
This measures gross profit less operating expenses for the core business on a monthly and year to date paget4€Ehis is
considered to be a measure which reflects sales under our direct control.

Year to datdicensingrevenue
This measurekcensingrevenue earned from licensing: see pdd This is a measure which reflects revenue which is not under our
control.
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Key performance indicators continued

Our key noffinancial performance indicators are:
Number of own stores by territory
This measures the number of our own stores which is an indicator of our global reach: sedpage 1

Number of ordering stod&t accounts by territory
This measures the number of trade outlets that have ordered from us in the last six months. It is an indicator of oveatbbahd the
health of our trade account base: see ‘Trade’ paragraph on pag

Customer engagement
We measure this through our owned content chaniéhrhammercommunity.com and reach delivered through our social platforms: see
page 11.

Shareholder value
We believe shareholder value is created, primarily, by not destroying it. We have no intention tceautty@r companies, nor to dispose
of any of those we own.

We return our surplus cash to our owners and try to 'dowosrot hi nofe
working capital requirement has been set aside alongsiimsi n t h s ’'of futuceitak fayments before deciding how much cash is truly
surplus for the purpose of declaring dividends.

Graph of shareholder value

Shareholder value for this graph is calculated as the price of our shapesiad end plus the dividnd per share declared in thgeriod.
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Review of the year
Another record year for Games Workshaghe business and the Warhammer hobby are in great shape. Another amazing team effort
thank you all!

Our annual report seems to get longer and longer arydjob more and more bureaucratfthave duties and obligations that may seem
onerous and tiresomethey are not) however, one thing remains constanve love Warhammer, and we continue to deliver on our
strategy: to make the best miniatures in the s Thanks again to our design to manufacture teams; the quality and product range have
again been incredible, sales of our miniatures have grown for the seventh year in a row.

More Warhammer. More Often core business

This year has been exceptionak not only beat the record revenue of a Warhammer 40k launch year, we did it with some ongoing
operational growing pains (thankfully reducing) and the additional cost pressures from Covid, Brexit and the war in AKkeaine.
international business, someéwere in our Group we are still feeling the emotional and financial pain of theeehope the horrendous
war in Ukraine ends soon. The light at the end of the tunnel was that as the year evolved, the impact from Covid sigreficeneit!.

We finishedthe year making up for what seems like some lost time on face to face collaboration, staff development, improving our
processes and some team fun. We are still working on improving general morale @opie levels in some countries: we will be trying
newways to improve our communication and ongoing support at a local and global level in the new year. | got caught watttiimg a li
Australia and Asia, sorry to our staff and customers. We had to reduce our servicallevétssome of the lingering edcts of Covid and
international shipping challenges di dn't do a great job managing expectations.
improving and we wait to respond to the ever changing announcements coming out of China. We hiamepre regular Q&A sessions

with our staffglobally.

7 Games Workshop Group PLC



STRATEGIC REPORT continued

More Warhammer. More Often core business continued

Morale is good but we are checking | evels mor e opebpenThereias ar e n
been lots of change. We put our staff at the heart of everything we do well, so to help monitor morale in a mostly poatatidyide try

to ensure that our business unitsaays feel fully supported and are a fun place to work. Wedsilinore to help foster a workplace that

consists of people with our shared values and beliefs and ensure that everyone recognises that compassion towards each other
appreciation of individual efforts in a team help us deliver consistent results. Afamibn diversity and equality: Games Workshop and

the Warhammer hobby are for everyone.

As mentioned above, it has beerchallenging yeain parts they all are these day¥Ve are pragmatically getting used to this new normal
andremainfocusedondeler i ng the day job. Whether that’'s full time at our
fantastic year.

Most external factors affecting Games Workshop are not new. My best guess is losing Russia sales for a fuldyedltigsn ddst in net
revenue Additional freight and carriage costs i2.d% of sales.

Major highlight:
Our relentless focus on producing the highest quality miniatures continues to deliver results. That combined with a dostasedr
approach helped us sefiore miniatures than any year before.

Low point:

Stuff not in our controt Brexit has addedZ4 million of additional supply chain costs, we have an outstandirignfillion VAT receivable
(a timing difference as we now p&ATon entry to Europe andubmit a reclaim) with the French tax authorities and aretrying to
mitigate staff recruitment gaps especially those with language skills in the UK based European trade team. We look fthmes&netxit
benefits promised.

The results: we have againldered a consistent financial performance built on investing in the things that drive net cash generation. This
is driven by making the best miniatures in the world supported by strict cost control and working capital managementgensirave

sufficient cash to purchase the resources we need to give us the best chance of delivering our long term areiatgwéls and to pay a

fair return to our shareholders and pay to our staff. We continue to pay our taxes and suppliers on time and we thanttecacdoants

for paying us on time too. We cont i nu eanda carefulknettofool oueselvestisak s and
forecasting too far out in time brings any certainty.

In line with our Group profit share scheme, we havépa total £9.9million (2021:£2.6 million profit share plus1®.6 million
discretionary paymentto staff to further reward their exceptional performance in helping to increase our profitability in the period
reported. Total dividends declared in teriod were £77 million, 235 pence per share (2021: £77 million, 235 pence per share).

Some more deti

In the year we have increased our design, factory and warehouse capa@tglightly late butis  al ways better to go
ready ratherthan not. As a team we took the easy decision to pause our ERP project in January 2022 (we were not spending money wisely)
while we delivered the final parts of the projects that add real value: our Memphis warehouse project, Wwhiglighted to reporhas

now gone live, and also phasae of our online webstore project started well and is on track to be completed later this year. That should
ensure we are on a stable online platform. Wgctongdinginthest art t he
background for some time. | may have been more than a little optimistic to think otherwise. Our IT and support teamsgaeegiledat job
keeping things business as wusual and haverefreshdd amul neadg to gotagain tatere a k  f
this year. Our new global head of IT wil' m , Ise @ breath of fresh air.

We continue to deliver through a multhannel appoach- our retail and trade channels were in growth again in pleeiod reported. Mog
significant countries were in gwth - with only Australia, China and Russia falling short.

Our online store broadly maintained the step change from £50 million in 2019/20 to £90 million delivered in 2020/Zb amitién in
2021/22 and with retail ad trade in double digit growth, | see that as a success (a reminder our online store does not offer a discount off
the RRP, most trade accounts do).

Our retail stores continue to recover sales levels back teGueid closure levels at different ratespre importantly for us92% of our
own stores are profable - proving again our low cost model is fairly robust.

Our trade accounts have supported us well during the year. We are delighted we have added more outlets in the mosttsignifitaas

we trade in and continue to grow our export countries. We again thank them for their ongoing support and patience when euy deliv
service levels fell short. Our service levels are now very close to being back to normal levels.

8 Games Workshop Group PLC



More Warhammer. More Ofén ¢ core business continued

As a team we care passionately about people and the world around us. Our people team, with the support from staff abresnehs,
have been working on improving our induction programmes, staff development and checkirgcouitment processes are free from any
bias. We are also making good progress on ESG topics. | can see we are doing evefaoaseottopics like diversity and inclusion
delivering on our legal requiremenésd ensuring our suppliers meet industnhial supply standards as well as our commitments on
health and safety.

We are also committed to supporting best pti@e - there are lots of things to evaluate and the list grows every year. The key areas on our
agenda: we are documentinganew sciefica s ed t ar get approach to do what ' sl1b5@ndour coc
looking at how we can reduce waste. | promise to report progress on those in our normal open and honest way. It will ¢éatkaadon

these to have a significaimpact, however, we are absolutely committed to making progress. During the period we have started to recycle
plasic-our granul ator can take in finished goods and turntthem ba
direction.

Design

I t ' s ndihergyreat year for IP development and miniature designan&s\Workshop Our extended team, up 21 in the year to 284,
have mostly migrated back to the HQ. We will continue to strengthen our IP and miniatures creation teameggbeunorld for talent. It
will be several years before these additional investments deliver their full return, but they are fundamental to our stfeeeguring we
deliver the best miniatures and IP in the world, forever. Over the last few yearsaveelieen working towards offering a full experience of
Warhammer to our key export territories: official translations and marketing support. We have made some great progresaitite aw
chance to exploit these fullpur inrhouse Chinese translation teasinow fully operational and delivering under very challenging
lockdown conditionsOur Russian translation teanbased in the UKs operational and working hard pending a wider decision about our
future in Russigalthough currently all trading is susmed

After a great launch in July 2021, subsequent Warhammer: Age of Sigmar releases were affected by shipping delays mestrsngwe |
momentum. That said, Age of Sigmar remains in good shape and we have an exciting roadmap of releases going forward

Warhammer 40,000 continues to perform. Our new style launch boxes are proving very popular with customers who want to buy
everything new in a single purchase. The UK release ofbyud mper.
but sold and distributed by a licensing partner, was followed by successful launches in Spain, Germany and, a fitet Id6u#, is

proving another route into our hobby for both new and lapsed hobbyists.

The financiaperiod closed with the releasef Necromunda: Ash Wastesdding more background and fantastic new models to one of our
lesser known, but no lessch, IPs.

Painting is a hugely important part of our hobby for the majority of our customers and a key focus for us. Covid lockdesdusipaint
development plans but next year will mark a step change in the paedichwe willdevelopthe range.

Our monthly magazine ‘' White Dwarf’ is again gr o800DIncgtionsmthe @ka d er s
alone.

After a record performance last yealack Library, our novel publishing division, struggled in the face of global supply disruption with
many key new releases arriving later than planrguaiderlying sales continue to grow, especially in the digipalce, with sales of
electronic and audio books exceeding those of physical for the first time ever.

The strategy of keeping customers engaged by broadening and deepening our offer sees us continue to invest in IP arith désdio w
payroll costsncreasing by £1.1 million to £10.0 million; as a percentage of core revenue, they have fallen by 0.5% Ti8.8%ditional
investment will allow us to broaden our miniatures range and provide additional intellectual property for exploitationhihootigcensing
team.

Manufacturing
Our manufacturing team has for the seventh year in a row delivered record outhay continue to work on a 24/5 shift patteamd we
are keeping our overtime to a minimum and leaving weekdod®sur staff to enjoy.

Our manufacturing facilities and capabilities have continued to expand with the installation of more machinery in our UK faotdvles
2021/22 to be a year of record factory output. In total Factories 1 and 2 now operate 43 injection moulding machines (agt 4ear)

and these have enabled weekly volumes to regularly exceed record cycles per week. At the engeabtheve successfully opened a
third Nottingham factory dedicated to paint production (note: to help you understand the scale it is Tjf0@essus our main Factory 1 at
5,500 sqm). Consolidating all paint production into this new specialised facility not only opens the door to greatecgfiicidso releases
space within Factories 1 and 2 for future injection moulding growth.

CCC pradct safety registration for China continues in the background as our third party warehouse in Stsagbti reopen. We have

had to pragmatically pause, in line with local government restrictions, any efforggsawing our hobby communities in thisgien. We will
start as soon as we can.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

More Warhammer. More Ofterg core business continued

Manufacturing continued

The land we purchased in 2020 near our Factory 2, will beetléa get it ready for increasing space faaqgking, manufacturing, tooling or
in the short term, car parking space. In the meantime, we are pursuing options for additional space close to our maitloMQusata
begin the work on optimising our Factory 1 and Factory 2 space.

Production payroll @sts rose in the year in line with volume with costs increasing yrétlion to £12.0 million, increasing to 3.% of
corerevenue.

Warehousing
Another exciting year of investment at our main facilities. We have significantly increased our capéwtyear and by the end of
summer 2022we will have the best facilities Games Workshop has had, ever.

North America

The new systems and automation are fully operational. This brought immediate benefits enabling long standing order loalsklogs t
cleared.The investments we have made mean that the number of orders we can pick and dispatch each day has quadrupled. Customer
orders that previously might have taken up to two weeks to dispatch will now typically be shipped within 24 hours (naiéshppptng

times remaintwo to four days depending upon destination and carriér)t ° s wort h noting the new wareho
our legacylT systems, which continue to cause us daily operational processing challenges; thanks to our team rfessgolunnoticed

by our customersWe apologise for the poor customer service we offered for much of the year and are confident that with this milestone
project now deliveregdservice will be much improved going forward.

UK

The East Midlands Gateway (EMiBstribution facility has been improving month on month since opening in July 2020. It continues to
support our manufacturing process with storing components and distributing our major new releases. We are planningyfor a full
operational go live in sumer 2022. It will mirror the technology and process we have been using successfully for six months at Memphis.

In a period of increasing scarcity and rising costs of sieom warehousing across the UK, the EMG facility has reduced our reliance on
third party storageCurrently we havd.3%(2020/21 16%)of physical inventorgffsite. Working closely with our haulage partner, our
original Eurohub facility in Nottingham has been able to offer a markedly improved service to European customers shagpireg-on
workshop.comWork to reconfigure and repurpose the original Eurohub facility to become our primary component facility is ongoing.

Australia

Global sea freight has remained highly disrupted and this has had a direct impact upon product availabiléyaniniature launches

with 8% of our new releases delayed. There has been a slow and gradual improvement in availability and we expect this tréndeo cont
We look forward to our facility based in Sydney getting back to its normal rhythm in 2022/23.

Total warehousing costs have increased #y#nillion to £20.3million, the majority of the increase beirsgaff costs as a percentage of
core sales they have increased fror8%.t05.2%.

Services
We continue to invest in the core support functioofsthe business.

During 2021/22 we have transitioned our staff to new ways of working with a mix of hybrid or office based working depentag o
requirements of each job. We have improved the tools available to managers to manage their teams effbgtivgbroving trainingfrom
IT security through to mental wellbeingsing our learning management system. We have expanded our health, safety and wellbeing
function to9 people, to ensure we look after everyone who works at Games Workshop in the beggtossible.

Our IT team successfully transitioned our{@evid office based staff back to office based or hybrid working during the year. They have
also worked alongside other business areas to help deliver the Memphis and EMG warehouse projeciassathavalbgrade to the
webstore.

As we discussed last year, we have continued our focus on ESG areas by appointing a senior manager to help bringad afookir g
together and help move it forward.

Customer focused
Our goal remains to reach, engaared inspire Warhammer fans everywhere.

As lockdown eased, we returned to hosting physical location events. This return to getting together and celebrating aVénegnmer
allowed us to make good on our promise to continue to support event orgaraseoss the wider Warhammer community and enable
thousands of new people to experience Warhammer for the first time. In the year, we engaged with around a thousand independen
events helping them grow their local Warhammer community and giving our cotentess more opportunities to enjoy their
Warhammer collections.
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More Warhammer. More Ofterg core business continued
Customer focused continued
We also attended many of the largest tabletop events in the world, interacting with tens of thousands of frgoplgh introductory

Warhammer activities such as paimd-take and demo games, and at these, we had some additional fun launching an all new location

experience Kill Team Live. This saw thousands of players take part in a specially created gametaf lasing custom blasters imitating
those from he 415t millennium. Finally, the Golden Demon returned. This, our woeldowned painting competition which celebrates the
modelling and painting aspect of Warhammer in all its glory. Not only was thfgsh&olden Demon since lockdown, but this was the
first time we’d held the competition in the US for over a

In the year we delivered more rich online content than ever before:
The Space Marine armoung vignette explored a seminal piece of our IP, our Kill Team trailer unveiled a range of new miniatures and
propelled a new edition of owVarhammer 40,008kirmish game to an exciting start, and the Horus Heresy trailer showcased the full

deca

spectacle of mss battle in the far future, announcing to our legion of fans that something special was coming this summer. These pieces of

animated content racked up c. 9 million views on our own channels alone, to say nothing of the millions of views gersmatesiee|
through reposting, watch alongs etc. We think it is safe to say that Warhammer content has never been viewed more thhisiyéas

Our goal is to give Warhammer fans a safe and welcoming online environment. We continue to focus our effontobndoown key
spaces:

Warhammer Community
Warhammercommunity.com remains the cornerstone of our online presence. Over the year, the team again pueoien thousand
pieces of content to engage, inform and inspire Warhammer fans globally. Trenease people reading about Warhammer than ever!

My Warhammer
Registrations continue to grow at pace and are up +140% on 2020/21.

Warhammer+
In the year we launched Warhammer+. It is only now approaching its first anniversary and so it is stikarlyetgvelopmentThe
exciting content delivered througiWarhammer+will remain an integral part of our digital offand how we share our IP

Email

Our email campaigns continue to bae of our most effective methods of communicatidrhe team has wodd hard to understand our
customers and develop the tools to ensure we’'re tal kireagedbyo
39%.

We continue to look for more ways to surprise and delight our loyal fans.

More Warhammer More Cften - licensingbusiness

Towards the end of the year, | appointed a new creative director, putting IP nous at the heart of our licensing opporfiMaitiesnmer 1P
is rich, vast and endl ess so as aoacesedboexpiodinget allpntaet jiseepresentatiant * s
continuesto berespectfully maintained.

Our strategy is to exploit the value of our IP beyond our core tabletop business, leveraging multiple categories andyiobeligtsWe
intend to ensure Wa h a mme r ’

Entertainment

It is our intent that any new partner/s will become the home of Warhammer on screen for many years toWwenaeknowledge that
giventhat they will needsufficienttime to invest and deliver the quality we believe our IP deservesedtey slice of our IRnd direct
access to the experts in our IP development teaithallow them to invest in Warhammer with the confidence that they have our full
supporton the interpretation of the IPWe will keep you updated with any significant progress.

Video games

During the yeapur licensing partnerkaunched six newames; four PC/console, one virtual reality and one mobile. We also saw revenue

from establishedyames that continued to perform well, many years after launch, through a mixture of added content and continued
marketing. Particular launches of note were the highly anticipated Total War: Warhammer 3, and Warhammer 40,00 Gabhao
Daemonhunters.

Eght new games were announced in the year including Space Marine 2, which has been the most consistently requested game since

first game came out in 2011. Fan response was overwhelmingly positive

New games launching in 2022/23 include major franch\d&rhammer 40,000: Darktide and Bloodbowl 3, plus four more still awaiting
release dates. In total there are 12 unreleased games in development and four new licences were signed in\itie sezargnised one
significant one in the income statement thisar at £.5million with Nexon note this is not all paid in cash at the time it is recognised.
The cash is paid throughout the lifetime of the licen
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Priorities for 2022/23

Core business

We have made some reasonable pregg with our key priorities. Each of these is designed to ensure we deliver our exciting operational
plan and continue to engage and inspire our loyal customers.

To summarise our current areas of operational focus are:

1  keeping our loyal hobbyists enged in their Warhammer hobby,

9 recruiting more hobbyists,

1 mitigatinga c.2% (c.£8 million) decline in core gross margin, which is a fair challenge. In the year we reviewed our input price
increases and they looked more permangsd we increased our prices a broader existing range by ¢.5%. We will always, in
the short term, continue to absorb some of the cost pressures oursekvesprefer to only increase prices for the additional
quality of new miniatures. We are focusing our efforts on efficiencyavgments everywhere and further volume growth.

1 getting our major projects over the line: our investments in a new finished goods warehouse near Nottingham (estimated go liv
date summer 2022) and our new ERP system (estimated delivery plate pending restarted.

Of course, as a vertically integrated international company, we have lots of other things to worry about. We will contimraunétéo and
deal with those as a team in our normal wathrough hard work, grit and determination with a litleshmo ur t oo . Life’'s ne
Games Workshop and that’'s why we enjoy it so much.

As part of our overall strategy, six key initiatives will be prioritised in 2022/23. These are designed to deliver flethgmoseth whilst
maintaining ourcoreoperating profit margin and continuing to surprise and delight our customers. They are in addition to our investment
in new product quality and ensuring our new factories and warehouses deliver the appropriate cash payback.

Staff training and development

We carepassionately about our global team. We have ambitious-@ng plans, but we also run the business with only the resources we
need. We will continue to only recruit essential new jobs or where we need tofilbpksitions. Like last year, many of thaseruits will

be in order to scalein our factories and warehouse facilities as well as in our support functions, mainly IT.

We will continue to support lifelong learning and trainiogdevelopthe skills needed to enable all our staff to be sucads$¥e are also
more active indevelopingorderly succession plans of both the board and senior management. We coirtioue commitment to
diversity and inclusion aames Workshop.

Growth

We are planning for all of our existing 518 stores to be fyfigrationaland, to adda further 2L new stores: 15 in North America and 5 in
Europe (in France, after another successful year) with our new Warhammer café in Tokyo opening too. This will be me irstdan

Japan. Warhammer World is a long way snep we hope this goes some way to immersing our hobbyists in our broader offer. | can't wait
to see how well it launches and is received by our relatively small but ever growing hobby community in Japan.

We again aim to grow in every major country e tworld, and via all of our three sales channels with all of our core IP. Our online store
will have a new platform and will be rebranded for launch in the summer. Phase one will have no major bells or whistiksdat nvore
stable technical solutionWe look forward to more hobbyists signing up to My Warhammer, the gateway into our fantasy worlds.

We will continue to open more independent retailer accounts. Selling via physical outlets remains an important saleS@hasn8bme
have their owronline store, some not. We have seen sales grow in both. We will have a broader range of products to offer with the launch
of our third range, Horus Heresy.

We will continue to search fand engage witthobbyists everywhere.

Customer focus
We will al® continue to be customer focusedbetter engaging our existing ones and reaching whole new audiences with the Warhammer
hobby, and the rich worlds it is sefithin.

Social responsibility

We now have our first joined up draft* plan. We will continugfdaus on ethical sourcing and staff wellbeing, diversity and inclusion
delivering our legal requirement8Ve are reviewing the business consequences of collecting and reporting on race and ethoidiye

we have never collected that data from ounfft We are not sure it is the right thing to do or have legal authority in some countries to
request it without failing some other legal requiremehtt *' s a compl ex problem to solve and we

*This will be an investment we commit to eyeyear. Often longerm commitments like these are paused when financial KPIs need to be
maintained. To deliver a long term change we really need to commit for the long term.
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Social responsibility continued

We continue our work on TCFD reportimyr first attempt is detailed latenWe will report progress oaciencebased targetsiext year

The team are working on driving more value through well thought through and deliverable sustainable site waste reduatixterzaidg
our sustainable packagingitiatives. We care about the planet and the people that live ovié will reportwith clarity and be very honest
about ourprogresswe don’'t intend to do any greenwashing.

Committed to dversity, we will continue to performance manage and recruit floe personal qualities you need to do a particular job as
well as the necessary skills. We do not select based on any other criteria. | will continue to do my best to ensuhetbésesdnd that we
are fair and free from any bias and/or prejudice.

Sustainability climate change has enormous implications for society. We acknowledge that fully. We are committed to doing our bit. We
won't ma ktermaronjises we neger do on any topic. We will guarantee to take it seriously and make progregsyear. By
continuing to do the right thing, we will deliver ichhlignsgpe . Mo r €
approach of just doing the right thing with better external reporting. The action list will focusffmrts on where we can make the biggest
difference. We believe that we create lotgrm value for our stakeholders through delivering on each of these elements: growth, good

cash returns and by having a positive impact on others.

Licensindusiness
The piority remains the same to deliver on our digital strategy by licensing our IP to partners who will successfully lauquahlitygh
video games, live action or animation shows.

Media
Our IP is huge and there are many opportunities, we will keep yownieftd appropriately in line witlinyagreement with potential
partners. We will also seek the appropriate | egal supwshtot on v

slip up on any of our legal duties or misrepresent progrveisen this industry works at a different pace to our core business. | continue to
remind our team, it's a long process and we can fail at many hurdles. We remain confident we will bring the worlds of Viéataatimen
screen like you have never seenbefde ar e pragmatically patient, it’s not in our

Video game partners

We are looking to add more lortgrm partners to help us globally reach even more fans of our IP. The year ahead looks reasonably
exciting withthree major launches in th period. The efforts it takes to bring a video game to launch is incredi@eake this opportunity
to thank our current partners for their ongoing investment in Warhammer, their hard work and dedication in representiRg g to
their artistic ard literary form and wish them continued success.

Sales
This yeawe have reclassifietbyalties receivable fromther operating incomavithin the income statement tdicensingrevenue, given
the growing prominence of this income stream. Core revenuedsealienue earned from the designing, making and selling our hobby.

Reported coreevenuegrew by10% to £386.8million for the period. On a constant currency basis, sales were u%yfrom 853.2
million to £391.5million; split by channel this comprideTrade £18.1million (202L: £194.8million), Retail 88.1million (2021: £0.7
million) and Online &5.3million (2021 £87.7million).

Licensingevenue from royalty income increased in the year thy.E million to £28.0million. This was largely due a high level of
guarantee income omulti-yearcontracts signed in the year; this income is recognised in full at the inception of the contract in line with
I FRS 15 *‘ Revenue f r o fiollowiograssessnent sf thevpetfohmancel obliga wfehe sohtractReported income is
split as follows83% PC and console gam@&%mobile and10% other.In the period, guarantee income wasE£0m(2021: £.3m).

Revenueby sales channel
52 weeks ende 52 weeks ende 52 weels endec 52 weeks ende

29 May 202 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202 202z 2021
Constan currency  Constant currenc Actualrates Actualrates % ofcore % ofcore
£m £m £m £m revenue revenue
Trade 218.1 194.¢ 214.% 194.¢ 55% 55%
Retail 88.1 70.7 87.2 70.7 23% 20%
Online 85.2 87.7 85.2 87.7 22% 25%
Core revenue 391t 353.2 386.€ 353.2
Licensingevenue 27.1 16.Z 28.C 16.Z
Revenue 418.€ 369.t 414.¢ 369.F
Trade
Trade achieved significant growth D#% with growth in all key countries. In the period, our net numtfetrade outlets increased by800
accounts to6,200whi ch hel ped drive forward sales in this channel. It s

sell our products online, meaning our customers have more choice than everahete to buy Warhammer
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Revenue by sales channel continued
Retail
Store openings and closures during the year:

Number of Number o

Number o Number o single staff single stal

stores a stores a stores at stores a

30 May 202 Openec Closec 29 May 202, 29 May 2022 30 May 202

UK 13€ 3 6 135 93 96
North America 161 5 1 16t 145 14z
Continental Europe 15z 2 151 111 113
Australia 49 1 1 49 37 37
Asia 22 1 5 18 14 18
52¢ 10 15 51€ 400 40€

We believe our storg are the best place to start your Warhammer hobby journey with us. Our stores are filled with staff who have
extensive Warhammer knowledge, build local communities and offer Warhammer hobby guidance and support. It is an essential and
unique customer seige offer that we are proud of.

In the period, we opened, including relocatiod$,stores. After closind5 stores, our total number of stores at the end of the period is
518 As most of our stores across the globe were open for the majority of the ngtail, performed well except for Australia which had
Covid related closures across the region in 2021/22. Jerformanceof each store will be kept under review and any stores that do not
meet our financial model will be closed.

We opened our second féastore in California in June 2021 and are planning a further 15 new stores in North America in the new year too
alongsidefive in France. Our new store openings will continue to follow our low cost single staff model where appropriate, alongside
openinga café store in Tokyo in the next year. We will continue to review the format of our stores pragmatically. Ensuring we always
recruit great store managers and offer our customers an exceptiorsibie experience, remains a priority for us.

Online

Online sales declined slightly B compared to the same period last year. As noted above, our customers have a lot of options when it
comes to shopping for Warhammer online and are able to buy our products both through our own web stores (reported ire@dline)
through those of independent retailers (reported in Trad&)e are part way through the first phase of upgrading our online store which
will go live in 2022/23.

Core gross margin

Core goss margirpercentagedeclined in the year b$.6%points (2022 67.1%;2021: 72.7%). It was negatively impactagan increase in
inventory provisions of 1.6 million as we failed to get the right stock in the right place at the right (2 million additional freight
and carriage costisicluding£3.4 million of costs into Europeand £2.5million additional staff costs.

Operating expenses

Coreoperating expenselave increased by#5 million in the year (202233.0% ofcore revenue2021: 340%): £.6 million additional
spend on our operations, support andanketing teamgincludingstaff costs of £.7 million andIT relatedoperationalcosts of .7
million). Onlinecostshave increased by £1.9 millizalating toinvestment in the new webstore and £1.2 millimerease in support and
hosting costsOther vaiable selling costs have increased byGaillion. Retail and eventscosts havencreasedoy £2.0 million as stores
reopened and we restarted eventfollowing Govid closuresThis is prtially offsetagainst the prior periodby savings of £3.million aswe
rewarded all our staff with a £3,500 profit share payment each (2022 rillion; 2021: A3.2million). Bonuses to the senior
management team were@6 million (2021: £1.1 million).

Licensingperating expensekave increased byl£3million in theyear as wenoved some costs from the core creative team inte th
licensingteam.

Operating profit

Core operating profilecreasedy £5.0 million to £131.7 million (2021: £18.7 million). On a constant currency basis, core business
operating profit itreased by 8.2 million to £136.9million. As a percentage abresales core business operating profit w&4.0% (2021:
38.7%).

Licensingperating profit grew by £0.4million to £25.4million (2021: £5.0million). On a constant currency badisensng operating

profit increased by 8.6 million to £24.6million. These numbers are income less costs; they ddmedtideany costs related to using the IP
created in the core business.
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Cash generation

During the year, the d&lrcashofEl061milionraftertaxpayments @02k £118%5eniilienhich tncludes
group profit share payments of £9.9 million (2021: £13.2 millian)increase in inventory of £12.2 million (2021: £6.2 millag an
increase in the VAT debtor of £5.9llion (2021: £5.4 million)icensing cash receiptgere £15.4 million (2021: £14.2 milliomfter
purchases of tangible and intangible asseft£18.4 million (2021: £20.3 millioapd product development costs of8.9 million (2021:
£9.7 million), divdends paidof £93.5million (2021: £60.5 million)ease payments of £11.1 million (2021: £10.0 millipnpceeds from the
issue of ordinary share capital relating to the sharesave scheme&.®fiillion (2021: £1.4 millionthere was cash at thperiodend of
£71.4million (2021: £85.2 million).

Dividends

We followed our principle of returning truly surplus cash to shareholders. Dividend&dfillion (2021: £76.9 million) were declared
during the year. A ‘“workinh ofsWwobkihgrtapitahreegmbnémeht wak o
payments has been set aside before deciding how much cash is truly surplus for the purpose of declaring dividends.

Return on capital employed core business

200 -
180 -+
160 -~
140 -+

120 118
120 4 — 100 —
% 100 - — 94

80 72

59
42 40
40 + 27
A I
0 L L L L

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

185

Alongterm measure of ouperformance has been return on capiahployed (ROCHDuring the year our core business return on capital
has declinedrom 185% t0118%. Tte prior periodresult wasexceptionaknd ROCHas returned to a more typical historical levélIROCE
was calclated using theperiodend values, it would be 113% (2021: 156%).

Capital employed

Core average capital employéttreased by 87.6million to £111.3million. This was driven byhe average book value of tangible and
intangible assets increamy by £14.5million, average inventorieincreasng by £11.8million and trade and other receivableégreasng by
£11.1million. Average balances are calculated over the 12 month period.

Investments in assets
This is what we have been spending your money on:

2022 2021

£m £m

Shop fits for new and existing stores 1.3 0.€
Production equipment and tooling 10.1 7.5
Computer equipment and software 2.9 5.2
Site 3.4 7.3
Total capital additions 17.7 20.€

In 2021/22, we invested4£1 million in tooling, milling ad injection moulding and paint machines and a furth&0finillion on moulding
tools. The investment in computer equipment and software includ®8 fillion on the new warehousing facility in Nottingham and work
on the ERP system o046 million. The inestment inSte includes £.7 million to expand our production, warehousing and office capacity
in Nottingham

Inventories

Inventories have increased by @& 9million as a result of the logistical difficulties of getting the right stock in the rigtte@ad my poor
forecasting Inventory before inventory provisions increased #Af8 million (2021: 82.2million) and inventonyprovisiorsincreased by
0.4% to1.7% ofcore revenug2022: 6.4 million; 2021: &.6million). We continue to offer a broad rge of price points. The average
increase in the price of product varies by product categog rangegrom 2% to10%.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables increased Byt & million, which includes £13.3 nillion increase in royalty income receivab#,9 million
increase iNVAT receivable,&E8 million increase in trade debtE5million increase in accrued digital incormed £0.6 million in rent and
rates prepayments.

Trade and other payables
Trade andbther payableslecreased by 2.8 million, including a 2.5million decrease in trade payables andlecrease of 2.8 million in
PAYEratesand VAT liabilitiesThis was partially offset by &#& millionincrease in deferred income.

Taxation
The effectve tax rate for theperiodwas18.0%(2021: 19.2%)The rate is lowethanin the prior period as a result of thancrease in
overseagrofit in inventory provisionsogether with the impact of super deductions.

Treasury
The objective of our treasuryopeert i on i s the cost effective management of financ
managed centrally. It operates within a range of board approved policies. No transactions of a speculative nature adpermitt

Funding and liquidity risk
The Group pays for its operations entirely from our cash flow.

Interest rate risk
Net interest receivable for the year wa8.2 million (2021: £0.2 million).

Foreign exchange
Our big currency exposures are the euro and US dollar:

euro US dollar
2022 2021 2022 2021
Periodend rate used for the balance sheet 1.18 1.16 1.26 1.42
Average rate used for earnings 1.18 1.13 1.34 1.34

The net impact in the year of exchange rate fluctuations on our operating profit wamaf £1.8 million (20211ossof £4.0 million).

Non-financial information statement

As highlighted in the business model section earlier in this annual report, we are a relatively complex business. Withritlisne aim to
comply with the NorFinancial Reporting requirements comtad in sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006. The table
below and the information it refers to is intended to help stakeholders understand our position on kefinaanial matters and how we
are addressing our reporting requirements. Thiarisarea of focus for us going forwards.

Key policies and standards which govern Where this is referenced in this annual
Reporting requirement our approach and controls report
Employees Employee statement Pages 3-27

Attendance and absence policieslinting

career break, maternity, paternity and

shared parental leave

Disciplinary, grievance and appeals policy

Social media policy

Health and safety policy

Anti-corruption and bribery Anti-bribery policy Page 3
Anti-slavery policy Page 7
Insider akaling policy
Whistleblowing policy Page 37
Human rights Safeguarding policy

Data protection policy
Dignity at work policy
Equal opportunities policy

Environmental matters Environmental statement Pages 2-25
Product safety policy

Business rodel Pages %

NonHinancial KPIs Page7

Description of principal risks Page 17

Gender diversity, greenhouse gases, social, community and human rights, and employees
We report on these t moppages2ta2i. t he director s’ report
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Risks and ocertainties

The board has overall responsibility for ensuring risk is appropriately managed across the Group and has carried owissesbostnt of
the principal risks to the business. Tkey strategic risks to the Group are regularly reviewed kg lloard. The principal strategic risks
identified in 2021/22 are discussed below. These risks are not intended to be an extensive analysis of all risks theg meynaoire
importantly are the ones which we believe could cause business interruption.

i ITstrategy and deliverywith a number of significant business projects in play, all of which are dependent on IT support, there is a
requirement for a robust IT strategy which enables us to deliver key strategic projects as well as supporting dagtioitizs. &Ve
are keeping the structure of our global IT team under review to ensure the IT support needs of the business can be delivered.
9 Media- whilst this remains an area for future growth, it is imperative that exploitation of our IP through mealimels does no harm
to our core business. Our IP steering team meets every month to discuss ongoing and future exploitation, to ensuresthaf allu
IP, through all channels, is approved, correct and consistieistfully supported by our ifhouselegal team who will act when needed.
 Social responsibiliywe don’'t i ntend to ‘greenwash’ or to be ‘politicall
and we have been making some good progress quietly in the background. We ang lfmskvays we can support global initiatives
including climate change, diversity and equality and we are documenting a realistic plan to make some progress, forever.

We consider that Covid is not a specific risk that we can mitigate against but weaaeging our response to it alongside our operational
risks. We also do not consider that we have material solvency or liquidity risks.

Section 172 statement
This section describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in sectiondfZBELEompanies Act 2006 in exercising
their duty to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole.

The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

To be around forever, it is essential that the board makes aewsvhich are the best for Games Workshop in the long term. These
decisions are focused on logrm success, not shoterm gains. The best example of this is the ongoing investrimentir studios and our
rich IP. This together with our capital investmiémnew production facilities, warehousing space and technolagyyell aglobal IT
infrastructure will stand us in good stead for the future.

The interests of the Group's employees
The board actively engages with employees to ensure that the opimiotisdeas of staff are always considered, and that staff are kept up
to date and informed. This has been achieved in a number of different ways over the past 12 months:

- Our global communications forum operated umMibvember2021 and acted as a meansamimmunication between the board, senior
management and staff, with representatives from all departments, in all territories around the world. The matters dis¢ubsed a
Games Workshop Global Communications Forum (GWGCF) were circulated to the badistasskd at board meetings to ensure
that the board understands the views and concerns of employdesbers of the board attended GWGCF meetings to ensure
ongoing board engagement with employees.

- A series of quarterly departmental briefings, led by sem@anagers, are now taking place in order to facilitate open communication
and to ensure staff are informed.

The need to foster the Group's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Suppliers

The board is briefed on a monthly basis reliag major investments and ongoing relationships with key suppliers as required. The board
also has oversight of relationships with suppliers through regular updates and reports from the executive directorsofDetailee

engage with supplierscanbettnd i n t he dpagett or s’ report on

Customers

The enjoyment of all things Warhammer by our customers is our priority. The board assesses and considers customensatigfactio
engagement on a regular basis. Sales and performance information ptheid®ard with good visibility of customer demand on a

monthly basis. Key performance indicators in respect of engagement with customers through our Warhammer Community vggtadite, di
communications, and initiatives like Warhammer Schools Alliancékasgise reported to, and assessed by, the board regularly. Any other
significant trends, issues or opinions of our customersreperted up to and discussed by the board when appropriate. Details of how we
engage with customers can be found in the directos r ep o2f7.t on page

The impact of the Group's operations on the community and the environment

The board recognises the importance of managing the social impact of the business and minimising any adverse impaatrafions op

on the environment. Detal s of t he progress made in respect of social respo
onpages 2to 25.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Section 172 statement continued

The desirability of the Group maintaining a reputatfonhigh standards of business conduct

The board expects the highest standards of business contibetboard receives regular updates in respect of matters of regulatory
compliance, and the business has policies, procedures and processes in placedhabspmlern slavery, bribery and corruption, ethical
sourcing and tax evasion.

The board recognises the importanceguafod corporate governance. Details of the approach taken by Games Workshop can be found in
our corporate governance report on pagésto 34.

The need to act fairly as between members of the Company
The Company has one class of shares so all shareholders are treated equally. Details of how we engage with sharehelftauadan b
our corporate governance report qrage32.

Outlook

Weare on the front foot, have a clear strategy for our core doensingousiness, a culture built on long standing proven principles, a
pretty good operational plan building on the progress we have made, a work ethic built on trust and a hobby thanid &ingaging. We
look forward with a great deal of confidence. Our goal remains the same to deliver our strategy and share our love fomvgarham
globally.

I't'"s been another astonishing year. | on-oestafqalicustonesloe gr eat
Warhammer. | thank you all for helping make this another very successful year.

Approved by the board, and signed on behalf of the board

Kevin Rountree
CEO
25 July 2022
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The directors present their amal report together with the audited consolidated financial statements and independent atglieport for
the periodended 29 May 2022.

General information

Games Workshop Group PLC (the " Company’ ) mandacturéssniniaturdfigiredandr i e s
games and distributes these through its own network of retail stores, independent retailers and online via the globalres bl

Group has manufacturing activities in the UK and sells mainly in the UK, Continenzé BENorth America, Australia, New Zealand and

Asia. The Group also grants licences to third parties for the development of video games and other products utilising ghé Gro

intellectual property.

The Company is a public listed company, incorporatedi domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Willow
Road, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2 WS, United Kingdom. The Company

Dividends
Dividends of 235 pence per shg021: 235 pence per share) were declared during the year (2022t giiliion; 2021: £76.9 million).

Directors

The present directors of the Company #isted onpage50. All of the directors were members of the board throughout the year and up to

the dae of signing the financial statements except for S Matthews and N J Donaldson, who stepped down from the board on 28rNovembe
2021 and 31 May 2021 respectively, and R Casson who joined the board on 1 July 2022.

In accordance with the 2018 UK Corporater&oance Code, all directors are subject to annualeztion. In relation to the non

executive directors, the chair has confirmed that, following formal performance evaluation, the performance of J R ArigréEsMarsh
continues to be effective anchey continue to demonstrate commitment to their roles as rexecutive directors, including commitment

of the necessary time to board and committee meeti ngsentafiihe ot he
Group, as set ouh the corporate governance report. Thenrenx e cut i ve directors have formally ev
as nonexecutive chair and consider her to be effective in her role.

Directors' interests

The interests of the directors in the shamsthe Company, together with details of share options granted to the directors, are disclosed in
the remuneration report orpage48. None of the directors had a material interest in any contract of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidides, was a party during the year.

5ANBOG2NRQ AYRSYYAGlASa
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors, as permitted by sdctibth23
Companies Act 2006, which were in force during the year and @p July 2022.

Information on executive directors

K D Rountree (age 52), CEO. Kevin joined Games Workshop in March 1998 as assistant group accountant. He then had geroerst mana
roles within Games Workshop, including head of sales for the Othaiithedidivision (including Black Library, Licensing and Sabertooth
Games). Kevin was appointed CFO in October 2008. Duripgtioel ended 29 May 2011, he took on the responsibility of managing the
Group’'s service cent r dlswagdhanged o thief.opefating offieer from chief finahdiakofficeh Hedecamne chief
executive on 1 January 2015. He qualified as a chartered management accountant in 2001. Prior to joining Games Workshap,tKevi
management accountant at J Barba& Sons Limited and trained at Price Waterhouse.

R F Tongue (age 51), CFacHrl joined Games Workshop in September 1996 as group tax manager. She then had various accounting roles
within Games Workshop and was appointed company secretary in Octob8r 3Be has also managed the legal and compliance functions
within Games Workshop since November 2012. She was appointed group finance director in January 2015 and assumed thiefrole of ¢
financial officer in November 2020. Rachel qualified as a chatteceountant in 1995 and as a chartered tax adviser in 1996 having

trained with Arthur Andersen.

Information on nonexecutive directors

E O Donnell (age 51). El ai ne O’ Donnel |l was agxqruiverchaieod Janaryt he bc
2021. A chartered accountant by profession, Elaine was previously a corporate finance partner with EY. She is-absecativendirector

of On the Beach Group plc.

J R A Brewis (age 55). John Brewis was appointed to the board on 20 June 20l hn has over 30 year s’
manufacturing businesses and had various roles within Reach Plc, formerly Trinity Mirror Plc, including managing dinedBroap's
manufacturing division.

exXpe

K E Marsh (age 60). Kate Marshwas apgotht t o t he board on 24 July 2019. Kate has ov
businesses. She is currently rexecutive director at Devolver Digital Inc., Elstree Film Studios Limited and is heading up international
devel opment f digital MeGWrksSKkate loas it and managed significant media businesses across Europe holding senior
roles with Sky, GroupM, the BBC, and Sony Pictures Television.
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Information on nonexecutive directors continued
R Casson (g 55). Randal Casson was appointed to the board on 1 JulyR@22.d a | has 35 years
and has been an audit partner at PwC for 22 years. He retired from PwC on 30 June 2022.

experienc

Independent auditor

As at 25 July 2022, sarfas each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the aiglitnoaware and each director
has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevarfoeudiion
and to establish that the auditas aware of that information.

Share capital, share rights and other information

As at 25 July 2022, the Company’'s authorised share cnamnalt al was
value( * or di nar y1lJsh2022 ¢herévgre32300)2042021: 32,776,471) ordinary shares in issue. These ordinary shares are

listed on the London Stock Exchange. All ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and the right tdivietids.

Shares acquired through the Company’'s share schemes holdesbf pari
ordinary shares are entitled to receive t he CdtmpCompary,goappoimtu a l r
proxies and to exercise voting rights. There are no restrictions on transfer or limitations on the holding of any clssarigho

requirements for prior approval of any transfers. The directors may refuse to register #etrafishares if there is a failure to comply with
certain requirements of the Company’s articles of drelefthei ati on.
Company.

I n accordance with the acmghare(pthesthanthasd held ietseasory) enttlesstte balder toiorme vate at
general meetings of the Company on votes taken on a poll. On a show of hands at a meeting, every member present inljyeosenaor

more proxies and entitled to vote hase vote. Unless the directors decide otherwise, if a shareholder is given notice that he has failed to
provide information required in relation to any shares pursuant to a notice under section 793 of the Companies Act 200éntbet will

be unable to wvte on those shares both in a general meeting and at a meeting of the shareholders of that class. If such shareholder holds
more than 0.25% of the issued shares of a class (excluding treasury shares) and is in default of a section 793 notcmrireal also

state in the notice that: (i) the payment of any dividend shall be withheld; and (ii) that there can be no transfer airse tebld by such
shareholder.

Subject to the provision of law, the Company may by ordinary resolution declare a divér paid to the members according to their
respective rights and interest, but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the directors. The directors mayaatsartk

pay interim dividends. Subject to shareholder approval, the directorspasydividends by issuing shares credited as fully paid up in lieu of
cash dividends. If dividends remain unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited and revert to the Company.

The rules about the appointment and replacement of directors are contained i€@thenpany’ s arti cl es of associ
articles of association state that a director may be appointed by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders or by tbesg#igner to fill

a vacancy or as an addition to the existing board but sotti@atotal number of directors does not exceed thmaximum number of
directors all owed pursuant tDhe hGompanmpyny  &r tairdcli €ed ecf ods accioxt
maximum number of directord’he Company may by ordiry resolution remove a director from the board of directors.

The Company’s articles of association also state t hsofthet he boar
Company and in doing so may exercise all the powers oCtmpany subject to the provision of relevant legislation and the
Compangrnstitutional documentation. The powers of the directors
relation to the issue and bugack of shares. As at 29 ¥12022, the Company had an unexpired authority to repurchase shares up to a
maximum of 3,277,647 shares. During the year no shares were purchased in the market for cancellation.

Changes to the articles of association must be approved by the sharehaidasdrdance with the legislation in force from time to time.

The Company does not have agreements with any director or employee that would provide compensation for loss of officeyonempl
resulting from a takeover, except that the provisionsof@e mpany’ s sharesave scheme may cause (

Constructive use of the AGM

The chairs of the audit and risk, remuneration and nomination committees will be available to answer questions at the ps@die Se
resolutions are prposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting and the chair of the Company will declare the number of proxy
votes received both for and against each resolution.

Corporate governance

The Company’s statement on decorposategdvananc®regperton pagéamd foims partafthisuded i r
report.
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Environment and social

Atthe startof 202, we appointed a new head of s o-@ahewbpositior gatedtcscortiriate out y and
social responsibty and sustainability initiatives into a strategic plan that ensures we act responsibly and sustainably in everythirgg that

do. We now have a dedicated team who are responsible fasrdinating the delivery of our SRS strategy as set outvineldanyof these

initiatives are not new.

SRS strategy
Like all companies, Games Workshop has a responsibility to operate in a way that brings allloartstakeholderand to continue to
build a company, doing the right things, of which we can all be proud

Our hobby brings tremendous amounts of enjoyment to the members of our commufaitylitating friendships and an escape into an
immersive universe of fantasy characters and worlds, whilst helping build social skills, strategic thinking, and provedingn for

artistic expressior\We are proud of what we do and that the design, manufacture and sale of the best fantasy miniatures in the world
provides so much enjoyment to our customefso wever , we can’t ignor e t missionssaml wasfecaused our
by our activities.

Our SRS strategy is being built to support our overall business strategy. To deliver ttertosgccess of the business and continue to
engage and inspire our customers forever, we have to proactively reglwcenvironmental impact and ensure we do the right thing
throughout our operations and supply chain.

The strategy is focused upon two areas:

1 Environment promoting sustainability throughout everything we do. Playing our part in tackling climate ehang
1 People- creating positive environments for staff. Promoting responsible manufacture and supply chains. Protecting our customers.

The SRS strategy will help us improve the transparency of our reporting and allow us to communicate clearly on havddvesziag key
subjects. This year we report on the progress we have made on key focus areas, and over the next 12 months we willggbdiickear
objectives, accompanied by welefined metrics and targets.

Environment

We will aim to capture ourdivities associated with managing our environmental impact both in our operations and throughout our
supply chain. Our focus will be on fulfilling our roléaé@lping totackle climate change, maximising the efficient use of resources and
working tomakesureall waste associated with our operations and produstiealt with as sustainably as possible.

Taskforce for climateelated financial disclosures (TCFD)
We support the recommendations of the TCNIe recognise the nee reduce our carbon emissis and further strengthen the
resilience of our business to the impacts of climate change.

In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R (8), we are including the following overview of our approach terelamedeisks and

opportunities, consistent wh the TCFD recommendations for disclosure. We have considered the 11 principles of the TCFD
recommendations and whilst we have made significant progress towards integrating the management ofdiatatbissues into how

we plan and operate our busingsthere are still some areas where there is more to dedpecifically requirements A and C under metrics
and targets, these are areas where we are still working towards full compliance.

Requirement A requires that wadisclose the metrics we use tesess climateelated risks in line with our risk management process and

an agreed impact scale against which all risks are consistently meaS\eeanticipatehat we will have established thizefore the end of

the next financial year. Requirement&juires that we complete the setting of targets for reducing our carbon footprint. We are currently
in the process of setting targets in line with the requirements of the Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) andfiredention

needed to limit Emperature rises td.5°C We will report progress on scienbased targets next year.

Governance
Climaterelated risks and opportunities are identified, assessed and managed as part of our risk managementsréaksgs:

1 Ultimate accountability foand oversight of climateelated risks and opportunities sits with the board. The board will review all
strategic and financially substantive risks at least twice a year through the audit and risk comwiitigfe jncludeurrent progress on
any targets éfined to manage climateelated issues associated with these risks. The outputs from these committee mestingsip
refine and plan the changes to the strategy, risk management processes, policies and future investment.

1 Strategic oversight of climateslated risks is provided by the senior management team sustainability steering group (SSG). The SSG is
chaired by the CFO and meets quarterly. It reviews climalted and other sustainability risks collated from across the different
teams at Games Waoskop. The output of these reviews helps define any goals and targets to help manage climate and other
sustainability related issues as well as helping set the strategy for all environment and sustainability matters acuasisdiss.the
SSG also monitsiprogress on risk management activities undertaken by the specific areas across the business as part of their efforts
to manage climateelated issues associated with their activities

Our head of SRS is responsibledoordinating themanagement of anate-related risks and opportunities via the carbon management
group. This group meets monthly to revi@rogress on delivery of our plan includirige identification, assessment and management of
climaterelated risks; and monitoring of associated gaais targets. The group is chaired by the head of SRS and is supported by senior
managers from the relevant teams across the business.
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Environment continued

Risk managementrisk identification

The identification of emergingimate relatedrisks and opportunities and the monitoring of any changes is coordinated through the
carbon management group.

Climaterelated risks and opportunities are identified using a range of processes, including:
1 monitoring future developments

1 stakeholder engagement

1 scenario planning

1 subject matter expertise

Any identified risks are recorded on the SRS risk register.

Risk managementrisk assessment

Any identified climateaelated risk is assessed by our carbon management group based onefiteliki of occurrence and the potential
impact. Risks are ranked and prioritised. Risks that pass a certain threshold are added to the risk register for theeaetenfahe

business who are then responsible for managing that risk appropriately. Suilbstasks that have the potential to have a material

financial or strategic impact on our business are added to the compéshy operational risk register. These substantive risks are reviewed,
alongside all other companyide risks at least twice a yehy the audit and risk committee.

Risk management process

Climaterelated risks cover a broad range of potential business fisksn specific risks where climate change acts as the primary cause, to
risks where climate change acts to accelerate or wotke impact of existing risks. The management of these different risks varies
according to the type of risk they are and their effective time horiasiollows:

Transitional risks, such as those caused by the increasing cost of high carbon materitgramot within our control. For example, the
development of manufacturing technology that aveslich materialsWe don’t have a solution for a pl

Physical risks, such as the increased likelihood of supply chain disruptions casdrkine weather conditions, that are outside our
control are often best managed through risk transfer. For example, having business continuity insurance to cover amnlestesed
by an unforeseen disruption in business operations.

Whilst some asgcts of the management of climatelated risks (such as their impact on financial planning) apply at all time horizons,
other aspects are more suited to specific time horizasgollows:

1 Short term:considers climateelated risks that could affect thieusiness within the next 12 months. The management of such risks will
form part of decisions made regarding our usual planning processes.

1 Medium term:considers climateelated risks that could affect the business in one to three years' time. These résksmaaaged
throughour planning activities and influence decisions such as target setting.

1 Long term:considers climateelated risks that could affect the business beyond three years. These risks are managed as part of our
planning activities.

Strategy

We havecarried out a climate scenario analysis (CSA). This CSA helps us understand the potential context in which our bilgness will
operating in the future and allows us to prepare for a variety of different possible outcomes. The analysis usexbxiatinghange
science and applies projections to suggest how our business may be impacted by climate change.

CSAViethodology
We conducted our CSA using a standard methodology in accordance with guidance provided by the TCFD recommendationgdihe appro
is broken down into its key components below:
1 Risk screening
For the first iteration of our CSA, we focused solely on risks rather than opportunities. We screened all potential nisksoared
them down further through workshops to produce a shortligthich consisted of three physical and five transitional risks.
I Scenario selection
We usedglobalclimate scenarios defined by the Network for Greening the Financial Systems (NGFS). We selected three climate
scenarios from the NGFS for our analysis. Detai ¢ a n Ikheserslimatessc ¢ marf i os'’ bel ow. Each scena
possible future in which we may be operating.
1 Impact quantification
We carried out a range of different workshoipsernallyto gain an understanding dfie operational mplications of each of the
identified risks and how these may vary across the three different scenarios. These workshops were carried out witminput fro
internal and external expertsithin different areas of our business.

Through this we were able tdéntify a wide variety of potential impacts on our business model resulting from climate change. When
analysing each risk, qualitative and, wherever possible, quantitative assessments were made.
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Chosertlimate scenarios

The three selected scenarios fraire NGFS can be seen below, in order of the severity of risk exposure from lowest to highest.

T ‘*Net zero 2050
An ambitious scenario that limits global warming to 1.5°C through stringent climate policies and innovation, reeckeng CO2
emissions arond 2050. This scenario assumes that ambitious climate policies are introduced immediately. Carbon removal is used to
accelerate decarbonisation but kept to the minimum possible and broadly in line with sustainable levels of bioenergyqrodecti
CO2 enssions reach zero around 2050, giving at least a 50% chance of limiting global warming to below 1.5°C by the end of the
century. Physical risks are relatively low, but transition risks are high.

T * Di v enetgeer not’
A scenario that reachaget zero by D50, but with higher costs due to a less integrated and consistent approach to policy across
different sectors and regioralong witha quicker phase out of fossil fuels. This mimics a situation where the failure to coortirate
policystringentlyacrosssectors results in a high burden on consumers, while decarbonisation of energy supply and industry is less
stringent. Furthermore, the availability of castzeon QI0&0" de r
Emissions are in nwith a climate goal giving at least a 50% chance of limiting global warming to 1.5°C by the end of the century but
with considerably higher transition risks thaat zero 2050.

T ‘“"Curpoéntci es’
This scenario assumes that only currently implementeccfgsiare preserved, leading to high physical risks. This represents a business
asusual scenario with minimal meaningful action taken on reducing emissions. Emissions grow until 2080 leading to about 3°C of
warming and severe physical risks. This inclutesersible changes, such as higher sea level rise, and potentially the crossing of
devastating climate ‘tipping points’ such as widespread meth
permanent shutdown of the Atlantic Gulf Stream.

Outcomes

The ultimate outcome of this CSA was the identification of the most relevant cliraktted risks for our business (summarised below) and
a stronger understanding of their potential impacts across the different selected scenarios. The CleAsmeaharios used will be

reviewed each year and undergo a full refresh every three years to ensure they remain relevant and appropriate for oss.busine

Identified Risks

Management
Risk type Risks Description Timescale Likelihood  Potential impact process
Physical Extreme If the frequency and 1-5 years Medium Medium Consideration of
weather severity of events like weather resilience
flooding and hurricanes in site selection and
increase then this may building design.
interrupt operations and
damage assets and
facilities, leading to
revenue loss and repairs
costs, respectively.
Transitional Carbon If carbon taxes are 1-5 years Low High Development of low
pricing implemented or increased carbon alternatives
in certain countries then for materials and
this could cause Games operations (e.g.
Wor kshop’s ¢ sourcing orsite
increase. renewables)
Physical Supply chain  If the indirect effects of 5-20 years  High Medium Consideration of
disruption climate change increase in benefits of
frequency or severity (eg. production and
Conflict or geopolitical warehousing
issues) therogistics expansion and
services may be interruptec diversification
and/or their costs may
increase.
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Metrics and targets

We report on all matrial global emissions using an operational control approach for our scopes 1 and 2, plus selected scope 3 emissions.

The methodology used to compile our GHG emissions inventory is in accordance with the requirements of the following staedAiRlb
GHGPr ot ocol Corporate Standard (revised version) and DEFRRA’
Carbon Reporting requirements (March 2019). Our energy and carbon disclosures for the period 1 May 2021 to 30 Apris20@2t are
below:

Restated**

2022 2021

Scope Emissions source UK emissions NonUK emissior Total emissior Total emissior
Scope 1 Natural gas 278 304 582 651
Company cars 32 6 38 16

Other fuels 3 6 9 4

Refrigerants 19 13 32 58

Total scope 1 332 32¢ 661 73C

Scope 2 Electricity (location based) 2,189 2,813 5,00z 3,3
Total scope 2* 2,189 2,813 5,00z 3,30

Scope 3 Air transport 771 90¢& 1,67¢ 6,377
Sea transport 1,021 817 1,838 1,72

Road transport 1,810 3,61( 5,420 3,612

Purchase of goods and service 34,268 3,561 37,82¢ 34,415

Business travelflights 178 43 221 5

Business travelother 32 37 69 34

Waste 64 165 22¢ 157

Water 28 3 31 84

Total scope 3 38,172 9,141 47,312 46,413

Total- all scopes 40,693 12.28¢< 52,97¢€ 50,45:
Total energy usage (mWh) 11,705 9,462 21,167 16,597
Restated***

2022 2021

Carbon intensity (tCO2e/£000) scope213 0.128 0.137
Carbon intensity (tCO2e/sq. ft.) scope2l 3 29.47 28.3¢

* This work is partially basesh the countryspecific CO2 emission factors developed by the International Energy Agency, ORODg|EAIt the resulting
work has been prepared by Games Workshop and does not necessarily reflect the views of the International Energy Agency.

** |n respect of 2020/21, refrigerant emissions have been restated due to better data quality and therefore the total scope 1 fol2@2dien revised
to reflect this.

*** |n previous periods carbon intensities were based on scope 1 and 2 emissions only. Tomgive accurate intensity figure and improve yearyear
comparison, all carbon intensities now include scope 1, 2 and 3 emis3@®821 intensities have been restated to reflect this change.

This year our total GHG emissions for Scope 1, Scope Scape 3 are 5976tCO2e, which is an increase®fbon last year.This increase
is primarily driven by an increase in emissions associated with our purchased goods and services, in line with our glouginess. Our
revenuebased emissions intensityas decreased by 6%, from 0.137 tCO2e/£000 in 2020/21 to 0.128 tCO2e/£000 this year.

Further details on our reporting and notable trends are as follows:
i Scope t Our direct scope 1 emissions have decreased by 9% from the previous period. This isllergelgn increase in the

qudlity of consumption data available for natural gas, where previously data had been estimated. Emissions from refrigerants have

also reduced, with far lower tepps required at Memphis this year. Despite this decrease, we s@@e an increase of 140% in
company car emissions, due to an increase in business travel since the easing of Covid restrictions.

S

T Scope 2 This year, our scope 2 emissions have seen an increase of 51%, primarily due to improvements in the qualityrof data f

store electricity usage. In the UK, where a good proportion of actual consumption data has been available in previoystmeriods

increase is 6%.

i Scope 3 As in previous periods, scope 3 represents almost 90% of our total emissions, with the mesainaativities being the
purchasing and transportation of goods. This year, we have significantly reduced the volumeludlbag freight, which has had a
significant impact on our freight emissions. While we have seen increases in emissions edsatiatoad and sea freight, in part
due to an increase in business activity, freight emissions in total have decreased by 24%.
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Metrics and targe$ continued

Greenhouse gases targets

As part of our commitment to fulfilling our role in tackling climahange, we will be setting a target to reduce our carbon footprint in line
with the requirements of the Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) and the level of reduction needed to limit tempseattwel 15C

We will report progress on sciendmsd targets next year.

Energy consumption

We are working hard to reduce our energy consumption and associated carbon emissions each period. A significant proportion of
scope 1 and 2 emissions are from our manufacturing and sales operations at auNd@ngham. Whilst we continue to use a mixture of
on-site solar and green energy to supply our main site, as well as our 135 retail stores in the UK, our energy and carmmaetiites

are also focused on energy efficiency measures and staffgamgent leading from our Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme audits. During
2021/22, we have continued to upgrade light fixtures to LEDs and install PIR light switches throughout our factorieandffitsgt®r

centre.

Plastics

Plastics are one of theam resources that we use in the production and supply of our products. Minimising any waste and ensuring that
the waste that is unavoidable is treated in the most sustainable way possible is therefore a key aspect of ensuringess isuesn
sustainabd as possible. We are carrying out a detailed review of waste in our production prébesseview will consider; whether plastic
packaging is necessary, improvements in how efficiently we use material, increasing the recycled content of the plastcande
supporting customers in recycling waste plastic associated with our products. We are making some good progress on vectolikg o
write offs.

Operational waste

We already employ a number of robust processes to promote responsible and sid¢éamanagement of our operational wast@verthe
next 12 months, we will consolidate our management of operational waste into a specific plan with clear targets to redete was
minimum and to promote the reuse and recycling of waste that is unattéda

People
The people that we work with are one of our greatest assets. Ensuring that we conduct our business in a socially respomsblend
taking responsibility for ensuring people are treated with respeghjsortant if we are to be around foneer.

The enjoyment of all things Warhammer by our customers is our pri@italways conducting business in a responsible way, we will
ensure that Warhammer is a safe and fun experience for all

Our objectives and efforts in this area are to suppgmth our direct employees and the wider workforce of our supply ckaithey feel
valued and respected, and to protect our customers who use our products or visit our stores or events.

Employees

Development and training

Our employees are constantly lkiog for ways to improve. We strive to create a culture and environment that encourages everyone to
achieve their potential.

We continue to invest in our learning and development offer, creating a wide range of content and material for our leamaggment
system which is made available to employees globally. Over the last year, we have delivered management development ahd person
development courses via this method, as well as a range of other learning content developed according to our needmassa Y\e
continue to encourage all employees to enhance their personal and professional development.

We have also launched a global induction process for all new starters who join Games Workshop around the world. Thik@&nsures
everyone who joins ysegardless of country or role, receives a positive welcome, a consistent understanding of who we are and what we
do and an understanding of our culture.

We continue to rely on our strong partnerships with trusted apprenticeship schemes in the UK stlippset, complement and enhance
our staff recruitment, retentiograwn’ demel opemesntwi photvhei migg luts
our business. We currently have apprentices working in positions across our manufg@nod engineering teams.

People plan

We continue to carry out a growwide people plan review on a six monthly basis. This plan is used to identify the jobs which are critical to
the ongoing success of Games Workshop and allow us to proactively pthe foture resource needs of the business, mitigate against

any resourcing risks and identify the development needs of our staff. The plan is critical to making sure that we hgkiegheple, in

the right jobs, at the right time, both now and in tfigure.
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People continued

Staff communications

We are always looking for ways to improve communication with our staff. In recent months we have taken the decision tupglozl
communications forum in favour of a morghglobal newsletter which allows us to share all business updates across all
territories/departments on a regular and routine basis. In addition to this, we have also launched quarterly senior mandyesfiegs,
whereby senior managers brief all stafftheir areas with significant updates from across the business, whilst at the same time allowing
staff to ask questions of the senior manager for their area. Later this year, we plan to launch further feedback irsbatat<ontinue

to feel engagd, included and listened to.

Further details of how we engage with staff, and the effect of this is detailed in our section 172 statement diY.page

Living wage
The Group maintains the UK national living wage for all UK employees, regardless of age.

Sharesave
The Group operates an employee sharesave scheme as a means of
performance.

Diversity

The board believes that business can benefit from a wide range of perspectives and backgrouhdse Company’s aim as
composition of the board is that it should have a balance of attitudes and knowledge to enable each director and the hagndlago

discharge their duties effectively. The board and senior management undertook uncanb@sturaining this year to help ensure that no

bias in respect of gender or ethnicity impaour search for the best person for every j@til employees will have unconscious bias and

equality training this year globally via our learning managemenegys$t help support and embed these principles. We are also trialling

the anonymisation of applications in our recruitment process to ensure we are recruiting the right people from the bramdedttalent

and limit any risk of unconscious bidfie Compny does not, however, consider that diversity can be best achieved by establishing

specific quotas and targets.

As at the ed of the financiaperiod:

2022 2021
Female Male Total Female Male Tota
The board 3 2 5 4 3 7
Senior management - 8 8 - 9 9
Total workforce 611 2,032 2,64% 543 1,89: 2,43¢

Disability

The Group's policy is to consider, for recruitment, disalpedplefor those vacancies that they are able to fill. All reasonable adjustments
will be made for disabled workers, antll mecessary assistance with training is provided. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for
retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudeslitied.abi

Health, safety and welltieg

Protecting the health and safety of all our employees is a principle we hold dearly. With this in mind, we have continuest io our
health, safety and wellbeing team over the last yead#étiverdedicated health and safety support, expertisedaadviceto all areas of the
business

This year saw the launch of our latest health and safety policy, which, whilst an evolution of our existing policy, deinfokesy health
and safety principles of leadership, managerial ownership and staffviemant.

Whilst continuous improvement is a fundamental aspect of health and safety, a recent surprise visit by inspectors froattihenide
Safety Executive (HSE) to dlottinghamsite gave the operation a clean bill of healthnd whilst we must newebecome complacent, it
was reassuring to know we're setting good standards across t he

During the year, there were two injuries reported under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous OccurrencemBRegalat
in the UK (2020/21: twpand six reportable cases reported to the US Occupational Safety and Health Administration (2020/21: five).
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Health, safety and wellbeing continued

Alongside the safety of our staff; their wellbeing and physical and mental welfare continues to beity ptihis year has seen us working

hard to develop a culture in which talking about t hhsysmarweubj ect
have made good progress with this. We will continue to worfutly embedthis aulture, working with our colleagues to understand their

needs and build upon these strong foundations.

Our plan to further embed this culture across the business has already begun, with additional training, support andtiatiersni
launching acrosshe business. The establishment of a wellbeing steering group is helping us ensure that the various aspects of staff
wellbeing come together to form a joined up plan.

We al so recognise that there wild.l b eor notj wheresthey need edditona) supperih s | i v e s
these situations we want our people to receive the héeadypeed hey r
it. Our new global employee assistance programme provider helps us tugdmore effectively than before. Amongst other things, access

in local language through a mobile app improves accessibility for all employees, allowing our people to use this sergigs awhdn

wherever they may need it.

The upcoming year will see mamore ideas and initiatives being launched as we build upon our now established programme.

Customers

Product safety

Our product safety and integrity team work closely with our design, manufacturing and sourcing teams to ensure that et$ padiby
Games Workshop are developed, produced and purchased with safety in mind, so that they are safe for use by the interrded custo
Over the past 12 months, we have continued to invest in our product safety team, increasing the level of support ansbeaymtéble to
our design studios and the wider business. We have also launched a new product safety policy across the business, antheve are
process ofollingthis out across relevant departmentsyilding on our existing processes and principleghe past year, we have handled
one product recall, in respect of a product manufactured and supplied by a licensed partner.

Health and safety

Our stores are where many of our customers first come to learn about the Warhammer hobby, or chat withh@loyists- it is essential
that they are safe places to visit. Our store managers know that the health and safety of their customers is paramoutiveiad éuitine
audit programme throughout the year to ensure that our stores continue to meet thedafgty standards we set for ourselves. We have
monitored local guidance throughout the last year to ensure we remain up to date with these requirements.

Suppliers

Ethical sourcing

We are committed to implementing effective controls to ensure good etlicafcing standards throughout our supply chain. This

commitment is driven by the board throughout the entire Group and a commitment is expected of all who work for, or who Gappds
Workshop. We continue to be a member of an ethical sourcing prograsmmed use this to evaluate our su
rights and wellbeing of workers. The programme covers workplace safety, wage payments, working hours, underage labaurofreedo
association and the right to collective bargaining, ttiécimination, disciplinary practices, forced labour and environment and chemical

safety.

All suppliers of (i) products for resale by Games Workshop, and (ii) components and materials used within products lisir@esoks
Workshop are required to becomepsplier members of this ethical sourcing programme and to be audited and maintain valid certification
in order to receive orders from Games Workshop. Our suppliers are subject to an annual audit programakesare that ethical

sourcing standards throdgut the Games Workshop supply chain are maintained.

As our business grows and we look for greater opportunities to increase exposure to Warhammer and our IP, we will neesled ¢drg
assessment tools to help us evaluate the ethical sourcing praotita wider set of suppliers and partners. In 2022/23, we will be
supplementing our existing ethical sourcing programme with other ways to complement our coverage across our supplietaensd par

Anti-slavery

Modern slavery is a crime and a violatioifandamental human rights. Allowing it to take place within an organisation, either consciously
or through complacency, results in extensive and unnecessary suff@ften in a way that disproportionately affects groups of the most
disadvantaged peopléNe are committed to acting ethically to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure modern
slavery is not taking place within our operations or supply chains. This commitment is driven by the CEO and the boamithheug

entire Graip and a commitment is expected of all who work for, or who supply into, Games Workshop.

We have recently reviewed and updated our modern slavery statement to provide greater clarity on our management of medgrn sla
risks. This is available on our ist@r relations website. Further details of how we engage with suppliers can be found in our corporate
governance report on pag&3. The effect of this is detailed in our section 172 statement on pages 18

Donations

Games Workshop does not make amndtions to charities or political parties. Notwithstanding this, this year we have introduced for all
employees an allowance to use two working days of their time to do work for their chosen charities.
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Research and developent
The Group does not undertake research activities. Development activities relate to the development of new prodacidiaeBnation
The charge to the income statement for the year in respect of development activities is detailed Bitodte financial statements.

Future developments
The future developments for the Group are discussed in the strategic repqragest to 18.

Financial risks
The financial risks facing the Group are set outdte 22 to these financial statements.

Going concerrand viability statement

Assessment of prospects

The Group operates a strategic planning process which includes monthly reviews of business and financial performandémamegjalar
projections and an annual planning review for the next finarpaiod. Medium term projections (for periods ending two years and three
years hence) are reviewed taking into account known strategy changes in that time frame. The three year plan considers the G
growth potential, cash flows and key financial ratios. Fhigtegic planning process is managed centrally, led by the chief financial officer.

Assessment of viability

The strategic plan reflects the directors caut i ouThedirdctersy of poc
haveconsidered a base case going concern model and then modelled the scenarios set out below. Under these scenarios no additional
funding is required and there would be no breach of banking covenants as we currently have no funding facilities in place:

)

- Damageédisruption to our Memphis warehouse meaning we were unable to dispatch from the warehouse for a prolonged
period. This would result in disruption to sales across North America.

- Loss ofmain productiorfactoriesat the head office siten Nottingham to amajor incident resulting in a loss of premises,
machinery and tooling, impacting our ability to produce miniatures.

- Asignificant global disruption such as a pandemic, which would result in closure of warehousing and stomesnitis
impacting sales iall channels.

The viability assessment has been conducted for a peigdasod of th
discussed above. The board believes that this time frame is the most appropriate as it is difficuketoneeningful projections beyond
three years. This assessment of viability has been imatdtegywi t h r

and its principal risks and the mitigation in place to manage them. In making thiétyiassessment the principal risks facing the business

have been considered and a number of severe but plausible scenarios assessed for the impact of these on th¢emmeditojections.

The scenarios tested include those tested as part of our goingero review. Stress testing has been performed on the cash projections to
determine the extent to which sales can decline befoingand he Gr c
cost reductions would be needed.

Viability staement

Based on the board’s assessment as described above amd the Grc
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall dtfedheze year

period ending 1 June 2025, and that there are no material uncertainties regarding the ability of the Group to operatmgsargern.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation #a&dmpany and the Group have adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statétaethis
reason, they continue to adopt thendoComgpammycerfni bharsdisali nstpateq

On behalf of the board

R Matthews
Company secretary
25 July 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

An introduction from our norexecutive chair

I have pleasure in introducing the corporate governance report. Insgggon of our annual report we have set out our approach to
governance and provided further information on how the board and its committees operate. We recognise that applying sound
governance principles is essential to the successful running of the Group

As you will see below, we have three principal committees: audit and risk, remuneration and nomination. Their compositieir and
areas of focus are described below.

Regarding board composition, we are delighted to welcome Randal Cassonbmattteas our newest neaxecutive director and chair of
the audit and risk committee. We are continuing to deng.&Meop our
are currently in the process of recruiting an additional fexecuive director with recent relevant experience to add to the team. | am now
approaching nine years tenure as a rexecutive director at Games Workshepow quickly that time has flown. | have been delighted to
play a part in support of our extremely taleat executives and senior management team in growing the business so successfully over this
period, initially as a nogxecutive director and more recently as board chair. | have communicated to the board that following the next
appointment and after an apppriate period of induction for these two new board members, | intend to ask the nomination committee to
commence a search for my successor as chair. | am very hopeful that my successor will come from within the existirgqraetaidn
executive diectors, but | expect that all options will be considered. As is appropriate, | will not lead this recruitment process for the
nomination committee, but | will lend support in any way | can. We will keep the shareholders appropriately informed wheesos

has been appointed.

We also set out below details of our board effectiveness review, which was conducted this year with external support fiEffactikie
Board, alongside our usual internal review process. The external review concluded thagodifinctions very well with some moderate
suggested improvements. We tend to be our own harshest critics and so, unsurprisingly, our internal review has highiigihteet @f
important development areas that we commit to improve on going forward. Thezealways areas to work on and we will reflect on the
detailed feedback from both processes for any areas of developrelime with our ethos of continuous improvement.

The Games Workshop global communication forum (GWGCF) continued its fomusaufture and values, concluding with a final session
in November 2021. As in the prior year, members from the senior operational team and board were invited to participaterardesh
thoughts on what our culture and values mean to them. Havingladed this 12 month programme, we took the opportunity to reflect
on our overall plan on communication and engagement with staff. Our monthly staff newsletter has had a complete refsesdr thlsich

is being very wellreceived t ' s a g r eiagtgroupavige conimurgcatioruon key initiatives like wellbeing, operational updates
and for introducing new and existing membe@fghe team from across the global business. Staff are also encouraged to get involved and
to feed in news via the internal cumunications team. Alongside this, we have also started to run quarterly departmental engagement
sessions which are open to all staff globally. These serve the dual purpose of the senior management team communicatng keyor
operational and strategimessages across their teams but also opening up the opportunity for all of our staff to ask questions of those
tasked with responsibility for running the business and making the big decisions. All of texemitive directors are encouraged to
attend atleast one of these sessions annually as part of their keeping in touch with the business but also in ensuring visibilityartit

to our staff. In addition to all this, going forward, John Brewis has been asked to take on the roleexfecative diector with designated
responsibility for employee engagement.

| am satisfied with the standards of governance that the board continues to maintain and build upon. The 2018 UK Corpenass€zo
Code (the “Code’ ) has b E€mmpanahdsocpnipked with the Qode gave for thel mattensddertifieceonage
At our AGM this year, as usual, all of our directors will be seeking reappointment.

Best regards.

9f I AYyS hQs52yyStt
Non-executive chair
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REBaRlied

The Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority require listed companies to disclose, in relation to the Code, leve thgplied its
principles and whether they have complied with its provisions throughout the accounting period. T®erpbifate Governance Code can
be found atwww.frc.org.

This statement, together with the remuneration report pages 8to 48, and further statements as referenced below, explains how the
Company has applied the principles and complied with the pavisset out in the Code.

Reporting requirement Where this is referenced in this annual report

Assessment of value over the loteym Strategy and objectives Page 4

Understanding the views of other key stakeholders, as set out in Section Z2 statement Page ¥

section 172

Provision of meanfor the workforce to raise concerns in Whistleblowing Page 3

confidence

Details of meetings of the audit and risk committee Significant issues considered by the audit and ris Page 3
committee

Assessment of praipal risks Risks and uncertainties Page 17

Monitoring of risk management and internal control Internal control Page 8
Risk management Page 8

Statement of going concern Going concern and viability statement Pag 28

Assessment of the prospects of the Group

The board operates through monthly meetings which senior executives attend on a regular basis. The board is respoeatitilegfant

controlling the Group and monitoring executive management. It considers all issues relating to strategy, managehfeture direction

of the Company. The board is also responsible for assessing and monitoring culture within the Group. During the yearyidohasBr

been appointed as the designated nerecutive director responsible for staff engagement. Théseved through regular involvement

of the nonexecutive directors with a variety of employees across the Group as well as attendance at GWGCF meetings during the year and
more recently the quarterly staff service line meetings, which have repldee@WGCF. The board has a schedule of matters reserved to

it for decision that is regularly updated; these pemdituteadie deci s
dividend policy. The board is updated about operational decsstbrough the monthly meetings. It meets at least nine times a year. In

2021/22 the board had 10 scheduled meetings, each of which was attended by all members of the board. Terms of refetenbedod t
committees (as set out below) are availableon@®e mpany’' s website.

The Company maintains an appropriate level of director and officer liability insurance cover and has agreed to indewmingyttine

against certain |liabilities d% discussed in the directors repg
Areviewofthepr f or mance of the Group’s main business activities is i
together with tohpagesi9ta28,c ttoor sgi vree pao rftai r, bal anced and undeérstan
prospects.

The board

The board comprises the naxecutive chair, the CEO, the CFO, and three furtheraxacutive directors. It is chaired by Elaine

O'" Donnell . The biographies and pronpagesl®x2fp.eri ence of board membe

The senior independent director is John Brewis. The principal responsibilities of this role include:

9 to be a sounding board for the chair;

1 to be available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of the ci@iiOtbe the CFO has
failed to resolve, or for which such contact is not appropriate; and

1 to ensure that the performance evaluation of the chair is conducted effectively.

The nonexecutive directors have a breadth of successful commercial and profeksiqrexience and are considered by the board to be
independent of the Group.

Sally Matthews stepped down from the board of Games Workshop in November 2021. Randal Casson joined the board 1 Jaly 2022 as
non-executive director and chair of the audit@nisk committee.

All of the directors bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources (includingikynemsd
and standards of conduct. The board considers that it has been supplied with sufficient timelgcamdte information to enable it to
discharge its duties.

All members of the board have access to the services and advice of the company secretary. There is a procedure faodmketors
independent professional advice at the Company's expense wieggeant to the execution of their duties. The executive directors attach
great importance to ensuring that the nexecutive directors are provided with accurate, timely and clear information on the Group. In
addition, the norexecutive directors are aieely encouraged to update continually their knowledge of and familiarity with the Group and
the issues affecting it, so as to enable them to fulfil effectively their roles on both the board and its committees.
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Board evaluation

In 2021/22 the boardundet ook an externally facilitated review of its perfo

for the ongoing assessment of its own performance and that of its committees. After considering a number of potentiatqrotiee

EffectiveBoard LLP (‘' TEB') were selected to perform this work. TEB

The scope of the external evaluation included a review of the performance of the board, the three board committees (auslt, and
nominationand remuneration) andat the time of the reviewthe five individual directors plus the company secretary. A questionnaire
approach was used throughout.

The board evaluation questionnaire was wide in scope with topics including defining successi@yy,scomposition of the board and
the executive team, adequacy of financial and operational resources, communication with stakeholders, performance meastisgment
management systems and a general review of the beapdocesses, procedures and resms. This was completed by all board directors
and the company secretary. The overall conclusion was that this is an effective board and we were pleased that the {sant@iparery
closely aligned in theirview§b he boar d’ s ef f a@dommeadat®rs $or impfovements mérenntade. These included:

9 improving the clarity of board paper documentation around strategic opportunities and risk assessment, incorporating eslastbn
accountabilities, so that the board can clearly evidence Hwy monitor and measure success around this. The board has already
started to look at the structuring of these papers, taking account of this feedback.

1 considemgwhether it would be beneficial to regularly review the continued avoidance of debt,izieeo$ the cash buffer, the
dividendpolicy and approach to foreign exchange management. This would at least be useful for any rexecative director
joining the Board to understand the rationale and to corroborate part of the risk appetite.

1 consideing, in light of the strategic priority of having thight quality anchumberof employees, that th@eople plan does include
keeping theboard informed on recruitment and retention data, provides information on training development and induction, and
shows how skills gaps are being filled or not. This will require better people data and is currently on the list of IT pegssischeach
year.

Alongside the external evaluation, the board did its usual internal assessment of performance against th&\@akshsp board job
specification. The conclusion was that the board is noagetffectiveaswe wouldaspireto be; it is engaged and committed and board
papers are well structured to enable quality discussions and informed decision making. Thenévexsalicommitmat from the board to
doing what is right for Games Workshop in the long term. There is a good balance of tenure with rexenotives joining in recent
years supporting the valuable long service of the executive directors but theredésgnition that it will take time for the newer members

of the board to become more fully embedded in Games Wagudsshop' s

bring avariedperspective from outside Games Worksh@je board hs agreed that there is value in reviewing our latgnding
principles and policies and reconfirming our position on these to ensure clarity and alignment for the Games Workshopthedtdue.

As noted above, the neaxecutive chair and the CE@already cedeveloping a plan within the board agenda going forward to ensure
that feedback from this review is considered and appropriately addressed.

The next externally facilitated review will take place in 2024/25.

Board committees

Theboad has three principal commi ttees, all with written terms o
are available on application to the company secr et arragtarydotall t he C
three committees. The chairs of the audit and risk committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee will be

available at the AGM to answer any questions.

Audit and risk committee

The audit and risk committee currently comm@ssthe norexecutive directors and is chaired by Randal Casson who is a chartered

accountant and has significant relevant financial and accounting knowledge and experience. In the period between Sailis Matthe

standing down in November 2021 and June 2®2,ai ne O' Donnel | was both a member and i n
be a member following the appointment of Randal Cassosofas comn
reference include monitoring the integqriy of t he financial statements and other anno!

performance including reviewing significant financial reporting judgements, internal control and risk assessment anducesgingview
the scope, resultsandeffet i veness of the external and internal audits and

Audit and risk committee report

A more detailed description of the activities of the audit and risk committee and the internal control and riskemardgystems that are
in place are discussed in the audit and risk committee repogiages 3 to 37.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee comprises the rerecutive directors and is chaired by dddrewis. The remuneration committee
comprisesthenoe x ecuti ve directors and is chaired by John Brewi s. El a
2021 until the appointment of Randal Casson in July 2022. The remuneration commitieallyaneets at least three times a year and is
responsible for making recommendations to the board on remuneration policy for all executive directors and senior management

(including determining specific remuneration packages, terms of employment and'ipeniice incentive arrangements). The procedures

and guidelines used by the remuneration committee in determining remuneration are outlined in the separate remunerationTiegor
remuneration committee held four scheduled meetings in the year, which witeaded by all members of the committee. The

commi ttee meets without the executive directors at | east annus

Remuneration report
The Company’'s policy on executiiwe rda mwercdroatsi’ors ad md i ceest, aiplrso fa ft
non-executive directors are set out in the board report on remuneraborpages 3 to 48.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee comprises the nemecutive directorsandidqicai r ed by El ai ne O’ Donnel | . It i
approval by the board, candidates for appointment to the board. The committee regularly reviews the structure, size ansitetmmpo

(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversifythe board and gives consideration to succession planning for directors and

other senior executives, taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group and the skills and erpéeeis®m the

board in the future.

As CEO, KeviRountree was invited to attend a meeting of the committee and present his current senior management team structure and
to discuss succession planniByccession planning for the executives and the senior management team will always be a key business risk
and the committee has committed to reviewing progress on this samually going forward. The committee held four scheduled

meetings in the year which were attended by all members of the committee.

Appointments to the board

After announcing that Sigl Matthews was stepping down from the board in November 2021, the nomination committee ran a process to
find a new norexecutive director and chair of audit and risk committee. Finding the right people has always been one of our biggest
challenges, includg for our board. We take our time to ensure that we run a process free from any bias and we hold our resolve to never
compromise our high standards of culturaiMiben assessing potential candidates. Sometimes this means that the recruitment process can
become quite elongatedbut we believe that it is always better to do what is right than what is easgr Aft extensive search process

starting in November 2021 and concluding in May 2022, Randal Casson was offered the job and joined tbe bdaid2022.

Newly appointed directors are given training appropriate to the level of their previous experiencexdoutive directors meet regularly
with members of the executive and other staff within the Group. In addition, site visits ensure that tkexeoutive directors gain first
hand experience of developments within the Group.

Any director appointed during the year is requiredandseekder t he
election by the shareholders at threext AGM.

Stakeholder engagement
The Company understands the importance of engaging with our stakeholders. The board seeks to understand the views &hdfinteres
the stakeholder groups detailed below to ensure that these are always consideredtad pay decision making.

Shareholders

We maintain an open dialogue with our shareholders. On a continuing basis the Company encouragay temmunication with its
institutional and private shareholders and responds promptly to queries receiveaerim writing or directly through its investor
relations websitejnvestor.gamesvorkshop.com In addition to the annual report and half yearly report, the rexecutive chair,
committee chairs and the CEO and CFO are available to meet and do meshavitholders and potential shareholders to discuss any
questions they may have and ensure that the board has a clear understanding of the views of shareholders. Any issa¢Sacising
meetings are reported to and considered by the board. In 2021/22eratliscussed were in relation to performance of the Group
throughout the year. We try to ensure our shareholders have a good understanding of our strategy, business model and culture.
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Our people

We rely on the hard wrk and creativity of employees to make sure we drive the creation of value in the long term. We engage with our
employees through formal and informal meetings, which this year has included the GWGCF up until November 2021, more recently
replaced by the qarterly territory/departmental meetings as well as the monthly staff global newsletters and local works councils. The
matters discussed at the GWGCF and quarterly briefings in particular were circulated to the board and discussed at biogsitmeet

ensue we understand the views and concerns of employees. Throughout the year, members of the board have attended both the GWGCF
and the quarterly briefing meetings to help increase board engagement and visibility with employees.

Customers

We engage with aucustomers through our retail stores, our social media sites, and through warhaconanunity.com. This allows
two-way communication with our customers. Any recurring topics or points of note are shared with and considered by the baard. Sen
managementlso visit retail stores as well as independent retailers to help understand customer views.

Suppliers

The integrity of our supply chain is an essential part of ensuring we design and make great products. Although asyaimericetd

group we ae in control of large parts of the design and manufacturing process, it is important that our suppliers share the samdstanda
and ethics as we do. We have strong partnerships with our key suppliers that have been built up over a number of yeanes weayet

the best materials through a stahlesliableand responsiblesupply chain.

Culture
Companies are run by people. Games Workshop is run by people. How our people get on with the task of running Games Warkshop a
how they get on with one anothds vital.

How we behave does matter. Therefore, what we are like does matter.

This is why we make such efforts to recruit people who are likely to have the right qualities to be successful at tearjabing we do is
for the good of Games@W'r k shop, and thereby our customers and coll eagues al
none of us is more important than this ultimate goal. This is a huge challenge and it requires lots of humility, honesty agel

That ishumility in recognising we must put Games Workshop's needs first, honesty to identify truly those occasions when we are being
driven by our ego or our selfishness, and courage to do something about it.

It is always better to work amongst nice peoplelao have fun. We love that too. However, the behaviours we are looking for are these
consistency, clarity, firmness, fairness, openness amdwei nt egr i
would expect to see:

1 an absalite belief that it is better to do what is right rather that what is easy;

1 adetermination to be cheerful and confident and passionate about this, the best of all jobs;

1 an egofree environment this leads to people who put the business first and dba¥e private agendas, people who welcome
newcomers that bring the skills we need, people who can criticise themselves and our business but are justly proudvaf their o
and our business’'s achievements; and

1 an absolute commitment to the niche market busisenodel and the quality of our products and services.

Conflicts of interests

The Company’'s articles of association take account flctofcert ai n
interests. These provisions permit theard to consider, and if thought fit, to authorise situations where a director has an interest that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company. The board has adopted procedures for the appumbatonflicts.

T he b oowergitd asithopise conflicts are operating effectively and the procedures are being followed.

Substantial shareholdings
The following interests in 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 29 May 2022 have been discldSethfzatyte

No. of shares %
Baillie Gifford 4,372,095 13.3
BlackRock 2,072,762 6.3
Schroder Investment Management 1,977,186 6.0
Vanguard Group 1,568,241 4.8
abrdn 1,163,362 35
Sanford Deland Asset Management 1,135,000 3.5
Capital Group 1,085,916 3.3
JP Morgan Asset Management 1,031,770 3.1

The Company has not been notified of any changes in these interests sinperibeéend. The Company has not been notified of any
other substantial shareholdings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Statemert of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Company has complied with all of the provisions set out in the Code, with the exceptions of the following:

1 compliance with the requiremerfor share awards, granted to promote lotgrm shareholéhgs, to be subject to a total vesting
and holding period of five years or moas described in the remuneration report on pagje and
T the period during which EIl aine O Donnell acted asitandbt h che

risk committeeas detailed on page 31

On behalf of the board

9 hQ52yyStt
Non-executive chair
25 July 2022
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

The report details the role of the audit and risk committee and the work it has undertakemgathe year as well as its meeting in July
2022 when this annual report and financial statements were approved.

Committee membership

The audit and risk committee currently comprises the three-egacutive directors and is chaired by Randal Cassorredamtly joined

the board following his retirement from the accounting firm, PwC BaRy Matthews served as chair of the committee until November
2021, when she stepped down from the board. I n nndll,echap & the boadtd, b e t v
served as interim chair of the audit and risk committee. She ceased to be a member of the committee on the appointmeddlof Ran

Casson on 1 July 2022. The board considers that as serving chairs during the year up to puiflitési@mnual report, each of Sally

Matt hews, Randal Casson and El aine O Donnell have r eaiasand r el e v
their previous executive roles. Members of the committee can also demonstrateaalth of experience across the manufacturing and

media sectors through their current and previous roles.

Significant issues considered by the audit and risk committee

The committee had four scheduled meetings during the year which were attended bgrabens of the committee. It has an agenda
linked to the events in the Group’'s financial <calendaresent The e X
and the chair and members of the committee have direct contact with the audibheaas required. During the year the committee:

reviewed the haHyear and fullyear results;

received and considered, as part of the review of the annual financial statements, reports from the external auditoréhobtpe
auditor's Group audit pla for the year and the results of the annual audit. These reports included the scope of the annual audit, the
approach adopted by the auditor to address and conclude upon key estimates and other key audit areas, the basis on which the
auditor assesssmateriality, the terms of engagement for the auditor and an ongoing assessment of the impact of future accounting
developments on the Group;

I  considered whether the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable. In doing so, the committee reviewedussedigith
management the content and appropriateness of the information included within the 2022 annual report. This provided the
committee with the supporting detail to ensure that it was in a position to report to the board that the 2022 annual, tajert as a
whole, was fair, balanced and understandable. This was on the basis that the business description, business model and strategy
agreed with its own understanding of the Group, and the balance in the reporting of performance reflected botreositivegative

i ssues and reflected the Group’s activities during the year,;
considered the effectiveness and independence of the external auditor. The auditor specifically demonstrated profesgiticiahsce
and challenged management assumptions;

made a ecommendation to the board to appoint KPMG as external auditor;

revi ewed t he Co mpuinfees and gnauled appropriate safeguards are in place;

considered and agreed the internal audit work programme and received regular reports onytigskes arising from its

implementation during the year; and

9 reviewed reports on the key business risks, including a review of the internal control processes used to identify, mimititigate

the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties.

f
f

=a =4 = =

The ommittee received, reviewed and challenged reports from management and the external auditor setting out the significannissue
relation to the 2022 annual report and made their own assessment. These issues were discussed and challenged with mahaggment
the year. They were also discussed with the auditor at the time the committee reviewed and agreed the’su@hitmp audit plan and at
the conclusion of the audit of the financial statements. The issues that were discussed were:

9 recognition of roy#ty income and receivables: the committee considered the recognition or royalty income as revenue in the current
year and agreed that the reclassification of this in the pperiod was appropriate;

9 accounting for righf-use assets and lease liabiltiander IFRS 16: in light of the magnitude of the rifhise assets and lease
liabilities and the manual nature of some of the processes used to account for this, the committee reviewed the accodnting an
concluded it was appropriate;

f ESG and climate kislisclosures.

The committee calls upon the external auditor, the internal auditor and the executive directors to attend formal meetiegsige].

These meetings are held at least three times a year. The external and internal auditors are giverottendygo raise any matters or
concerns they may have in the absence of the executive directors at separate meetings with the audit and risk comnsttdmor it
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Auditor@ independence

The committee review the independence of the external auditor by assessing the arrangements for the-day management of the

audit relationship as well as reviewing the audisareport which describes their procedures for identifying and reporting conflicts of
interest. To maintain the auditds independence, the committee has also established the policy that the primary role of the external
auditor is to perform services directly related to their audit responsibilities. Anyaualit services are approved by the comiaé&. Non

audit fees paid to the auditor amounted taitin the year. The Group uses other advisers for taxation advice and other services. The audit
fees are disclosed in nof

The audit and risk committee considers theagpointment of the externahuditor each year, as well as remuneration and other terms of
engagement. In 2020/21, the committee ran a comprehensive and competitive audit tender process. The decision to appoag KRMG
new auditor to theGroup was ratified at the 2021 AGM. The awittee now recommends the rappointment of KPMG as external
auditor at the 2022 AGM. There are currently no contractual obligations which restrict the choice of external auditor.

Internal control

The directors recognise that they have overall respoligifor ensuring that the Group maintains a sound system of internal control to
safeguard sharehol ders’ invest ment and the Group' s agegiské s, andc
that may prevent the Group from achiegiits business objectives, rather than to eliminate these risks. However, even the most effective
system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have established an ongoing procesglémtifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group, which
has been in place from the start of tiperiod until the date of approval of this report. This process is regularly reviewed by the committee
and the board throughout thgear.

The effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control is regularly reviewed by the committee and the board. Theorevigwall

material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. The moaftoangol procedures is
achieved through regular review by the CFO and the company secretary, reporting to the committee and to the board. thisoeess
considers whether significant risks have been identified, evaluated and controlled and whashsigaificant weaknesses are promptly
remedied and indicate a need for more extensive monitoring. Regular reporting by senior management ensures that, as$érlastpe
controls and safeguards are being operated appropriately. This process isezeddiy the audit and risk committee alongside the
adequacy of the risk management and internal controbntrdgndt e ms,
risk management systems are considered to be appropriate.

The Grouphas continued its programme of internal audit reviews during the year. The audit and risk committee agrees an annual internal
audit plan, focusing on business specific issues. Actions agreed by management, in response to recommendations manfesdwe foll

The board, with advice from the audit and risk committee, has completed its annual review of the system of internal odrisdeadisfied
that it has acted appropriately and in accordance with that guidance. During the course of its reviewysftéme sf internal control, the
board has not identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant. Therefore,
confirmation in respect of necessary actions is not considered appropriate.

Internal audit

The nternal audit team follows a programme of activities that are closely aligned with principal operational risks. Actiwitieaducted
either by a dedicated internal auditor, an internal team that is independent of the area under review or by an epdetyiadlecided on a
case by case basis. In all cases the review is conducted on behalf of the committee and reports back to them. Repmstaigsse with
the committee and a remediation plan agreed by management to improve controls where approfietethe year13internal audit
reviews were completed. The committee can confirm that the quality, experience and expertise of the function is appropriate.

Risk management

The committee is responsible for assessing the scope and effectiveness oftdmasgstablished by management to identify, assess,
manage and monitor financial and néinancial risksA description of the principal risks and the strategies to manage these risks are
included on pagéd?7.

Throughout 2021/22 work has been ongoingteasure the impact of each operational risk to better understand the mitigating actions
necessary alongside prograsside oneach of these actions. The committee is satisfied that good progress has been made on the
development of the risk register in thigay throughout the year. In addition, there has been good progress made on the documentation of
controls testing of the key operational risks into the internal audit programme in the year. The committee expects thaigrasnme will
continue to evolvedrther throughout 2022/23.
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Process for preparing consolidated financial statements
The Group has established internal control and risk management systems in relation to the process for preparing thetedrfadideial
statements. The key features thfese systems are:

1 Management regularly monitors and considers developments in accounting standards and best practice in financial reporting and
reflects developments in the financial statements where appropriate. The external auditor also keeps theteerapprised of these
developments.

1 The committee and the board review the draft financial statements. The committee receives reports from management and the
external auditor on significant judgements, changes in accounting policies, changes in acoestittiages and any other appropriate
changes to the financial statements.

1 Theannualfinancial statements are subject to external audit.

Anti-bribery andanti-corruption

Bri bery and corrupt practices ar e n ebustness dbjectivesongoadsdor within busmess pur s u
relationships, or the actions of its employees and associated parties. This commitment is driven from the chief execthiy&aad

throughout the entire Group and a commitment is expected of all whokweth the Group and who act on our behalf or are employed or
engaged in any capacity by us. The Games Workshojpanti bery pol icy reflects Games Workshop
bribery.

Suppliers are also required to follow an ethical iming audit programme, detailed on pagé, of which Games Workshop is a buyer
member.

Whistleblowing

The board is responsible for the review of the Compasiginpst pr oc e
from the audit aml risk committee. Whistleblowing arrangements are in place @bésstaff who may, in confidenceyant toraise

concerns about possible financial reporting irregularitléan employee does not feel comfortable reporting any potential, suspected,

attempt ed or actual breaches of company policy, they can rtteeport s
using a dedicated whistleblowing email address. Staff can report any concerns by email without disclosing their idetdithehovish

to. This whistleblowing procedure is communicated to staff within relevant employee policies. Games Workshop endeavotestto pr

those who make disclosures of wrongdoing. Any reports made in good faith will be dealt with in confidenceefttettigoossible), and

the reporting employee shall not be discriminated against as a result of their actions.

On behalf of the board

R Casson
Audit and risk committee chair
25 July 2022
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

The remuneration reportdr the periodended 29 May 2022 has been prepared on behalf of the board by the remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and-BieelilBompanies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Rdations 2008, as amended, and meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code.

This remuneration report consists of two parts:

1 The annual report on remuneration, which setut payments made to executive directors and +axecutive directors and details the
relationship between company performance and remuneration for the 2021/22 finapeiadd. This 2021/22 report is subject to an
advisory vote at the 2022 AGM.

1 Thediret or s’ remuneration policy, which sets out the Company’s
into account in setting that policy. This directors’edaemuner
proxy vote at the 2021 AGM, at which date it became effective.

2021/22 overview

1 As in the prior year, no Coviglated government furlough support, subsidies or business rates discounts were utilised during the year.
1 Apay increase was applied on 1 J@&@21which averaged 4.1%crossall staff, except for the two executive directors.

1 Dividenddeclaedwere made at the same level as last year.

Company performance
2021/22coresales performance of37 millionwas another record, consolidating year year growth. Core sales were £221 million in
2017/18, £257 million in 2018/19, £270 million in 2019/20 and £353 million in 2020/21.

While coregross margin 067.1%was depressed frori2.7%in the prior yeaythis still delivered record profit before taof £156 million.
(2020/21: £151 million.) This performance was delivered despite external and faeenomic factors and is the result of a great deal of
effort and skill, delivered throughout Games Workshop.

Groupwide remuneration

Group Profit Sharecheme

Under the remuneration policy approved at the 2021 AGM, all eligible employees (excluding the executive directors) @k withird
the Group Profit Share scheme. Cash payments were made to eligible staff in December 2021 and May 2022 Gndep tReofit Share
Scheme. For 2021/22 each eligible employee received a total of £3,500 (2021: £3n0@0l £9.9million 2021:Profit share and
discretionary payment£13.2 million).

Senior management bonus

As a result of discussions betweeegvi Rountree and the committee, the committee agreed to support a discretionary bonus payable in
cash, to a number of individual managers who contributt®d to tF
support this proposal in recaogtion of the extraordinary effort and skill required to deliver these results.

Exceptional Bonus Award
In 2021, in consultation with shareholders, the committee undertook to articulate exceptional performance and to apprperiateise
its discretian in making any Exceptional Bonus Award in future years.

For the financial and operational performance reasons outlined last year, particularly the continued groatasales from £353 million

in 2020/21 to 887 million in2021/22 and growth in proit before taxation from £151 million in 2020/21 to a profit before taxation D56

million in2021/22 t he commi ttee agreed that the threshold for ‘excepti
applied discretion and deemed it appnogite to award each of the executive directors an Exceptional Bonus Award of 90% of base salary,
which is 60% of the 150% maximum allowed under the new policy.

The remuneration committee wil!/| ret ai n drédaffirmgliis granisetb éxerciseitso a s s e s
discretion appropriately and to explain the circumstances where an Exceptional Bonus Award is paid.

As a board we have high performance expectations, and the executive directors are even more demanding of themdealf¢heir
teams. Consequently, due to the stretching nature of underlying performance criteria for the Exceptional Bonus Awardpblitythe
allows, the committee does not necessarily anticipate that awards will be made under the Exceptional Bartige@ch and every year.

The remuneration committee notes that our policy will never fully address the shortfall in total remuneration comparedrajtréy of

FTSE peers because neither the committee nor the executives themselves believe thatL®@Psi n | i ne wi t h Games W
values.
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Looking to the future, the committee will continue to monitor the consistency of the remuneration policy across the Grioapweitv to
ensuring that an appropriate reward structure exists toagnise and retain our key executives. As part of this process the committee will
continue to keep under review and discuss reguldhg effectiveness of th€o mp a mpproach to remuneration and its component

parts.

The committee will continue to eyage key stakeholders during the years ahead in order to consider any modifications which should be
made beyond the 2020 changes to executive base pay or the operation of the Group Profit Share scheme and the ExceptighabRbnu
described within thiseport, which we submit to shareholders for approval at the 2022 AGM.

John Brewis
Chair
Remuneration committee

Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration policy
This part of the report sets out tohedbydhartoldasatrtte 202rAMuner at i on

The aim of the Group’s remuneration policy is to r eWwestotalisizé ai r |l vy
of the remuneration package for executive directors is judged by and comipétk the remuneration packages of similar companies,
having regard to:

the size of the company, its turnover, profits and number of people employed
the diversity and complexity of the business

the geographical spread of the business

the growth and expnsion profile

= =& —a -

Under our terms of reference, the remuneration committee is able to employ remuneration consultants to provide refereraztymed
which is subject to independent evaluation by the committee. During 2021/22, no remuneration consueretemployed to review
executive rewards.

The Co mp aexegutive directons are remunerated with fees in line with market rates. They do not receive any pension or other
benefits, other than the reimbursement of reasonable expenses, and they doamtitipate in any bonus or share schemes.

Remuneration policy table

The table below summarises each of the components of the remuneration package for directors of the Company which conpolisg the
approved at the 2021 AGM. The committee may make mihanges to the policy, which do not have a material advantage to the
directors, to aid its operation or implementation, taking account of the interests of shareholders but without the neexktshegeholder
approval.

Component Purpose and link to straigy  Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics
Salary Core element of fixed Reviewed annually and ually There is no prescribed Not applicable,
remuneration, reflecting the fixed for 12 months from 1 maximum annual increase ir although the
size and scope of the role.  June. There is no entittlement salary. individual?’
to an annual increase. contribution and
Purpose is to recruit and Salaries are reviewed taking overall performance is
retain directors of the Takes into consideration the into consideration salary one of the
calibre required for the di rector’ s r ol increases acrossthe Gnou considerations in
business. determining the level
Takes into account prevailing Increases out of line with the of any salary increase.
market conditions and is workforce are carefully

aligned with staff pay reviews. considered but may be

awarded taking all relevant
Externally benchrarked by factors into account, for
independent remuneration example, increases in scope
consultants from time to time and responsibility or salary
against companies of a simila falling significantly below
size and complexity. market positioning.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum potential value Peformance metrics
Benefits Ensures the overall package The executive directors each Set at a level which the Not applicable.
is competitive. receive life assurance cover. committee considers
appropriate against the
Purpose is to recruit and The sharesave schemeisa market and provides a
retain directors of the calibre HMRC approved monthly sufficient level of benefit

required for the business. savings scheme facilitating  based on individual
the purchase of shares ata circumstances.

Participation in the discount.

sharesave scheme creates Sharesave contributions are
staff alignment with the Where appropriate other as permitted inaccordance
Group and promotes a sea  benefits may be offered with the relevant tax

of ownership. includingallowances for legislation.

relocation and other
expatriate benefits.

Pension To provide cost effective Participation in a group Up to 7.5% of salary up to a Not applicable.
retirement benefits. personal pension scheme. maximum of £4,000 per

annum. Subject to changes

in pensiontapering by

HMRC, any excess between

7.5% of salary and £4,000 is

paid as additional salary (ne

of employers’

insurance).
Exceptional Rewards exceptional Any payout is determined by Maximum potential value is The payment is at the
Bonus Award  performance. the committee afterthe 150% of base salary. discretion of the
periodend, based on committee based on
performance. exceptional financial
and operational
Awards are payable in cash performance being
with 67% of the net amount achieved during the
required to be invested in the year.
Company’s sha
expectation that these are
held for at least three years.
Non-executive Sole element of non Fees are reviewed annually  Fees are based on the level Not applicable.
di r ect o executive director taking into account time of fees paid to non
remuneration is set at a leve commitment, responsibilities executive directors serving
that reflects market and fees paid by comparable on boards of listed
conditions. companies. companies of a similar size
and compéxity.

Additional fees are paid to the
senior independent director
to reflect additional
responsibilities.

Nonrexectuive directors are
entitled to claim reasonable
out of pocket expenses in
connection with the
performance of their duties.

Changes to the remuneration policy

As described in the first section of this remuneration report, under the policy approved at the 2021 AGM, the remuneratitittem
applied the revised terms of the Group Profit Share schameExceptional Bonus award, for the full year. No other changes have been
implemented during the year.

Explanation of the performance metrics chosen

The performance measures selected are al i gn eanuneiatiorncormntitee Co mp any
considers a basket of financial measures when applying discretion to any payments under the terms of this policy.
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lllustration of application of the policy

The charts below show the relative split of remuneration between fixed(page salary, benefits and pension) and variable pay

(exceptional bonus award) for each executive director on the basis of minimum remuneration, remuneration receivable forguexdan

line with the Company’'s expectations and maxi mum remunerati on.

K DRountree R F Tongue
1750 - DOFixed DVariable 1,733 1750 - DOFixed O Variable
58%
1500 + 1500 4
1250 + 1250 4 1,155
g 1000 - g 1000 b
o o
- 750 720 720 750 4
100% 100% 42%
500 " 500 A 480 280
100% 100% 42%
250 + 250 A
] T T | 0
Fixed pay Target Maximum Fixed pay Target Maximum
Minimum In line with Maximum
expectations
Fixed pay Fixed elements of salary, benefits and pension. SalaAs per minimum As per minimum
at 29 May 2022 and the value of benefits has been
assumed to be equivalent to that included in the sing
figure remuneration table on pagt.
Exceptional Bonus Award Nil Nil 150%

Remuneration and nomination committees
The remuneration committee is appointed by the board and comprises John Brewis (chair), Kate Marsh, Rantdah@ddaine

O Donnell, who was considered independent on her appoi fot ment &
setting the remuneration packages of the executive directors as well as approving their service contractsniflagian committee

comprises Elaine O Donnell (chair), John Brewis, Kate Marsh ar
composition of the board. The terms of refer endatondwebsitebot h ¢ omr

Differences in policy from the wider employee population

The Company aims to provide a remuneration package that is market competitive, complies with any statutory requiremenésp jplietli
fairly and equitably across the wider empée population. Where remuneration is not determined by statutory regulation, the Group
operates the same core principles for the wider employee population as it does for the executive directors, namely:

1 to remunerate people in a manner that allows foalility of the business and the opportunity for sustainable loergn growth
i to seek to remunerate fairly and consistently for each role with due regard to the marketplace and internal consistency
1 to apply the profit share equally to all employees (exalgdhe executive directors)

1 to encourage employees to own shares through the operation of the sharesave scheme.

As is common practice, the Company has introduced elements of variable pay through an Exceptional Bonus Award whichas theuse
executivedirectors to ensure that the overall remuneration policy remains market competitive.

Remuneration policy for new directors

When setting the remuneration package for a new executive director, the committee would seek to apply the same principles and
implement the policy framework as set out above. Base salary will be set at a level appropriate for the role and the expettience of
director being appointed. Benefits, pension and the Exceptional Bonus Award will be in line with the stated policy -@uiyaluayd,
should one be required, would be limited to the amount of salary that would be foregone.

Non-executive director fees will be set at a competitive market level, reflecting the skills, knowledge, experience, respsnaitilitime
commitment.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

5 A NB Ol 2 NIn@actsiaddNaitarof apgd@tment

Executive Date of contract Unexpired term of contract Notice period
K D Rountree 25 February 2009 Rolling contract 12 months
R F Tongue 25 March 2015 Rolling contrat 12 months
Non-executive Date of appointment Date of last reelection at an AGM Notice period

N J Donaldson* 18 April 2002 - 6 months
E O Donnell 28 November 2013 15 September 2021 6 months
J R A Brewis 20 June 2018 15 September 2021 6 months
K E Marsh 24 July 2019 15 September 2021 6 months
S Matthews** 1 November 2020 15 September 2021 6 months
R Casson 1 July 2022 - 6 months

*retired on 31 May 2021
**stepped down on 28 November 2021

5 A NB O 2 Nn@ractsiadddNadiarOof appoinnent continued

In accordance with best practice and as set out in the Code, notice periods in new service contracts for executivealizesstbet one

year. Norexecutive director appointments are made through letters of appointment for ay@ee tem, subject to election and re

el ection by the Company’'s shareholders in accordance beith the
inspected at the Company’'s registered office.

Policy on payment for loss of office

Ifanexecut e director’s employment is to be terminated, the committ
breach of the service agreement by the director) is to agree a termination payment based on the value of base salaryamtdatont

pension and other benefits that would have accrued to the director during the contractual notice period. Depending oriithapar
circumstances, a director may work the notice period, be placed on garden leave for some or all of the notice pedetyeml payment

in lieu of notice in accordance with the service agreement. The committee will consider mitigation to reduce the ternpagtient to a

leaving director when appropriate to do so, having regard to the specific circumstances.

Nonexecut ve directors appointments may be terminated without com
External appointments

The executive directors may each accept one external appointment with the prior approval of the board, from which anyfees ma

retained. At present, neither of the executive directors hold any outside directorship.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
TheGroup aims to provide a remuneration package to all employees that is market competitive, complies vetatatoyy requirements
and is applied fairly and equitably across the employee population, taking into account local employment market conditions.

The committee takes into account the general basic salary increase being offered to employees elsethee@ dup when annually

reviewing the salary increase and remuneration of the executive directors. Employees are not consulted in respect ofrhoahtien.

The committee also reviews general workforce remuneration and the alignment of incentiveGwithne s Wor kshop' s cul t i
remains appropriate.

Engagement with the workforce took place through attendance by committee members at the Games Workshop Global Communications
Forum meetings and attendance at the new quarteipartmentalmeetings, which all of our neexecutive directors are encouraged to

attend by rotation. This has been bolstered by the recent appointment of John Brewis as Hesemirtive director responsible for

developing a plan for more effective board and employee engeay.

Consideration of shareholder views

The committee takes into account shareholder feedback received on remuneration matters, including comments in relation to the
resolutions at the AGM in addition to any additionahaments in correspondenaeceiveddirectly bythe Company. The committee would
seek to engage directly with major shareholders should any material changes be made to the policy.
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Annual report on remuneration (subject to audit)
The tables below set out in a single figure the tothuneration, including each element, for each person who served as a director of the
Company during the financiperiodsended 29 May 2022 and 30 May 2021.

52 weeksended 29 May 2022
Pension related Total fixed Sharesave Exceptional Total variable

Salary/fees benefits pay option  Bonus Award pay Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00(

K D Rountree 716 4 720 - 607 607 1,327
R F Tongue 476 4 480 - 405 405 88t
N J Donaldson* - - - - - - -
E O’ Donn 144 - 144 - - - 144
J R A Brewis 62 - 62 - - - 62
K E Marsh 54 - 54 - - - 54
S Matthews** 53 - 53 - - - 53
Total 1,505 8 1,513 - 1,012 1,012 2,52

*N J Donaldson retired from the board on 31 May 2021
**S Matthews stepped down from the board on 28 November 2021

52 weeksnded 30 May 2021

Restated Restated
Pension related Total fixed Sharesave  Exceptional Total variable Restatec
Salaryfees benefits pay option  Bonus Award pay Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
K D Rountree 649 4 653 6 613 619 1272
R F Tongue 409 4 413 6 388 394 807
N J Donaldson 103 - 103 - - - 103
E O Donn 93 - 93 - - - 93
J R A Brewis 55 - 55 - - - 55
K E Marsh 52 - 52 - - - 52
S Matthews* 30 - 30 - - - 30
Total 1,391 8 1,399 12 1,001 1,013 2412

*S Matthews was appointed on 1 November 2020

In the priorperiod, the single figure table disclosed the gain on sharesave options exercised by the directors,00@288er than the
value of the sharesave options granted in the year of,80@ Disclosure of the remuneration with respect to tgeant of these gtions
should have been included in the single figure table in 2Th&prior periodsinglefigure table has been restated accordingly.

Thefigures in the single figure tables above are derived as follows:

Salary/fees the amount of salary/fees received the year including any additional salary due in excess of the pension tapering limits.
Pension related benefitst he cash value of pension contributions received by
contribution into the group persaal pension scheme.

Sharesaveption - the value of the sharesave option granted is based ordifference between theshare price at grant and thaffered

exercise price.

Exceptional Bonus Awar@®0% of the maximum potential award of 150% of salary ac&sued in relation to performance in 2021/22 and

100% of salary was accrued in relation to performance in 2020/21.

No taxable benefiter payments for loss of officevere paidduring 2021/22 and 2020/21.

CEO remuneratiomestated
Total remuneration % of maximum exceptior % of maximum profit sha

Peiod CEO £000 bonus award pai paid ***
2022 K D Rountree 1,327 60 n/a
2021 K D Rountree 1,272 10C 50
2020 K D Rountree 667 20 10C
2019 K D Rountree 1,077 20 10C
2018 K D Rountree 438 10C 10C
2017 K D Rountree 401 n/a 10C
2016 K D Rountree 402 n/a -
2015 K D Rountree 168 n/a -
2015 T H F Kirby* 291 n/a -
2014 T H F Kirby 511 n/a -
2013 T H F Kirby 132 n/a 54
2013 M N Wells** 774 n/a -

*T H F Kirby stepped down as CEO ob8&8tember 2014 and K D Rountree was appointed CEO with effect from 1 January 2015.
*M N Wells resigned on 31 January 2013 and so all of his remuneration for 2012/13, including the payment for compendassrofo
office, is included in this table.

*** Maximum profit share paid was between £1,000 and £250.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued
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The table below shows how the percentage change in thiath@i rectc
average remuneration and profit share of all empl oy empulatien t hi n
(excluding the directors) as these represent the most appropriate comparator.
Executive directors Nonexecutve directors Former directors
Wider

workforce K D Rountree R F Tongde E O'Donnell JR Mrewis K E Marsh S Matthew8 N J Donaldsdn
Salary/Fees
2021/22 4.1% 10.2% 16.3% 54.5% 11.7% 3.0% 3.0% -
2020/21 restated 4.0% 17.7% 31.2% 62.0% 6.4% 16.9% - -26.2%
Bonus
2021/22 -18.7% -1.0% 4.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2020/21 78.2% 483.8% 546.7% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Profit sharé
discretionary payment
2021/22 -30.0% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2020/21 400.0% -50.0% -50.0% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

1. Theincrease irsalarypercentagan both2021/22 and 2020/21s a result of a salary increase on 1 November Z626wing a
benchmarking exercise

2E O' Donnel | wa®xeatvedndirorn ledanuagy02h o n

3. J R A Brewiwas appointed senior independent director on 1 January 2021

4. K E Marsh was appointed on 24 July 2019

5. S Matthews was appointed on 1 November 2020 and stepped down from the board\mv@iber2021. The percentage change in
her base salary has beealculated on an annualised basis.

6. N J Donaldson retired from the board on 31 May 2021 and earned no salary within the year

The wider workforce salary change for 2020/21 has been resi@tedo a change in the calculation in the current yddre séary
increase is now calculated at an employee level.

The bonus included within the wider workforce is only payable to a small number of employees.

The profit share payment to the CEB@d CFQvas £500 in 2020/21 ambt applicablein 2021/22 in accordarewith thechange in
remuneration policyin the prior year meaning directors are no longer eligible for the profit shEne wider workforce was paid a profit
share/discretionary payment of £3,500 in 2021/22 and £5,000 in 2020i2the prior year, the ptential value of the profit share scheme
was £1,000 per year and a further discretionary payment was made. In the current year, the profit share scheme now alleiaréoof
up to 10% of core operating profit.

Remuneration cost and profit share/digtionary bonus for the wider workforce have been calculated using the average exchange rates
for the period ended30 May 2021 for both periods.

CEO pay ratio

We publish our CEO pay ratio in accordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Re@@a8oln order to calculate our CEO
pay ratios for 2021/22, we opted for Option A as this is the most statistically accurate method. For Option A, the taalUfiEEation for
all the Group’'s UK e mp lperipdasadsterniimerandtthbse empleyees ara nartked framnoav tochigha Based on
their total FTE remuneration. The employees whose remuneration places them at the 25th, 50th (median) and 75th percetstiteepoi
then identified.

2021/22

CEO 25 percentile 50 percentile 750 percentile
Pay ratio 56:1 46:1 351
Total pay(E000) 1,327 24 29 37
Base salary (£000) 716 21 27 31
2020/21Restated

CEO 25 percentile 50 percentile 75" percentile
Pay ratio 56:1 441 331
Total pay(£000) 1,272 23 29 38
Base salary @00) 649 18 24 29

To calculate these ratios, we determined the full time equivalent (FTE) pay and benefits for all UK employees in thepriadcia
2021/22 based on actual earnings reports as at 29 May 2022. The pay and benefits used to calctaditestimelude basic salary,
pension, bonus payments, profit share, sharesave option and additional payments in relation to their role. Where an ejoiplegiqeart
way through the year, the monthly FTE pay was calculated and applied to the months thefpieined.
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CEO pay ratio continued
In the year, the CEO was awarded an Exceptional Bonus Award of £607,500, (60% of the maximum 150% of base salary altbered unde
new policy) compared to £613,000 (100% of the maximum 100% of base salary allowethenald policy).

The multiple of the CEO' s remuneration, compared to pemgcenti | €
judgements around executive reward. The committee accepts that the result of the remuneration pollepavith the executive
directors’ remuneration being a considerable multiple, compar e
remuneration and the CEO multiple, the committee has taken a number of themes into account:

f Oneofthequidig principles of our policy is that in order to ‘attr

in line with what Games Workshop employees could earn in a broadly similar role in a broadly similar organisation. tAgethis is
throughout the organisation it must also apply to our executive directors. The amount our executive directors could eagn in oth
organisations is available for all to read in the publicly availabfeial reportpublished by other companies in the FTHie absence
of LTIPs means that the potential total remuneration available to our executive directors is significantly lower when dampare
other companies within the FTSE 250.
I Games Workshop has an established track record of internal promotion, blenitteeéxternal recruits who fit with the organisation
and bring additional expertise. While the remuneration packages of our two executive directors are significant, the theythave
both achieved these positi onwithté Gompanyisevidencetthatotherscoulddtgo. y ear s
I This multiple is clearly largest when compared to employees at the lower end of the pay spectrum, but this is moderatesl to so
extent by the Company’'s decision to:
-pay the minimum living wage, regadeds of age
-ensure that Exceptional Bonus Awards are not made to executive directors unless the Group Profit Share Scheme is also paid
-award the Group Profit Share equally, to all staff, which represents a higher percentage payment to lower paid staff.

We are satisfied that the ratios accurately reflect our approach to pay and benefits.

Share price changes
The directors

remuneration does not vary depending on share ¢

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following able sets out the percentage change in dividends, profit attributable to owners and employee remunerationgeritite
ended 29 May 2022, compared to tperiodended 30 May 2021:

2022 2021
£m £m % chang
Total staff costs 105.7 99.9 5.8
Profit atributable to owners 128.4 122.0 -0.E
Dividends declared 77.1 76.9 -

Statement of voting at the last AGM
At the last AGM, significant votes on remuneration related resolutions were cast as follows:

Votes for % of vote Votes against % of vote Votes withheld % of vote
To approve the remuneration policy 20,355,278 81.7 3,488,250 14.0 1,082,664 4.3
To approve the remuneration report 20,074,607 80.5 4,109,527 16.5 741,058 3.0

The board of Games Workshop remains fully committed to shareholdemgengent and welcomes ongoing dialogue with all investors

Implementation statement
A summary of the remuneration arrangements in 2021/22 and how the policy will be applied during 2022/23 is set out below:

The structure of the remuneration policy is clear:

The remuneration committee has an open and robust dialogue with our executives, who clearly understand the policy. dn yiearpri

preceding the approval of the amended remuneration polibg, thair of the remuneration committee directly communicatedia
consulted with all sharehol ders who hold 2% or more of the Cor

The structure of the remuneration policy is simple

The fixed element of our executiveemuneration is made up of a fixed base salary with a defined percentage pensioibatatr, which
is equal to the percentage contribution available to the wider workforce. Our policy avoids the use of additional beradifitwanmces.
The variable element of executive remuneration is made up of a single Exceptional Bonus Award,avactied at the independent
discretion of the remuneration committee in the event that proven, exceptional performance has been delivered.

The structure of the remuneration policy avoids risks

Our remuneration policy avoids the potential for reputationiaks from excessive rewards and the behavioural risks that might arise from
target-based incentive plans simply and effectiveby not including any targdtased incentives.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

The remuneration policy has predictable outesnm
The outcomes of the potential rewards are subject to clear limits and caps. The Exceptional Bonus Award is directly belatesalary
alone, with a maximum potential bonus payment of 150% annually to each of our two executive directors.

The remueration policy reflects a focus on delivery of our strategy and is aligned to company purpose, values and culture:

A focus on the longerm is deeply embedded in the strategy of the company and the behaviours and values of our two executive directors.
Oumi ssion is to ‘make the best fantasy miniatures i n |dbdlatavor | d
profit. We intend to do this forever’. ‘ For ev e rn’longtesm saccegseandy i mg
not shortterm gains.

2021/22 represents the firgteriod of implementation of the new executive remuneration policy, approved at the 2021 AGM as part of a
three-year cycleThe remuneration committee made decisions and applisgrdtion during the year, under the terms of this policy.
Overall, the aim of the remuneration committee is to operate a remuneration policy designed to;

i attract, retain and motivate high quality management and to reward them fairly and consistently;
f balance the interests of our stakeholders, particularly shareholders and the experience of the wider workforce;

f support the Company’'s strategic statement, particulusedény t he
longterm sucess, notshort er m gai ns’ ; and
T reflect the Company’s culture. This is of great sigamificance

Cmpany’ s success.

As such, the main focus of our remuneration policy continues to be orixbe &€lements of pay. The Exceptional Bonus award is just that
a reward for delivering proven, audited, perfor manc eexeclitices i s v
on the remuneration committee. There is no potentiat formulaic outcomes, which might reward poor performance.

Salary- fixed pay

While no consultants were employed to review executive remuneration during the year, the committee continues to monitee@uive
directors’ r ewar dsnjes. indodingdo,we eonstder thevarloes elentesopeaecutive benbéite salary, fixed pay,
variable pay and total remuneration. The base salaries of the executive directors were not increased during the year.

The executive directors continue teceive a pension based on a percentage of their base salary, which is equivalent to that available to
the wider workforce. At 7.5%, this is considerably lower than that shown in external analysis of employer pension allmadedes
executives elsewherim the FTSE 25This is important when comparing total fixed remuneration rather than base salary alone.

Variable pay
The maximum Exceptional Bonus Award is up to 150% of base salary for the two executive directors, per year. The perfitemaroe c
at the discretion of the remuneration committee.

‘

The remuneration policy is intended to motivate’ our manageme
The committee notes that our remuneration policy differs from that in many other companieswitaiFTSE. This is a reflection of our

belief that, culturally, our managers and colleagues want to deliver a high level of performance and the use of compleridait f

incentive programmes might have unintended consequences and do more harm than good

The committee confirmed its opinion that the remuneration package for our executive directors should not include LTIHewWY¢hae
LTIPs could have the potential to unbalance the organisation with individuals being incentivised to achieve geaf@althe expense
of the wider organisation.

The committee confirmed its belief that the recognition of exceptional performance has a potential motivational impacinsnatee on
individuals and agreed that the structure of the Exceptional Bonusrdwdesigned to recognise and reward exceptional performance of
our executive directors, remains fit for purpose.

Sharesave
A further award of options will be made under the new sharesave scheme during the year which is on the same basis agqamsvémnads
available to all eligible employees.

Stakeholder alignment and wider governance context

In order to align with the experience of shareholders, the executive directors are required to invest 67% of any cashyroeatsgpost

tax) inthe Compalys s hares on the open market, after the results have |
three years. There is no dilution of shares, no compensation for taxation issues and Exceptional Bonus Award paymeaxisciatitre

directors are subject to clawback. The committee notes that there may be more tax efficient mechanisms to achieve this shase,pur

but the executives choose not to employ these alt errthalenefitefs, be
two individuals.
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Stakeholder alignment and wider governance contexttinued

The Group Profit Share Scheme allows up to 10% of core operating profit, to be paid, equally, to all staff (other tharexsettive

directors). These paynés are also subject to the independent discretion of the remuneration committee, ensuring the variable elements

of the executive directors’ remuneration are completely aligne

In applying discretion to both thExceptional Bonus Award and the Group Profit Share scheme, the committee prevents formulaic
outcomes and strengthens the alignment of experience between awards to the executive directors, shareholders and the nkfiderewo

When considering the potei#l payment of an exceptional bonus, the committee applies discretion to a suite of financial indicators
including growth, margin, Group profit, earnings per share, cash generation and dividend payments made. If performartdfiagains
basket of criterids exceptional, the Group will have generated sufficient profit and cash to have paid dividends to shareholders and
appropriate cash payments to all staff under the Group Profit Share scheme. Each of these stakeholders are considecechhyittbe
before making bonus payments to our executive directors.

There are no elements of executive variable pay that are assigned to the achievement of spedific mom n c i a | goal s. The
is that progress with the implementation of strategic objectiveompletion of particular projects or progress with ESG elements are
fundamental to our executive directors’ roles and actfremthes ol at i c

performance of the business in the round ordivartently emphasise the priorities of a particular stakeholder.

TheExceptionalBonusAwardd o es not contain a mechanism to pay out for on t.
comparing with other FTSE companies where threshold pagsrae applied, but our position is that performance that is in line with

expectations is covered by the base salary element of the remuneration package.

The committee notes the initiatives of other companies to use ESG targets as a mechanism tbonggexwards. Our decision not to do
this should not be interpreted as a | a c-&staldishedstmimgitistatement emphasise€ S G.
our intention ‘to do this foreverhopThi ®tihhossuhlatamweemdtor emdt¢h da
introduce specific targets which might distract from or emphasise particular elements of this intent. Our expectatiolcB@hatogress is

covered by the base salary element of the remuneration package.

We are aware that the Code states that remuneration schemes should promoteédongshareholdings by executive directors to support
alignment with shareholder interests, with the Coddonasphasadi ng tF
basis and be subject to a total vesting and hol di ngoantipgeTI® od of
share awards ‘for this purpose’ are out wei guitwwedof GamesWhrkeshopantd ent i &
the potential to widen the multiple of CEO and CFO remuneration, when compared to the wider workforce.

I n association with the remuneration committee’ s | ydsiommert t o
the executive directors are not subject to@mployment nor postessation minimum shareholding requirements.

We have chosen not to impose these conditions as, based on their conduct, long service and consistent outstanding perthemance
commi ttee is satisfied that our executive director detesthehavi our

At the time of writing, both executive directors have significant shareholdings, all of which have been purchasttir personal post
tax resources.

Conclusion
The board takes seriously its responsibilities in applying the principles of UK corporate govemmamegly incentivising executive
directors and senior management forms part of this responsibility.

The committee and the board’s philosophy to pay and repely d r er
should be on the fixed elements of pay. The committee continues to discuss and is very mindful of the risks of pleastaed complex

bonus schemes driving sheterm and/or individual behaviour which are not in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. As such,
the committee has no intention of introducing any form of letegm incentives at this time. Howewethe committee undertakes to seek

to be appropriately informed on market dynamics and ekesutiMei st en
directors are appropriately rewarded, retained and motivated

Advisers
No advisors wre employed to review executive remuneration during fiegiod 2021/22.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Directors' interests in shares of the Compafsubject to audit)
The directors' interests (including their families) in the shares of the Compareyagdollows:

As at 29 May 2022 As at 30 May 2021
Ordinary shares of 5p each Ordinary shares of 5p each
Beneficial Non-beneficial Beneficial Nonbeneficial
K D Rountree 9,343 - 7,689 -
R F Tongue 7,730 - 6,860 -
E O Donnel/l 2,857 2,943 2,500 2,593
J R A Brewis 214 - 214 -
K E Marsh 378 - - -

S Matthews* - - - -
* SMatthews stepped down from the board on 28 November 2021

Share optiongsubject to audit)
Share options grantkto the directors under the sharesave scheme were as follows:

Number as & Number as at Exercise dates

31 May 2021 29 May 202 Commencement Expiry Exercise price
K D Rountree 252 252 Nov 2023 Apr 2024 £71.4627
R F Tongue 252 252 Nov 2023 Apr 2024 £71.4627

The options above were granted under the Games Workshop Group PLC 2015 Sharesave Scheme which grants options at at20% discoun
on the market price at grant. Participants save a fixed amount monthly for three years in order to fund the efettuéseption. At

exercise an individual may choose to exercise their option or have their savings repaid to them. This scheme is opigiibte all e

employees and directors who satisfy a service qualification of at least three months. There are nmarc®targets associated with

these options. No other directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Company.

The aggregate gains of directors arising from any exercise of options granted within the sharesave scheme in the pegi@8l lagin
2022 totalled £nil (2021: £239,000).

There were no movements in directors’ interests in shares of t

Performance graph

The graph below represents the comparative total shareholder returfopeance of the Company against that of the index of the FTSE
250 companies during the previous ten years. The index of the FTSE 250 companies has been used because the constituedés of th
most appropriately refl ecttoaltbretiv€indngsany’ s si ze when compared
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On behalf of the board

J R A Brewis

Chair

Remuneration committee
25 July 2022
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The directors are responsible for preparing timeualreport and the Group and paresbmpany financial sttements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and paremipany financial statements for each finang@atiod. Under that law
they are required to prepare the Group financial statementaccordance with Udopted international accounting standards and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parmrhpany financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements urilegsate satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and parest mpany and of the Group’s profit or | oss fol
parentcompany financial statements, the directors are ragdito:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable

state whether they have been prepared in accordance Wikadoptedinternational accounting standargds

assessthe Groupandparat mpany’' s ability to continue as a going concern,
concern; and

1 use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or theqoanpaty or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

= =4 —a —a

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain theoparpnéa ny ' s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuet@ny time the financial position of the parecdmpany and enable them to ensure

that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as timeyediste
necessary to enable the preparationfofancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Grqup\ard tnd
detect fraud and otheirregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for prepatiagegicreport, di r e créport, remuneration
report and corporate governancereport that complies with that law and those regulations.

Thedirectors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included@nthe any ' s
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from feigisittier
jurisdictions

In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, the financial statements will form part of thesemcralal f
report prepared using the single electronic reporting format under the TD ESEF Regulationd Theaur * s report on t hes
statements provides no assurance over the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual financial report

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

1 the financial statements, prepared accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation takeinode; and

9 the stratedc report includs a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uiesetitan
they face.

We consider the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides theimformati
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and

On behalfof the board

R F Tongue
CFO
25 July 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT®REPORT

To the members of GanmeWorkshop Group PLC

Ouropinion is unmodified
We have audited the financial statements of Games Workshop Ga@ithe Compan}) for the52 weekperiodended 29 May 2022
which comprise theonsolidated income statementonsolidated and Compargatements of comprehensive incombalance sheets,
statements of changes in total equity, cash flow statements and the related notes, including the accounting policie&.in note

In our opinion:

1 the financial statements give a true and fair view of thestato f t he Gr o u p ‘cosmpaanndy 'osf atfhfea iprasr eanst

of t he

Gr o u pperpdthem emded;t f or

t he

1 the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance witddfied international accounting standards;

1 the parentcompany financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance wigtdbfed international accounting
standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

1 the financial statements have been preparedttordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing‘(BK3 (UK) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
are described below. We believe ththe audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit
opinion is consistent with our report to the audihd riskcommittee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders on 15 September 202 heFiod of total uninterrupted engagement is for the

onefinancialperiodended 29 May 2022. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the Group in

accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Eftaalard as applied to listed public interest entities. No-aadit
services prohibited by that standard were provided.

Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiondggment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified bydisgitiubse

which had the greatest effect on: the owadiraudit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at opinadi

above, together with our &y audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those

procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, amtiselely f
purpose d, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidératl to t
opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk

Our response

Corerevenue
recognition
(Corerevenue-
£386.8 million)
Refer to pag&7

Low risk, high value

Core revenue relates to those channels|
that sell product to external customers,
through the Group’
stores, independent retailers and online
via the global web stores and sists of
93% of the group’ g

Professional standards require us to
presume (unless rebutted) that the fraug
risk from revenue recognition is a
significant risk. Given tharerevenue

is recognised at a point in time, is simpl
in nature ard individual sales are of high
volume and low value (meaning that
large volume of sales transactiowsuld
need to be misstated to result in a
material error) we rebutted this
presumption.

However, due tdhe significance ofore
revenuein the contextof the financial
statementsand our materialitythis is
consideredo bethe area that had the
greatest effect orour overallGroup
audit.

Our procedures included:

I Test of detail For certain retail sales transactions, we
performed data analytics procedes to match sales invoices tg
cash or receivables at the transaction level and investigated
unmatched transactions;

9 Test of detail For certain trade sales customers, we performe
data analytics procedures to reconcile the movement from th
opening to tle closing trade receivables position;

9 Test of detail For the remaining #scope components where
revenue was not covered by the data analytics procedures
described above, we substantively sampled the revenue in th
period to match sales invoices to reldterders, dispatch notes
and/or cash and/or trade debtors; and

1 Assessing transparencyVe assessed the adequacy of the
Group’'s disclosures in resp

We performed the detailed tests above rather than seeking to rely
any of t h e oldbecausgourknowledgetofrthe design of
these controls indicated that we would not be able to obtain the
required evidence to support reliance on controls.

Our results:
We found the recognition of core revenue to be acceptable.
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The risk Our response
Recoverability of | Low risk, high value Our procedures included:
parent company 9 Tests of detd: We compared the carrying amount of each
investments in The carrying amount of the parent investmentand intercompany receivable the relevant
and company’'s invest me subsidiaries’ draft bal ance
intercompany and intercompany receivablespresents assets, being an approximation of their minimum recoverablg
receivables from | 70% oftheCo mpany’ s t ot & amount, were in excess of theiaying amount and assessing
subsidiaries recoverability is not at a high risk of whether those subsidiaries have historically been profitking.
(Investments significant misstatement or subject to 1 Assessing transparencWe assessed the adequacy of the
£30.6 million significant judgement. However, due to parent company’'s disclosure
Receivables from | their materiality in the context of the subsidiaries.

group companies | parentcompany financial statements,
£8.5m, Loans to | this is considered to be the area that ha| We performed the detailed tés above rather than seeking to rely of
group companies | the greatest effect on our overallparentt any of t he Gr o u ptkeowledgeof theaésign ob ¢

£31.6m) Referto | company audit. these controls indicated that we would not be able to obtain the
page58 required evidence to support reliance on controls.
Our results:

We found theCompary’ sonclusion regardinthe recoverability obf
its investmensin subsidiariesnd intercompany receivablés be
acceptable.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
Materiality for the Group financial statements awhole was set at £7.5m, determined with reference to a benchmark of Group profit
before tax, of which it represents 4.8%.

Materiality for the parenttompany financial statements as a whole was set a®@®0determined with reference to a benchmark of
Campany net assets, of which it represent9%.

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were performed to laréslveld;,
performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable level theétrégkndividually immaterial misstatements in individual account
balances add up to a material amount across the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality was set at 75% of materiality for the financial statements as a whole, whichseigugetm for the Group and
£0.675m for the parentompany. We applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality because we did not identify
any factors indicating an elevated level of risk.

We agreed to report to theudit andriskcommittee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0.375m, in
addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Of the Group’s 56 r epordighttofull scoperapits foregrotppurposeandeightto ppecified ewdit
procedures.

The components within the scope of our work accounted for 91% of total Group revenue, 90% of Group profit before tax aindi@? %
Group assets.

The remainin@% of total Group revenud,0% of Group profit before tax ar of total Group assets is represented by 48 reporting
components, none of which individually represented more than 10% of any of total Group revenue, Group profit before t@xGrotgp
assets. For the residual compents, we performed analysis at an aggregated group level-exaenine our assessment that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement within these.

The work on albf the components including the audit of the parestmpany, was performetly the Group team.
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The impact of climate change on our audit
I n planning our audit, we have considered the pot enatements. i mpact

With the support of our climate professionals we perfoming risk assessment of the impact of climate change on the financial statements
and our audit approach.

Taking into account the nature of the business operations of the group, the potential increase in costs relating to deattshpnlimate
related taxes and changes in regulations, we did not identify any risks that significantly impact our audit or key audit mattees the re
climate related disclosure in the front half of the annual report and considered consistency with the financial statendeots audit
knowledge.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate tloe tBeoGpmpany

or to cease their operations, andhesComppanhageefconokcudédpobbat
They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over theip aailitintie as a

going concern for at least a year from the date ppeoval of the financial statement&lfe going concern pericyl

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general economic environment to identify the inherent ridkssioéss model

and analysed how those risks might affectthe Gup’' s and Company’'s financi al resources ¢
concern period. The risk that we considered most | iokreebgverthis adyv
period was inflationanpressures increasing the cost of raw materials and reducing the gross margin earceteoavenuesales We
considered whether tis risk could plausibly affect the liquidity in the going concern periog¢daiyparing severe, but plausible downside
scenari® that could arise from thisriskgai nst the | evel of available financial resol

We assessed the completeness of the going concern disclosure

Our conclusions based on this work:

1 we considerthatthedect or s’ use of the going concern basis of accounti
appropriate;

1T we have not identified, and concur with the directoors’ asses
conditonst hat , i ndividually or collectively, may cast significant
concern for the going concern period;

T we have nothing material to add or dr awotaz2to therfibanc@lrstaterention r el a
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over phenGrou
Company’s use of that basis for the adisclosyreiooote® ® benaccpptablé;and, an

1 the related statement under the Listing Rules set out on [&@is materially consistent with the financistatements and our audit
knowledge

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditionsadubsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Grouproptrg/ C
will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches d¢fiws and regulations ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fratfda(ud riskg) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or

pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

1 enquiring of directors, the audandriskc o mmi tt ee, i nternal audit and inspectevebn of
policiesand procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the
“whistleblowind, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

9 reading board, audiand riskcommittee, andremuneration committee minutes;

1 considering remuneration incentive schemes for executive directors; and

1 using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team asmained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets, we perform prooeatitiesss the
risk of management override of controls, in partauthe risk that Group management may be in a position to make inappropriate
accounting entries. On this audit we do not consider there to be a fraud risk related to revenue recognition given thexemue is
recognised at a point in time, is simplenature and individual sales are of high volume, low value (meaningttate volume of sales
transactionswvould need to be misstated before resulting in a material erroigensingevenue is alsmon-complex, with a small number
of nonjudgemental tansactions.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulatiogability to detect continued
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to feamndinued

We did not identify any additional fraud kis.

We performed procedures including:
1 Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test for all full scope components based on high risk criteria andrapthpa
identified entries to supporting documentation. These inclugedtings to caslor to revenuewith an unexpected pairing

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a materiareffexfinancial statements from

our general commercial and sector experiemcel through discussion with the directors and other management (as required by auditing
standards)and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and proeedegarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indicationsafmpliance
throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulatiomstbe financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financielgéggislation
(including related companies legislation), distributable prdégislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations whemttsequences of neoompliance could have a material effect
on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. Wesiérifollowing
areas as those most likely to have such an effeglth and safety, data protection laws, abtibery, and employment law. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify roompliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and
other management and inspection afgulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or behas of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some mate@émesss in
the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our auditordance with auditing standards. For
example, the further removed necompliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditimglatds would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit proesdue designed to detect material misstatement.
We are not responsible for preventing naompliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detectssompliance with all laws and
regulations.

We have nothing to report on the other information in thannualreport

The directors are responsible for the other information presented inaireualreport together with the financial statements. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not expresstaspadn or, except as
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statemi¢nisrd,ithe
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work
we have not identified material misstatements in the other information.

{GNFGS3IAO0 NBLERNI YR RANBOG2NEQ NBLRNI

Based solely on our wodkn the other information:

f we have not identified materi al mi sstatements in the stratedg
1 in our opinion the information given in those reports for the finanpialiodis consistent with the financial statements; and

1 in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Remuneration report
In our opinion the part of theemunerationreport to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longemm viability
We are required to perform procedures to identify whséntrdspeat t her
of emerging and principal risks and thehildy statement, and the financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

T the director s’ cgoimgfconcem ariabdity statementeit au ort phge28,that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business nredel, futu
performance, solvency and liquidity;

1 therisks and uncertaintiedisclosuresiescribing these risks and how emerging risks are identified, and explaining how they are being
managed and mitigated; and

T the direct or s’ goinggopderama aidbilitystaternenbof hotv they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done so and why they considered that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whethawthay h
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall dusequenidad of
their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to review thgming concern andiability statemenf set out onpage28 under the Listing Rules. Based the above
procedures, we have concluded that the above disclosures are materially consistent with the financial statements and our audi
knowledge.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the context of only the knowledge acquired durfimancial statements audit. As we

cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistengesitiefs that

were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of anything to report @néhe st at ement s i s not a gua
and Companregmwabiityonger

Corporate governance disclosures
We are required to perform procedures to identify whgowrnace t her
disclosures and the financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each of the following is materially consistent with the financial sseaecheot

audit knowledge:

1T the dir ect orttheycondidertthatithe anhualrepoat and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandabl e, and provides the information necessareys for s
model and strategy;

1 the section of the annual report describing the work of #aedit and riskcommittee, including the significant issues that the awtid
riskcommittee considered in relation to the financial statements, and how these issues were addressed; and

1 thesectond t he annual report that describes the review of the ef
systems.
We are required to review the part of tteorporategovernancestatementr el at i ng to t he Group’' ofteompl i a

UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our. iedvave nothing to report in ferespect.

We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, aee required to report to you if, in our opinion:
1 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the pazemtpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
1 the parentcompany financial statemestand the part of theemunerationreport to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or
T certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by
1 we have not received all the information and expdéions we require for our audit.

)

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Respective responsibilities

5ANBOG2NERQ NBalLRyaroAftAldArSa

As explained more fully in their statement srit onpage49, the directors are responsible for: the preparaii of the financial statements
including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary tthemebfgaration

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether dueauadror error; assessing the Group and parent
company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, doimgecdne®mi ng,
basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Groupeparentcompany or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Respective responsibilitiesontinued

l dZRAG2NDAa NBalLlRyaAroAaftAdasSa

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranceuafvhether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whet her due to fraud or error, and to issue our opanceibotdoes n an
not guarantee that an audit catucted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could igdmoagpected

to influence the ecoamic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our r es pvwn.fcioly.uklaiditorsesponsibdlitepr ovi ded on t h

The Company is required to include thesehcial statements in an annual financial report prepared using the single electronic reporting
format specified in the TD ESEF Regul ation. Thi s aportdhagbeen’ s r €
prepared in accordare with that format.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s member s, 2086sOua body
audit work has beenundeatk en s o t hat we might state to the Company’'s membe]
auditor’s report arotte fdllesrextentpermittet key law, pve do mai aceept or assume responsibility to anyone

otherthantheCo mpany and the Company’s members, as a body, for our at

Anna Barrell (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

25 July 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Restate(

52 weeks aded 52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202

Notes £m £m

Core revenue 386.¢ 353.2

Licensing revenue 28.C 16.3

Revenue 4 414.¢ 369.t

Cost of sales (127.4 (96.3
Core gross profit 259.4 256.9
Licensing gross profit 28.0 16.3

Gross profit 287.4 273.2

Operating expenses 4,5 (230.3 (121.5
Core operating profit 1317 136.7
Licensing operating profit 254 15.0

Operating profit 157.1 151.%

Finance income 7 0.2 0.2

Finance costs 8 (0.8 (1.0

Profit before taxation 9 156.5 150.¢

Income tax expense 10 (28.1, (28.9

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 128.¢ 122.(

Comparative finaral information for revenue and gross profit has been restated for the reclassificati@ens$ing revenuepreviously includeas
royalties receivablén other operating income.

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners of thequa during theperiod (expressed in pence per share):

Notes 52 weeksendec 52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202

Basic earnings per ordinary share 11 391.3¢ 372.7¢
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 11 390.6¢ 370.5¢

CONSOLWIED AND COMPAISYATEMENSIOF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group Company
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202. 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202

Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 1284 122.C 103.2 78.7
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Exchange gains/(losses) on translation of foreign operations 28 0.6 (3.1 - -
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for theriod 0.8 3.1 - -
Total comprehensive income attributable to overs of the parent 129.2 118.¢ 103.2 78.7

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 200 6lstatente's. Company’' s

The notes on pagegl to 82 are an integral part of these financial sanents.
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BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
29 May 202 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 14 14 - -
Other intangible assets 14 25.€ 23.7 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 55.C 49.¢ - -
Rght-of-use assets 16 48.1 46.C - -
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - - 30.€ 30.€
Deferred tax assets 18 17.¢ 10.1 - -
Trade and other receivables 20 19.4 6.2 31.€ 3.€
167.< 137.C 62.2 34.5
Current assets
Inventories 19 38.4 27.5 -
Trade andther receivables 20 39.¢ 30.€ 8.8 5.¢
Current tax assets 4.4 1.1 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 71.4 85.2 30.4 20.z
153.¢ 144.¢ 39.2 26.1
Total assets 321.1 281.7 101.£ 60.€
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 9.2 (8.6, - -
Tradeand other payables 24 (33.5 (35.4 (2.0 1.9
Current tax liabilities 1.1 0.1, - -
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 26 0.8 (0.6, - -
(44.6 (44.7 (2.0 (1.9
Net current assets 109.2 99.7 37.2 24.2
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 (39.7. (38.4 - -
Other noncurrent liabilities 25 (0.6, (0.6, (27.9 0.2
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 26 1.5 @7 - (0.1
(41.8 (40.7 (27.9 (0.3
Net assets 234.7 196.: 71.t 58.£
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 27 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.€
Share premium account 27 16.2 14.5 16.2 14.t
Other reserves 28 2.8 2.1 0.1 0.1
Retained earnings 213.¢ 178.1 53.t 42.2
Total equity 234.7% 196.2 71.E 58.4

The Company’' s pr ofB52tweekssndee 29 May£2022 is £103r2m 2@2t: £78.Fng).

The notes on pagegl to 82 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pag&#to 82 were approved by the board of directors @b July 2022 and were signed onlitshalf by:

K D Rountree, Director

R F Tongue, Director

Registered number 2670969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

Shar¢
Called u premiurr  Other reserve Retainet Tota
share capite accoun (note 28 earningt equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 30 May 202 and 1 June 2020 1.€ 13.1 5.2 113.¢ 133.7
Profit for the52 weekgo 30 May 2021 - - - 122.C 122.(
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - (3.1 - (3.1
Total comprehensive income for tiperiod - - (3.1 122.C 118.¢
Transactions with owners:
Sharebased payments - - - 1.2 1.2
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme (note 27) - 14 - - 14
Deferred tax credit relating to share options - - - 0.1 0.1
Current tax credit relating to exesed share options - - - 1t 1kt
Dividends paid to Company shareholders - - - (60.5 (60.5
Total transactions with owners - 14 - (57.7 (56.3
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 1€ 14t 21 178.1 196.:
Profit for the52 weekgo 29 May 2022 - - - 128. 128.¢
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - 0.8 - 0.6
Total comprehensive income for thgeriod - - 0.8 128.2 129.2
Transactions with owners:
Sharebased payments - - - 1.€ 1.€
Shares issued under employee sharesssheme (note 27) - 1.8 - - 1€
Deferred taxdebit relating to share options - - - 1.4 2.4
Current tax credit relating to exercised share options - - - 0.7 0.7
Dividends paid to Company shareholders - - - (93.5 (93.5
Total transactions with ownes - 1.8 - (92.6 (90.8
At 29 May 2022 1.€ 16.2 2.9 213.¢ 234.%
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
Share
Called u| premiun  Other reserve Retaine Tota
share capite accoun (note 28 earningt equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 30 May 202 and 1 June 2020 1.€ 13.1 0.1 22.¢ 37.€
Profit for the52 weekgo 30 May 2021 - - - 78.7 78.7
Total comprehensive income for thperiod - - - 78.7 78.7
Transactions with owners:
Sharebased payments - - - 1.2 1.z
Shares issued under empkw sharesave scheme (note 27) - 14 - - 14
Dividends paid to Company shareholders - - - (60.5 (60.5
Total transactions with owners - 1.4 - (59.3 (57.9
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 1.€ 14.5 0.1 42.2 58.4
Profit for the52 weekgo 29 May D22 - - - 103.2 103.2
Total comprehensive income for thgeriod - - - 103.2 103.2
Transactions with owners:
Sharebased payments - - - 1.€ 1.€
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme (note 27) - 1.€ - - 1.€
Dividends paid to Company shaoétiers - - - (93.5 (93.5
Total transactions with owners - 1. - (91.9 (90.1;
At 29 May 2022 1.€ 16.5 0.1 53.E 71t

The notes on pagedl to82are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksndec
29 May 202. 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 1592 164.¢ 101.¢ 79.1
UK corporation tax paid (34.0 (28.8 - -
Overseas tax paid 3.7 3.3 - -
Net cash generated from operating activities 1215 132.% 101.¢ 79.1
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 17.0 7.4 - -
Purchases of other intangible assets 1.4 2.9 - -
Expenditure on product development 14 (13.9 9.7, - -
Interest received 0.2 0.2 0.1 -
Net cash(used ij/generated frominvesting activities (32.1 (29.8 0.1 -
Cash flows fronfinancing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 27 18 14 1.8 14
Repayment of principal under leases 23 (11.1 (10.0 - -
Lease interest paid 23 (0.8 (0.9 - -
Dividends paid to Company shareholders 12 (93.5 (60.5 (93.5 (60.5
Net cash used in financing activities (1036) (70.0 (91.7 (59.1
Net (decreasé)ncreasein cash and cash equivalents (14.2 32.¢ 10.2 20.C
Opening cash and cash equivalents 85.2 52.¢ 20.z 0.z
Effects of foreign exchange rates on cash arshejuivalents 0.4 0.6, - -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 21 71.4 85.2 30.4 20.z

The notes on page&l to 82 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

Games Workshop Group PLGe(th* Company’') and its subsidiaries (together the *‘Group’')
distributes these through its own network of retail stores, independent retailers and online via the global web storemUhbas manufaciring activities

in the UK and sells mainly in the UK, Continental Europe, North America, Australia, New Zealand and Asia. The Grotgpliaiswesan third parties for

the devel opment of video games andadpértg.tr products wutilising the Group

The Company is a public listed company, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registesed/itiffiv Road, Lenton,
Nottingham, NG7 2WS, United Kingdom.

The Company’ s ordi nar ¢lLosdbnéStoek Exclapge.t a | is |listed on th

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in these financial statements are set out below. These policies have beertlg@ppsiszhto all the periods
presented, unless otherwise d&al.

Basis of preparation

The Group and the Company have presented these financial statements rounded to the nearest@®3TrDecember 2020, IFRS as adopted by the
European Union at that date was brought into UK law and becarsaddpted Internation&dStandards, with future changes being subject to endorsement

by the UK Endorsement Board. Games Workshop Group PLC transitionecddopi&d International Accounting Standaiidsts groupfinancialstatements

on 31 May 2021. This change constituted arale in accounting framework. However, there is no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the
period reported as a result of the change in framework.

The financial statements of Games Workshop Group PLC have been prepared in accordankeadatptét International Accounting Standards and with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The consolidated and Company financial statements are prepared in accordance with thedlistmiconvention.

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial statemémetslirectors have considereabase case going concern model and then

modelleda series of severe but plausible downside scenarios suldsa®ffactoriesand further store closureg\fter making appropriate enquiries, the

directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in opersténta for at least twelve

months from the date of approvalefhe f i nanci al statements. For this reason, they contin
Company’'s financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its subsidiamtakidgs drawn up for th&2 weeksnded 29 May 2022 and tHs2

weeksended 30 May 2021. Theeriodend date is defined as the nearest Sunday to 31 May each year. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entityhere the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the

ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consofidatetie date m which control is

transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between group companies are eliminatdidatiooons
Accountirg policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group. Special purpose reporting informatied preger Ukadopted
International Accountin@tandardof all subsidiaries to 29 May 2022 and 30 May 2021 has been used for idatigwi purposes.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value@ftto up’ s share of tl
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisitiond®ill is tested annually for impairment, or when an indicator of impairment

arises, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Provision is made for any impairment by compariegrtheseatithe net carrying

value. Goodwill is allated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 31 May 1998 was written off to reserves in accordance with the accounting #endartbrce. As permitted by
the current accounting standdy the goodwill previously written off to reserves has not been reinstated in the balance sheet.

Other intangible assets

Development costs

Costs incurred in respect of product design and development activities are recognised as intangible assets whenghey t he criteria of |
Assets’ and are wholly attributable to specific pr ogmerisedonaréucmgluct dev
balance basiswith rates ranging from 50% to 80%, or are falfgortised in the month of the relevant product release. The selected amortisation method is
chosen to match the expenditure incurred to the expected revenue generated from the subsequent product release. Howevare theme design costs

which do not met the recognition criteria and are therefore not capitalised and are shown in note 9.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences and related development expenditure are capitalised on the basis of the costs inaageidet@nd bring intose

the specific software. Where software is acquired under a cloud computing arrangement, only those costs incurred in dexvsigpémate identifiable

asset owned and controlled by the Group, s usedhComputersoftwareriteecesfa® hetd atlcastt we e n
and amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets. Costs associated with maintainiagsaftnpue programmes are

recognised as an expense as incurred. Developmens toat are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as 'i.ntangible assets

Other development expenditure #t does not meet these criteria is recognised as an expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Other intangible assets continued
Development costs previously recognised as arersp are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. The principal annual amortisation rates are:

% of cos
Core business systems computer software 10-33
Web store computer software 20
Other computer software 33-5C

Property, dant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. ©heropstrty, plant and
equipment is their purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned to write down to théesideal value and commences from
the date the asset is available for use. The principal annual depreciation rates are:
Straight line ¢ Reducing balance
of cos  of net book valu

Freehold buildings 2-4 -
Plant and equipment and vehicles 15-33 -
Fixtures and fittings 20-25 -
Moulding tools- product specific - 5C
Moulding tools- non-product specific 25 -

Leaseholdmprovements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life of the asset or the period of the lease. Theseeasssuded
within fixtures and fittings. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Impairment of nonfinancial assets

Assetsaretestd f or i mpai rment in accordance with | AS 36 ‘| mpai r rpedrogetherfat As s e
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Discount rates reflecting the as$ietriglexand the time value of money are

used for the value in use calculation.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value, which is typically the original invoice amount, and carriedisschoost using the effectiviaterest

met hod | ess | oss allowance. The Group applies the | d®ssSs, usitgialfeime i al i
expected loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit losses by the Group

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the @ptetesds performance

obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer paydezatisn or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration.

Leases

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a-afjhse asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. Theafghte asset is meased at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Gesfimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advarckeas¢hcommencement date (net of any incentives received).

Rightof-use assets are depreciated on a straifjih¢ basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of th@figbe
asset or the end of the lease terhe Group also assessestherightt se asset for i mpairment when such indic
Asset s’

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive t@aer&teissgion option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the leagdterneeise is reasonably certain
to be extended (or not terminated).

At the commencement date, the Grpunmeasures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate ttoehtindanl@stofsimdar vi dua
value to the rightof-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is redteasfiect any reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes insobstance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in
the rightof-use asset on the balance sheet, or income statemefigfrightof-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Where a store continues to be occupied post lease end date, these stores will be accounted$hoeagerm lease and directly expensed to the income
statement.

The Group has calculated and appliedthe c r e ment al borrowing rate (‘I BR") to its future cas
borrowing rate has been defined by the standard as ilattdine andwithsenilaof i nt er
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to theofighs e asset in a similar environment'’

therefore a credit risk spread approach has been used to calculate the IBR, which cotimbirnigisfree security rate and a corporate security rate in each
economic environment in which the Group has a lease, linked to the life of the underlying lease agreement.
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Shortterm leases and leases of loualue assets
The Group has elected not toaegnise righof-use assets and lease liabilities for shiertm leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less, and leases
of low-value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as expenses oHiaesbragihiover th lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using a standard costing methindictakicount variances. In
respect of finished goods, cost includes raw materials, direct labouey atinect costs and related production overheads based on a normal level of
production. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicablseléingl#gpenses. Where necessary,
provisions are madéor obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are present ed ltemsinduted inthe fimancial whi c
statements of ach of the group entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity opleedtascional

currency). Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in currencies that are not the functional currency are tramsldtes functional currency at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies prepared in funetioies other than sterling

are translated into sterling as follows:

- Assets anddibilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;
- Income and expenses are translated at the average rate fop¢hied,
- All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Cash and casbquivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and bank and casinéatdraserdrafts where
there is a legally enforceable right of offset.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recogedinitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received ¢@rsig@eran amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or serviaestorttez, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whicheverisrgaContract liabilities (deferred income) are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.

Other employment benefits

Pension costs

The Group operates defined contribution schemes and a group personal pension plan. Pensiontemgrdre charged to the income statement as they
accrue. There are no further obligations to the Group once payment has been made.

Long service benefits

The Group operates a long service incentive scheme under which employees receive a one off atlditdmaentitiement of two weeks when they reach

10, 20, 30 and 40 years'’ service (Veterans scheme). eddnexpectedssta®t of t hes
retention rates and the anticipated future employment codiscounted to present value.

Sharebased payments

The Group operates a number of equitgttled employee sharesave schemes. The fair value of the employee services received, measured at grant date in
exchange for the grant of the awards, is recognisedraexpense in the income statement, with the corresponding credit being recorded in retained
earnings within equity over the vesting period. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determinetthgadtethe fair value of the
awardsgranted. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected to vesipThedgnises the

impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustreguity, in periods in which the estimates are
revised.The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premitime whigons are

exercised.

Investments
Shares and loans in subsidiaindertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Revenue

Core revenue

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and sales between group companies, represents the invoiced value of goodsesugbpiadie(discounts for
sales to indepenent retailers). Revenue is recognised on dispatch of goods to the customer for sales via the global welndtfmesales to independent
retailers. The fulfilment of the performance obligation of the contract with the customer is achieved on deliveriff€rence in timing of recognition of
revenue and the fulfilment of the delivery has been considered and does not have a material effect on the financial stateaneetenue earned through
the Group’'s retail st or eisrecagnised dt the poirt of galetPaymenpaf thedransact®on price & due im line with agreed
customer credit terms. Revenue for subscriptions is recognised on a straight line basis over the subscription period.

Revenue on goods sold to customers aake or return basis (which includes book sales) is recognised after making full provision for the level of expected
returns, based on past experience. The level of returns is reviewed on a regular basis and the provision is amendedya¢®evdimge oa sale or return
basis represents no more than 3% of consolidated revenuel(2@?more than 3%).

Licensing revenue

Licensing revenue represents amounts i nvoi ¢eé tiTRi$ifcludes bote misineugogaltyf or use of
guarantees charged on granting use of the intellectual property to licensees, and additional royalty income earned as asharche | i censee’ s
and products which include use of the Group’s | P.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM&NihSex

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Revenue continued
Licensing revenueontinued

Where a |licensing agreement includes minimum royalty omale am whethehie nc o me
agreement represents a right to use, or a r i gHhitensingpagraements sre considered ®beau p’' s
right to use the Gr oapprformancerobligatiohseottheseadreeméer so preas yhe elrh met in granting us:eé

intellectual property and minimum royalty guarantee income revenue is recognised in full at inception of the contracbnatichiyalty income is
recognised in the income statement when it can béably measured by reference to the underlying licensee performance as notified to the Group by the
licensee and following validation of the amounts receivable by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent viighitternal reporting provided to the chief operating decisioaker. The chief operating
decisionmaker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been glt@igdautive
directors.

Taxdion
The charge for current tax is based on the results forpteeod as adjusted for items which are n@ssessable or disallowed. It is calculated using rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxatioris accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences ltedweerying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the compfitakable profit. In principle, deferred

tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the evitéstptttdoable that taxable profits

will be available against which deductible temauoyr differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabditiessaction whichféects neither

the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries excepievenep is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference diit is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at
the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in tieestatemen, except where it relates

to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation arnbdhity Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Dividends
Dividend distributions are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which they are paid.

Provision for liabilities and charges

Provisions@& r ecogni sed in accordance with | AS 37 ‘Provisi ons pperydiapidatongent A
where a legal obligation existshe estimated employee benefit liability arisiingm the Veterans scheme @fassified within provisions. Amounts relating to
empl oyees who reach 10, 20, 30 or 40 vy e-aurrent. Pravisianyareanade fonredaomdanay costhomae the n e

employees affected have a valid expectation thaithroles will become redundant.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or optimveraire equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial instrumens
All financial assets are classified as ‘finaneisalatassnetrs i sattdamorsti séd
9. Management determines the classification of its financial assets and lialgtiti@i§ial recognition.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions thaeatfportibdd amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liied, and disclosure of contingencies at the balance sheet date. If in future such estimates and assumptions, which are
based on management’'s best judgement at the date of ttheeorignabestisnatdsiardiat e d
assumptions will be modified, as appropriate, in the period in which the circumstances change.

Management do not consider there to be any critical accounting estimates or judgements that have a significant riskgohaaasémial adjstment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finampsabd.

3. Change in accounting policy

The Group has applied amendments to IAS 1 and IB8fiition of Materialfor the first time in the financial statements commengi31 May 2021. The
application of these new standards and amendments did not have a material impact finaheialstatements in either the current or prior periods.

The Group considers that there are no new accounting standards, amendments oreété¢iqurs issued by the IASB, but not yet applicable, which have
had, or are expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements.
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4. Segment information

As Games Workshop is a vertically integrated business, management assesses the perfofrsalesechannels and manufacturing and distribution

channels separately. Segment information for weeksended 30 May 2021 has been restated to better reflect the structure of the Group. Segments
have been split intaore andlicensing as describecehl o w .

‘Operations and support

have

Cost s
been

previously
combined

to

reported
c r e ebased payment chalyessprofitn ,

within

sharescheme charges and discretionary payments to employees were previously included outside of ségpeeating expenses, these have now all

been included irtore operating expenses.

At 29 May 202Zames Workshop has twegments core andlicensingas described below:
- Core the core segment includes all revenue and expenditure relating to the design, manufacture and sales of our fantasy nainéhtetated

products.

- Licensingthe licensing segment includes all revenue and expenditure relating twéisgranted to external partners)cluding the development of

digital content for animation an@'\V.

We provide further information on revenue and expenses within the core segh®otv. The core segment hd®endividedinto channelsas follows:

- Tradet hi s sales channel
the distributor sales

sell s

from

- Retail: this includes salesthgth t he Gr oup’ s

- Online: this includes
affiliates.

sal es

independent

publishing

globally to
the Group’'s
retail stores,
through the

- Desiagn, manufacturing, logistics and operations, which incluctests for

- the design studis(that creates all of the IP and the associated miniatures, artwork, games and publications);

- the production facilities;
- the warehousesnd logistics cosfs

Group’'s

t

he

Group’ s

busi ness

- charges foinventory provisions. This includes adjustments for the profit in stock arising fromsatgnent salesand
- support services (marketing, IT, accounting, payroll, personnel, procurement, legal, health and safety, customer serviedi aadtrol)

provided to activities across the Group;
- Group: this includes the Compdnwgverheads

‘Design

(Bl ack

visitor
g | oabeathrougheckterralt or e s,

cent

The chief operating decisiemaker, identified as the executive directors, assesses the performance of each segment based on segmental operating profit.

Thishasbeenrecoci | ed to the Group’s total profit before taxation bel ow.
Core Licensing Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Trade 214.3 194.8 - - 2143 194.¢
Retail 87.2 70.7 - - 87.2 70.7
Online 85.3 87.7 - - 853 87.1
Licensing - - 28.0 16.3 28.0 16.2
Revenue 386.8 353.2 28.0 16.3 414.8 369.t
Cost of sales (127.4) (96.3) - - (127.4) (96.3
Grossprofit 259.4 256.9 28.0 16.3 287.4 273.2
Trade (10.7) 9.1) - - (10.7) 9.1,
Retail (52.4) (50.2) - - (524) (50.2
Online (11.7) (7.8) - - 117 (7.8
Design, manufacturing, logistics and operations (376) (35.2) - - (37.6) (35.2
Licensing - - (2.6) 1.3) (2.6) 1.3
Group (3.8) (3.5) - - (3.8) (3.5,
Sharebased payment charge (1.6) 1.2) - - (1.6) 1.2
Profit share scheme and discretionary payment charge (9.9) (13.2) - - (9.9) (13.2
Operating expenses (127.7) (120.2) (2.6) (1.3) (130.3) (121.5
Operating profit 131.7 136.7 25.4 15.0 157.1 151.5
Finance income 0.2 0.2 - - 0.2 0.z
Finance costs (0.8) (1.0) - - (0.8) (1.0
Profit before tax 131.1 135.9 25.4 15.0 156.5 150.¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4. Segment information continued

Additional revenue analysis

Segment revenue and segment profit include transactions betweeiméss segments; these transactions are eliminated on consolidation. Sales between
segments are carried out at arm’'s |l ength. The r evenmuaemafnercamsisentwithr nal p
that in the income stiement. For information, core external revenue is analysed further below:

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202
£m £m

Trade
UK and Continental Europe 90.4 82.2
North America 96.5 85.4
Australia and New Zealand 114 10.z
Asia 8.t 9.C
Rest of world 5.¢ 5.€
Black Library 1.€ 2.3
Total Trade 214.% 194.¢

Retall
UK 25.7 13.2
Continental Europe 18.F 16.4
North America 33.€ 28.2
Australia and New Zealand 7.3 10.2
Asia 2.1 25
Total Retall 87.z 70.7

Online
UK 19.C 22.2
Continental Europe 16.2 18.C
North America 31.4 30.€
Australia and New Zealand 4.4 5.t
Asia 04 0.t
Rest of world 14 1.2
Digital 12.4 9.€
Total Online 85.2 87.7
Total external core revenue 386.¢ 353.2

External core revenue analysed by customer geographical location is as follows:

52 weeksendec

52 weeksendec

29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m

UK 83.4 80.t
Continental Europe 95.€ 82.1
North America 169.7 145.¢
Australia and New Zealand 23.2 26.1
Asia 11.€ 12.1
Rest of world 3.C 6.S
External core revenue 386.¢ 353.2

The Group is not reliant on any one individual customer.
Additional operating expenses analysis

Operatingprofit as reported above includes impairment, depreciation and amortisation charges as follows:

52 weeksendec

52 weeksendec

29 May 202: 30 May 202

£m £m

Retail 11.C 10.€
Online 2.8 0.2
Design, manufacturing, logistics and operations 22.2 15.€
Total group charges for impairment, depreciation and amortisation 36.C 26.€
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4. Segment information continued

Nonrcurrent asset analysis
Norrcurrent assets (excluding deferred tax and ranmrent financial instrumentdpcated within theUK were £120.6m (2021: £100.0m) and all other

countries wa€£289m (2021: £27.2m)Tangible, intangible and rigif-use asset additions included within the UK were £34.5m (2021: £45.2m) and all other

countries were £9.0m (2021: £8.1m).

Other noncash clarges
Other noncash charges and significant costs included in operating profit are as follows:
Redundancy costs and compensa
Charge to inventory provisio for loss of offic
52 weeksendec 52 weekendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m £m £m
Core (10.6' 0.9 (05) (1.2
Licensing - - (0.1 -
Total group charge (10.6) (0.9 (0.6 (1.2

5. Operating expenses
52 weeksendec 52 weeksndec
29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m
Selling cos 66.2 63.¢
Administrative expenses 64.C 57.€
130.2 121.5
6. Directors and employees
Group Company

52 weeksendec 52 weekendec 52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202: 30 May 202 29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m £m £m
Totaldirecor s° and employees’ costs:
Wages and salaries 91.4 86.¢ 2.8 2.5
Social security costs 8.7 8.2 0.2 0.2
Other pension costs 4.0 3.7 -
Sharebased payment 1.6 1.2 - -
105.7 99.¢ 3.C 2.8

Details of capitalised salary costs, included in theve, are provided in note 14. Redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office, not included in the

above, are provided in note 9.

Total directors’ and e mp b2omeekemnsed 2T Mag 2022 cdicalated tisingthe @veragihprgd ratas for tHB2 weeks
ended 30 May 2021 are £106.3m. This includes perf or mahacascheme bnd the d
discretionary payment to employees of £12.6m (2021: £16.1m).

Highest paid diretor
The above includes salary costs of £0.7m (2021: £0.6m) in respect of the highest paid director. Total remunerationtefghpatiibdirector is detailed in
the remuneration report (pagé3).

Key management compensation

el em

The directors of the Group arconsidered to be the key management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the directors of the Group is set out

bel ow in aggregate for each of the categories specified in I AS 24
Restaed
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202: 30 May 202

£m £m
Shortterm employee benefits 25 24
Sharebased payments -

2.5 24

In the period, there weretwo directors (2021two) to whom retirement benefits were accruing in respect of money purchase schemes.

Furthee i nf or mati on relating to directors’ emol ument s, erpageseBioa8.di ngs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

6. Directors and employees continued

Employee numbers

52 weeksendec

52 weeksendec

29 May 202; 30 May 202

Group No. No.

Monthly average number of employees (including directors) by activity:

Design and development 34¢ 30¢

Production and warehousing 70¢ 56&

Selling:

- Full time 941 932

- Part time 65 65

Administration 491 41z
2,55¢ 2,28t

The monthly average number of employees for the Companynivee(2021:nine).

7. Finance income

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202, 30 May 202
£m £m

Interest income:

- On cash and cash equivalents 0.2 0.2
0.2 0.2

8. Finance costs

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202
£m £m

Interest expense:
- Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.8 0.6
- Other - 0.1
0.8 1.C

9. Profit before taxation

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202
£m £m
Profit before taxation is stated after charging:
Depreciation:
- Owned property, plant and equipment 11.7 9.2
- Rightof-use assets 11.2 11.C
Amortisdion:
- Owned computer software 1.€ 1.2
- Development costs 10.1 4.8
Impairment of computer software 11 0.4
Impairment of development costs 0.2 -
Non-capitalised development costs 7.6 7.7
Staff costs (excluding capitalised salaryt€afown in note 14 and necapitalised development staff costs) 98.7 93.¢
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 54.¢ 55.¢
Inventory provision creation (note 19) 10.€ 0.¢
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 0.2 0.1
Redundancy costsid compensation for loss of office 0.€ 1.2

1 dZRAG2NEQ NBYdzySNIGAz2zy |yR aSNBAOSaA
Services provided by the Group’s

LINE A RSR
audi tors

net work firms are

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202
£m £m
Audit servces
Audit of the Group and Company 04 0.1
Other services
The audit of the Company’'s sub - 0.2
Audit-related assurance services - -
Total services provided 0.4 0.2
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10. Income tax expense
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202. 30 May 202

£m £m

Current UK taxation:
UK corporation tax on profits for theeriod 31.: 28.1
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prg@riods 0.4, (0.6

30.¢ 27.5
Current overseas taxation:
Overseas corporation tax on profits for theriod 4.3 2.6
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of priggriods 0.8 (0.3
Total current taxation 36.C 30.1
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal ofning differences (7.3, (2.0,
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of priggriods (0.6 0.8
Tax expense recognised in the income statement 28.1 28.€
Current tax credit relating to sharesave scheme 0.7, (1.5
Deferred taxdebit/(credit) relating to sharesave scheme 1.4 (0.1
Debit/(credit) taken directly to equity 0.7 (1.6

The tax on the Group’ s p rperibdspresentedffron tiee staraacdardatei obcorpodation thxerr tree UK as folowvs: h
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m
Profit before taxation 156.5 150.¢
Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2021: 19%) 29.7 28.7
Effects of:
Items not assessable faaxt purposes 1.3 (0.3
Different tax rates on overseas earnings 2.1 0.5
Tax rate changes 1.C 0.1
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pr@riods (0.2} (0.1
Total tax charge for theeriod 28.1 28.¢

On 3 March 2021, the Charlme announced that the UK corporation tax rate will be increased from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023. This change had been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet dat@@May 202 and its impact has therefore been included in these financial statesaent

Items not assessable for tax purposes include the release of provisions no longer considered a risk to the Group as vegiébfot other taxes paid.
11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated bidifig the profit attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during theperiod.
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202 30 May 202

Profit attributable to owners of the parent (Em) 128. 1220
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 32,81t 32,73
Basic earnings per share (pence per share) 391.c 372.7

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share has been based on the profit atlbutaowners of the parent and the weighted average number of shares
in issue throughout th@eriod, adjusted for the dilutive effect of share options outstanding atpileeiod end.
52 weeksendec 52 weeksendec
29 May 202 30 May 202

Profit attributable to owners of the parent (Em) 128. 122.(
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 32,81: 32,73
Adjustment for share options (thousands) 60 194
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earningshmmesthousands) 32,87 32,925
Diluted earnings per share (pence per share) 390.€ 370.t

12. Dividends per share

Dividends of £13.1m (40 pence per share), £8.2m (25 pence per share), £11.5m (35 pence per share), £21.3m (65 pentapaE23ae (70 pence
per share) were declared and paid during the curngeriod. Dividends of £16.4m (50 pence per share) were declared in thegeigyd and paid during the
currentperiod.

Dividends of £9.8m (30 pence per share), £16.3m (50 pence per shE®ejE£(60 pence per share) and £14.7m (45 pence per share) were declared and
paid during the prioperiod.

For the purpose of demonstrating that there were sufficient distributable reserves for dividend payments, interim firtatemésts for the Compay
were prepared and filed at Companies House in December 2021 and in April 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

13.  Goodwill

202z 2021
Group £m £m
Cost at beginning and end of period 24 24
Accumulated amortisatioat beginning ad end of period (1.0 (1.0
Net book value at beginning and end périod 1.4 14

The Company had no goodwill at eithgariod end.

Impairment tests for goodwill
I n accordance with the requirement s letedfa revidwSf tfe @arrying mapua df goodeilh as at egfetiodesds e t s’

The i mpairment review was performed to ensure that tréceverable amoynt, beqg val ue
the higher of fair value less dsgo sell and value in use. The key assumptions for the recoverable amount of the goodwill are ttezrfoggowth rate and

the discountrate. Thelonger m growt h rate used is purely for the | mptast memd dess i mg
the long term planning assumptions used by the Group for any other assessments. In determining the value in use, thensalsdatash flow projections

for a period no greater than three years based on plans approved by mamaget and, f o r-gehemagng @it aconceried, assuassta long

term growth rate no higher than 2% (2021: 2%). The estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuingeuasseft$ were calculated
using a risk adjusted piax dscount rate of 5.20% (2021: 1.29%).

Management reviewed the planned sales growth and gross margin on the investment in future product releases and initiegivibs foeing undertaken,
to deliver the expected future performance. Goodwill is allocatet o e G r o -ggmérating aratss(BGUs) for impairment testing. All of the current
goodwill arises in the product and supply segment. Sensitivity analysis has not been disclosed in these financial stitememsagement consider that
there is no reaonably possible change in the key assumptions that would cause the carrying value of goodwill to fall below its recowetatile

14.  Other intangible assets

Compute Developmen

software costs Tota
Group £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 May 202@&nd 1 June 2020 20.¢ 45.1 65.€
Additions 2.6 9.7 12.€
Exchange differences 0.2 - 0.2]
Disposals 1.1 (7.1 (8.2
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 22.4 47.7 70.1
Additions 1.4 13.€ 15.2
Exchange differences 0.2 - 0.2
Disposals 1.9 2.7 (3.8
Reclassification 0.2 - 0.2]
At 29 May 2022 22.1 58.¢ 81.€
Accumulated amortisation
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 (13.7 (34.6 (48.3
Amortisation charge 1.2 4.8 (6.0
Exchange differences 0.2 - 0.2
Impaiment 0.4 - 0.4,
Disposals 1.1 7.C 8.1
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 (14.0 (32.4 (46.4
Amortisation charge 1.6 (10.1 11.7
Exchange differences 0.1 - (0.1
Impairment 1.1 0.2 1.3
Disposals 1.1 24 3.E
At 29 May 2022 (15.7 (40.3 (56.0
Net book amount
30 May 2021 8.4 15.2 23.7
29 May 2022 7.C 18.€ 25.€

Amortisation of £10.4m (2021: £5.1m) has been charged in cost of sales and £1.3m (2021: £0.9m) in operating expenses.

The net book amount of ietnally generated intangible assets is £16.5m (2021: £21.0m) and acquired intangible assets is £9.3m (2021: £2.7m). The net
book amount of internally generated development costs is £12.4m (2021: £13.3m). £11.8m (2021: £12.1m) is capitalisedtsalary c

Salary costs of £6.8m (2021: £6.0m) were capitalised as part of development costs and £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) were capitatiséd@sputer software
during theperiod.

Assets in the course of development, and not amortised, amount to £1.5m (2021: p@ittneurrent and prioperiod amounts both being included within
computer software.

An impairment loss of £1.1m (2021: £0.4m) has been recognised in relation to alterations required to previously capéaimses ef software. This has
been chargedo operating expenses.

The Company had no other intangible assets at eiffegiod end.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Freeholc Plant anc Fixtures

land anc equipmen anc Mouldinc

buildings and vehicle fittings tools Tota
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 25.2 33.1 29.2 37.t 125.1
Additions 4.1 7.2 1.7 4.7 17.7
Exchange differences - (0.5, 1.5 - (2.0
Disposals - (3.9 (2.1 - (6.0
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 29.4 35.¢ 27.% 42.2 134.¢
Additions 0.7 58 3.8 6.C 16.2
Exchange differences - 0.t 0.c - 14
Disposals - (1.1 (0.9 - (2.0
Reclassifications 0.3 0.2 0.3 - 0.2
At 29 May 2022 30.4 41.c 30.€ 48.2 150.%
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 (7.6 (21.9 (21.5 (32.1 (83.1
Charge for theperiod (0.5 3.3 (2.0 3.4 9.2
Exchange differences - 0.4 1.C - 14
Disposals - 3.8 2.1 - 5.¢
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 (8.1 (21.0 (20.4 (35.5 (85.0
Charge for theperiod (0.6, (4.5, (2.5 4.1 117
Exchange differences - (0.2] 0.7, - 0.9
Disposals - 1.2 0.7 - 1.¢
At 29 May 2022 (8.7 (24.5, (22.9 (39.6 (95.7
Net book amount
30 May 2021 21.c 14.€ 6.€ 6.7 49.¢
29 May 2022 21.7 16.€ 7.8 8.€ 55.C

Depreciation expense of £8.3m (20£6.2m) has been charged in cost of sales, £1.4m (2021: £1.5m) in selling costs and £2.0m (2021: £1.5m) in

administrative expenses.

Freehold land amounting to £8.3m (2021: £8.3m) has not been depreciated.

Assets in the course of construction, and noprdeeiated, amount to £10.3m (2021: £10.0m). £3.6m (2021: £2.4m) of these are included in moulding tools,

£4.6m (2021: £5.5m) is included in plant and equipment and vehicles, £0.5m (2021: £nil) is included in freehold landirgsi boitl £1.6m (2021: £i2n)

is included in fixtures and fittings above.
The Company held no property, plant and equipment at eifieziod end.

16. Righbf-use assets

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Net book value at beginning of period 46.C 36.€
Additions 11.¢ 23.C
Disposals - (0.5
Exchange differences 14 2.3
Depreciation charge (112) (11.0

48.1 46.C
The net book value at end of the period can be analysed as follows:

202z 2021
Group £m £m
Buildings 47.7 45.¢
Plant and equipment andehicles 0.4 0.4

48.1 46.C

The Company held no righf-use assets at eithgyeriod end.

Depreciation charged on rigitf use assets during thgeriodwas as follows:

52 weeksendec

52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m

Buildings 111 10.€
Plant and equipment and vehicles 0.1 0.1
11.2 11.C
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

17. Investments in subsidiaries

202z 2021
Company £m £m
Shares in group undertakingsost
Beginning of period anénd of period 30.€ 30.€

Investments in group undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

A list of subsidiary undertakings is given below.

Interests in group undertakings

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

held by:
Description ¢ Subsidiar

Name of undertaking Registered address of undertakin shares hel Compan  compan) Principal business activ

Games Workshop Limited Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Manufacturer, distributoranc

NG7 2WS, L retailer of games and miniatur

Games Workshop Retail Inc. 6211 East Holmes Road, Memp $1 commol 100%  Distributor and retailer of gam

Tennessee, 38141, U stock and miniature

Games Workshop (Queen 3251 Yonge Street, TorantOntario Can $ 100%  Retailer of games and miniatui
Street) Limited M4N 2L5, Cana

EURL Games Workshop 10, Rue Joseph Serlin, Lyon, 69001, Fi euro 1 100¥ Retailer of games and miniatui

Games Workshop SL Aragon 20810, planta4 puerta 1 080. euro 1 100¥  Retailer of games and miniatul
Barcelona, Esgic

Games Workshop Oz Pty Limite 23 Liverpool Street, Inglebui Aus $. 100% Distributor and retailer of gam

New South Wales 2565, Austri and miniature:

Games Workshop Deutschland Am Wehrhahn 3240211 Dusseldol euro 1 100¥  Retailer of games and miniatul
GmbH Deutschlan

Games Workshop Limited 80 Queen Street, Auckland, 10 NZ $: 100%  Retailer of games and miniatu
New Zealan

Games Workshop ltalia SRL Viale Castro Pretorio 122, 00185 Rq euro 1 100%  Retailer of games and miniatul
Italia

Games Workshop International Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Holding company for overse

Limited NG7 2WS, L subsidiary companit

Games Workshop US Limited Willow Road, Lentori\ottingham £1 ordinan 100% Holding company for US subsidi

NG7 2WS, L companie

Games Workshop US (Holdings Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Intermediary holding company f

Limited NG7 2WS, L US subsidiary compan

Games Wikshop Good Hobby 153155 Xujiahui Road, Huangpu Ai  Owners capite 100%  Distributor and retailer of gam

(Shanghai) Commercial Co. Ltd Shanghai, 200021, Ch and miniature:

Games Workshop Trustee Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Trustee
Limited NG7 2WS, L

Games Workshop Stockholm Al Master Samuelsgatan 67, Stockholm 11 SEK 1C 100%  Retailer of games and miniatui
Swedel

Games Workshop Hong Kong 3806 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour R1  HK $1 ordinat 100%  Distributor and retailer of gam:

Limited Wanchai, Hong Ko and miniature:

Games Workshop Hobby Pte. Red House#01-04, 63 East Coast Ro; SG $1 ordinal 100%  Distributor and retailer of gami

Limited 428776 Singapor and miniature:

Games Workshop Malaysia Sdr Unit A-3-6, TTDI Plaz& Jalan Wan Kad MYR 1 ordinai 100¥  Distributor and retailer of gam

Bhd. Taman Tun Dr Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lun and miniature:
Malaysié

Games Workshop Interactive Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Dorman
Limited NG7 2WS, L

Warhammer Online Limited Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100 Dorman
NG7 2WS, L

Citadel Miniatures Limited Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingha £1 ordinan 100% Dorman
NG7 2WS, L

Games Workshop Step One Willow Road, énton, Nottinghan £1 ordinan 100 Production of motion picture

Limited NG7 2WS, L video and television programes

All of the above entities are included in the consolidated financial statements for the Group and 100% of the voting aigbtgtites isheld.

All of the above companies operate principally in their country of incorporation or registration.

The directors consider the value of the investments is supported by the underlying assets of the relevant subsidiary.
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18. Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assetswagaimgax liabilities and when the

deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts are as follows:

Group Company
202z 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets:
- deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 17.¢€ 2.3 - -
- deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months - 7.8 - -
17.€ 10.1 - -
The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m
Beginning operiod 10.1 8.¢ - -
Credited to the income statement 7.9 1.2 - -
(Charged)/aedited diredly to equity (1.4) 0.1 - -
Exchange differences 1.2 (0.1 - -
End ofperiod 17.€ 10.1 - -
Analysis of the movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
Losses
Accelerate: Profit available
depreciatior in stoct for offset Othet Tota
Group £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 1.8 3.2 0.3 3.t 8.¢
(Charged)/aedited to the income statement 0.3 14 (0.2) 0.2 1.2
Credited directly to equity - - - 0.1 0.1
Exchange differences - - - (0.1 (0.1
At 30 May 2021 and 31 M&p21 1.t 4.7 0.2 3.7 10.1
(Charged)/credited to the income statement 1.3 8.1 - 11 7.8
Chargeddirectly to equity - - 1.4 1.4
Exchange differences - 1.1 - 0.1 1.2
At 29 May 2022 0.2 13.€ 0.2 3.5 17.¢

Theprofit in stockdeferred tax asetarises ortemporarydifferencesbetween therecognition of profits on intra group sales within the consolidated group

financial statements and the financial statements of subsidiary undertakings.

Other deferred tax assets include deferred tax on atmjiets for inventory provisions of £1.6m (2021: £0.4m), tax relief on exercise of share options of

£0.5m (2021: £2.0m), tax relief on intangible assets of £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) and tax relief on the long service incemi/effbhdm (2021: £0.4m).

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses and temporary differences to the extent that the realisatioglai&thtax benefit through

future taxable profits is probable. This is based on a review of the track record of profitability @ountry concerned. There was no unrecognised deferre

tax at 29 May 2022 or 30 May 2021 in either the Group or the Company.

The Group did not obtain a current tax benefit from previously unrecognised tax losses in eithepefitispresented.

Conpany

Deferred tax assets of the Company in respect of accelerated depreciation and other temporary differences were lessrthtmdi@tout theperiods

from 1 June 2020 to 29 May 2022.

19. Inventories

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Raw materials 14 0.3
Work in progress 1.¢ 2.0
Finished goods and goods for resale 35.1 25.2
38.4 27.5

The Group holds no inventories at fair value less costs to sell.

During theperiod, the Group utilised an inventory provision of £8.9m (2021: £2.9m)4Adm (2021: £0.9m) has been charged to the income statement.

The Company held no inventories at eitipariod end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m

Trade receivables 9.1 8.1 - -
Less allowance for expected credit losses (0.5, 0.3 - -
Trade receivablesnet 8.€ 7.8 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 11.7 9.¢ - -
Licensing and other receivables 38.7 19.2 0.3 0.1
Receivables from group companies - - 8.5 5.8
Loans to group companies - - 31.€ 3.6
Total trade and other receivables 59.C 36.¢ 40.4 9.8
Non-current receivables:
Other receivables 19.4 6.2 -
Loans to group companies - - 31.€ 3.9
Norrcurrent portion 19.4 6.2 31.€ 3.
Current portion 39.€ 30.€ 8.8 5.¢

Trade receivables are recorded at amortised cost, less allowance for expected credit losses. The fair value of traderacdiettides does not differ
materially from thebook value. There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group hasimlzegemn
customers which are internationally dispersed. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is tigeveduieydf each class of asset
above. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included within prepayments and accrued income are contract assets relating to uninvoiced licensing revenue amounting (2021.8£1.2m)included
within licensing and other receivables is invoiced licensing revenue of £26.0m (2021: £11.5m) of which £18.5m (2021: £5-4oryemndreing in respect
of guarantee instalments due in over one year. Licensing receivables have been assessed for impaidheeatrecognised less allowance for expected
credit losses. There is no significant credit risk with respect to licensing revenue as the Group chooses low risk péreezivas regular guarantee
instalments in advance of the release of a licensextipct or game.

Also included within other receivables is £11.3m relating to a VAT receivable in respect of outstanding European VAfblleaigtBrexit.
Receivables due from group companies to the Company are interest free and immediately rejpmydéieand. Provision for impairment of amounts
receivable from group companies have been assessed based on lifetime expected credit losses. As all balances are relgsyabte and the Company

expects to be able to recover the outstanding balanceeifianded, no provision has beegcognised in th&2 weeksended 29 May 2022 (2021: £nil).

The loan due to the Company from Games Workshop Retail Inc. has a repayment date of 1 September 2022 and bears inEt¢BOR WH%. It is
expected that thisdan will be renewed, and not repaid within 12 months. All other loans from group undertakings are interest free and leeé no f

repayment date.

Loss allowances are established using the IFRS 9 simplified approach to expected credit losses. Adifetiloance is calculated based on historical

credit |l osses and is applied to trade receivabl es deieablesisasfollans:s t he
2022 2021
Gross valu Loss allowanc Net Gross valu Loss allowanc Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 0.8 (0.1 0.7 0.2 - 0.2
3 to 12 months past due 0.2 0.2 - 0.z (0.1 0.1
Over 12 months past due - - - 0.z (0.1 0.1
1.C 0.3 0.7 0.€ (0.2 0.4
In addition to the above there is ads allowance of £0.2m against current debt (2021: £0.1m).
Loss allowance against trade receivables
Movements on the loss allowance against trade receivables are as follows:
Group £m
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 0.t
Receivables written off ding theperiodas uncollectible (0.2
At 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 0.3
Charge for theperiod 0.€
Receivables written off during th@eriodas uncollectible 0.4
At 29 May 2022 0.5
The carrying amo umandotherfecetvdbles ae demaninated intthe @lidwing currencies:
2022 2021
£m £m
Sterling 14.€ 134
Euro 15.2 7.2
US dollar 24.¢ 13.2
Other currencies 4.0 3.1
Total trade and other receivables 59.C 36.¢
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21. Cash and da®quivalents

Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 71.4 85.2 30.4 20.z
Cash and cash equivalents 71.4 85.2 30.4 20.z

There were no utilised borrowing facilities at 29 May 2022 or 30 May 2021.

22. Financiaisk factors
The Group’'s a

cti ties expose it to a vari ety ofatefriskplguidiyirisk)capital riskasd. mar
credit risk. The

Vi
Group’ s f i na nand tkehatureiarsd kmpantohtize giramoial nsks andeexpesarésifacireg the Busiess. u n
Foreign currency risk
The majority of the Group’s business is transactedtering sterling, euros
The Group igxposed to foreign exchange risk principally via:
- transactional exposure arising from the future sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than thafctemcy of the
transacting company.
- translation exposure arisinghanvestments in foreign operations, where the net assets are denominated in a currency other than sterling.
- loans to norUK subsidiaries.

The Group does not use foreign currency borrowings or forward foreign currency contracts to hedge foreigrccyrrer i s k. The | evel of
to foreign currency risk is regularly reviewed by etighgpolGiesparepevievedto nan c e
ensure they remain appropriate.

Foreign exchange seitivity
The i mpact on the Group’'s financial assets and | issbelol.i ti es from forei

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared based on all material financial assets and liabilities heldlahtieesheet date and does not reflect all the

changes in revenue or expenses that may result from changing exchange rates. The analysis is prepared for the eurdangiveé8 twt these represent

the major foreign currencies in which financial assatd liabilities are denominated. The sensitivities shown act as a reasonable benchmark considering the
movements in currencies over the last two finangiatiods

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

- financid assets and liabilities (including financial instruments) are only considered sensitive to movements in foreign curhamgeeates where they
are not in the functional currency of the entity that holds them.

- translation of results of overseas sitiaries is excluded.

Using the above assumptions, the following tabl e showexchanbecratesenJSi t i vi t
dollar and euro financial assets and liabilities:

2022 2021

Income gail Income gait

£m £m

15% appreciation of the US dollar (2021: 15%) 8.3 3.2
15% appreciation of the euro (2021: 15%) 4.6 -

A depreciation of the stated currencies would have an equal and opposite effect.
There is no impact on equity gains or losses.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk and hence no interest rate sensitivity has been shown.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions aseddlleapasures to independent retailers.

The Group controls credit risk from a treasury perspective by only entering into transactions involving financial instwithentghorised countesparties
with a credit rating atfsuchpositibbns arsrhonitoréd regulaalyn @redib risk oe cashiandishog tertn Heposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

There is no significant concentration of dierisk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers that are internationally
dispersed. Policies are also in place to ensure the wholesale sales of products are made to customers with an apprdpigdéocyeand ecedit limits are
periodically reviewed. Amounts recoverable from customers are reviewed on an ongoing basis and appropriate provision maddenfbdoubtful debts

(note 20). Provision requirements are determined with reference to ageing of invoiced, lustory and other available information. Trade receivables are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as when the customer has been declared insolvent.

Sales made through our own retail stores or our global web stoeesade in cash or with major credit cards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

22. Financial risk factors continued

Capital risk
The capital structure of the Group consists of meptmarfagesits sapitaltosadeguardt e 30
the ability to operate as a going concern and t o ogn debhiofinancetkethusinesss t o

Overdraft facilities will be used to finance the workingita cycle if required.

The Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes to economic conditions and its strategicsobjectigétain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharehgldessback shares and cancel them or issue new shares. The Group uses return
on capital employed to assess capital asset performance.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash balances to meet working capital needs. Cashuftemesds are monitored by short and long term
rolling forecasts both within the | ocal operati ng antrpolitysnvoles grojdctmg cash h e

flows in the major currencies and considers teeel of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring working capital levels and liquidity ratios.

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Gr ceshpwnsbeldwi All ladpayalalds | i
are contractually due within 12 months and therefore the fair values do not differ from their carrying values.

2022 2021
Betweer Betweer More Betweer Between More
Within land: 2and! than Within land: 2and5 than
1 yea years years 5 year: 1yea years years 5 year:
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 22.€ - - - 24.€ - - -
Lease liabilities 9.¢ 9.2 17.2 15.5 9.3 8.7 15.7 16.5
325 9.2 17.2 15.5 33.¢ 8.7 15.7 16.5
Within Within
1 year 1yea
2022 2021
Company £m £m
Trade and other payables 1.9 1.¢
Financial instruments by category
Group Company
Financial assets Financial assets
amortised cos amortised cos
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets as per balance sheet
Trade receivables 8.6 7.8 - -
Accrued income 1.8 1.2 - -
Licensing and other receivables 27.3 13.€ 0.3 0.1
Receivables from group companies - - 8.5 5.8
Loans tagroup companies - - 31.6 3.€
Cash and cash equivalents 71.4 85.2 30.4 20.2
Total 109.1 108.( 70.8 30.C
Group Company
Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
amortised cos amortised cos
202z 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet
Trade payables 9.5 12.1 0.1 0.1
Other payables 4.4 4.4 1.2 0.1
Accruals 8.7 8.1 0.2 1.2
Payables to group companies - - 0.4 0.4
Loans from group companies - - 27.7 -
Lease liabilities 48.€ 47.C - -
Total 71.t 71.€ 29.6 1.¢

Prepayments, deferred income balances and other taxes and social security payables have been exclutiedafsone as they are not financial assets or
liabilities.
The loan due to Games Workshbimited by the Compariyas a repayment date of 1 September 2022 and bears interest at IBEIR +1%. It is expected

that this loan will be renewed, and not repaidtiin 12 months Payables due to group companies by the Company are interest free and immediately
repayable on demand.
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23. Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

202z 2021
Group £m £m
Current 9.2 8.€
Non-current 39.7 38.4
48.€ 47.C
The Group’'s |l easing activity consists of | eases on pityd theseleases relgeto d

retail stores. With the exception ahort-term leases and leases of levalue underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet asaf-tight
asset and a lease liability.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments ficluding insubstance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease paymesthat are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date; and
- lease payments to be made under reaably certain extension options.

Variable lease payments not dependent on an index or a rate (such as turnover rent) are excluded from the measuremksztsef libility and asset.

Leases of retail property generally have a lease term ranging frpearlto 10 years with a break option after no more than 5 years. Leases of other
property, which includes warehouses and offices, generally have a lease term ranging from 2 years to 15 years. Leasetoof @goibment generally
have a lease term raimgg from 1 year to 5 years. Leases of vehicles and IT equipment are generally limited to a lease term of 1 to 3 years.

Amounts recognised in the income statement relating to leases:

52 weeksendec 52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202

£m £m

Interest on lease liabilities 0.8 0.6
Expenses relating to sheigrm leases and lowalue assets 0.8 0.7

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows relating to leases:
52 weeksendec 52 weeksndec

29 May 202 30 May 202
Group £m £m
Totalcash outflow for leases 12.7 11.€

The priorperiod cash outflows have been updated to include values paid out for low value, short term and variable lease payments.
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimeeplsanents as at the balance sheet date were due as follows:

ucti

2022 2021
Betweer Betweer More Betweer Between More
Within land: 2and! than Within land: 2and5 than
1 yeal years years 5 year: 1yea years years 5 yaars
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Lease payments 9.9 9.2 17.2 15 9.2 8.7 15.7 16.5
Finance charges (0.7 (0.5) (1.0 (0.7) (0.7, (0.6 (1.1) (0.8
Net present value 9.2 8.7 16.2 14.€ 8.€ 8.1 14.6 15.7
The Company held no lease liabilities at eitheriodend.
24. Trade and ober payables
Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m
Current
Trade payables 9.5 12.1 0.1 0.1
Other taxes and social security 0. 1.¢c 0.1 -
Other payables 7.8 8.C 1.2 0.1
Accruals 105 10.t 0.2 1.2
Deferred income 4.7 2.C - -
Payables to group companies - - 0.4 0.4
Total trade and other payables 33.E 35.4 2.0 1.6

The fair value of trade and other payables does not materially differ from the book value.

Payables due to group companiesthg Company are interest free and immediately payable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

25. Other noncurrent liabilities

Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m
Accruals 0.€ 0.€ 0.2 0.2
Loans from group companies - - 27.7 -
Total other noncurrent liabilities 0.€ 0.€ 27.¢ 0.2

The fair value of other nenurrent liabilities does not materially differ from the book value.

The loan due to Games Workshdmited from the Conpany has a repayment date of 1 September 2022 and bears interest at USD LIBOR +1%. It is ex
that this loan will be renewed, and not repaid within 12 months.

The carrying amounts of the Gr oucpriestliabilitea areedereominhtedin thedallowipgecyri@riziese s and ¢

202z 2021
£m £m
Sterling 18.€ 17.7
Euro 2.6 10.2
US dollar 10.1 5.5
Other currencies 2.8 2.5
Total trade and other payables and other nezurrent liabilities 34.1 36.C
26. Praisions for other liabilities and charges
Analysis of total provisions:
Group Company
202z 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Current 0.8 0.€ - -
Non-current 1.5 1.7 - 0.1
2.3 2.2 - 0.1
Employe:
benefits Property Tota
Group £m £m £m
At 30 May 202nd 31 May 2021 2.2 - 2.2
Charged(credited)to the income statement:
- Additional provisions 0.1 0.1 0.2
- Unused amounts reversed (0.5 - (0.5
Additional provision charged to riglof-use assets - 0.4 0.4
Utilised 0.1 - (0.1,
At 29 May 2022 1.8 0.5 2.3

The fair value of provisions does not differ from the book value.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a long service incentive scheme under which emplepeggera oneff additional holiday entitlement of two weeks when they reach
10, 20, 30 and 40 years of employment (Veterans scheme). The cost of this benefit is accrued over the period of emplsgthentebapected staff
retention rates and the anticigad employment costs and are utilised once an employee reaches 10, 20, 30 or 40 years of employment.

Property
Provisions are made for property dilapidations where a legal obligation exists, or where the end of the lease commitnmeimeistiand a reliale
estimate of the exit liability can be made.

27. Share capital

Total called u

share capite

Number of Called u Share and shar

shares share capite premium premiurr

(thousands) £m £m £m

At 31 May 2020 32,675 1.€ 13.1 14.7
Shares issuednder employee sharesave scheme 101 - 1.4 1.4
At 30 May 2021 32,776 1.€ 14.5 16.1
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 64 - 1.8 1.€
At 29 May 2022 32,840 1.€ 16.2 17.¢

During theperiod 63,636 ordinary shares were issued (20211,271). The total authorised number of shares is 42,000,000 shares (2021: 42,000,000 shares)
with a par value of 5p per share (2021: 5p per share). All issued shares are fully paid.
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28. Other reserves

2022 2021
Capita Capita
redemption  Translatior Other redemptior Translatiol Other

reserve reserve reserve Total reserve reserve reserve Tota
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Beginning operiod 0.1 3.C (1.0, 21 0.1 6.1 (1.0 5.2
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - 0.8 - 0.8 (3.1 - (3.1
End ofperiod 0.1 3.8 (1.0 2.9 0.1 3.C (1.0 2.1

The other reserveelatestoabonusissueo t he previ ous hol der s creétedorhfletati@ho mpany’ s

As at 29 May 2022, the 6SeovewpaafiDyirh @02t A0plmt al redempti on r

29. Notes to theash flow statement

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash from operating activities

ordinary

Group Company
202z 2021 202z 2021
£m £m £m £m
Profit before taxatn 156.5 150.¢ (3.5 3.3
Finance income (0.2 0.2 - -
Finance costs 0.8 1.C - -
Operating profit/(loss) 157.1 151.5 3.5 3.3
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11.7 9.2 - -
Depreciation of righbf-use assts 11.4 11.C - -
Net impairment charge of intangible assets 1.2 0.4 - -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets (see below) 0.3 0.1 - -
Amortisation of capitalised development costs 10.1 4.€ - -
Amortisation of other intangibles 1.€ 1.2 - -
Sharebased payments 1.€ 1.z - -
Dividend income from investments in subsidiary undertakings - - 105.¢ 81.:
Changes in working capital:
- Increase in inventories (12.2] (6.2 - -
- Increase in trade and other receivables (21.5) (10.8 (29.9) (0.2
- (Decrease)hcrease in trade and other payables (2.2 3.1 294 1.2
- Decrease in provisions - (0.9 (0.1 -
Net cash from operating activities 1592 164.¢ 101.¢ 79.1
The Group disposed of intangible assets with net book amount of £0.3m.:(202m). There were no proceeds on disposal in eiferiod and hencea
loss on disposal equivalent to the net book value was recorded.
30. Analysis of net funds
202z 2021
Group £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 714 85.2
Lease liabilities (48.9) (47.0)
Net funds 22.E 38.2
2022 2021
Company £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 304 20.2
Net funds 30.4 20.2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

30. Analysis of net fundsontinued
Liabilities fron

financingactivities Cash at bar Tota
Group £m £m £m
Net funds as at 31 May 2020 and 1 June®02 (37.0 52.¢ 15.¢
Cash flows 10.C 32.¢ 42.9
Acquisition- leases (22.4 - (22.4
Interest expense (0.9 - 0.9
Interest payments 0.9 - 0.8
Remeasurement adjustemts 0.1 - 0.1
Foreign exchange movement 2.3 (0.6) 1.7
Net funds as at 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2021 47.0 85.2 38.2
Cash flows 11.1 (14.2 (3.
Acquisition-leases (11.4 - 11.4
Interest expense (0.8 - (0.8
Interest payments 0.€ - 0.8
Foreign exchange movement (1.6 0.4 12)
At 29 May 2022 (48.9 71.4 22.F

The Company holds no lease liabilities and had no cash flows arising from financing activities duripgedter
31. Commitments

Capital commitments
Capital expenditur contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 23 2.8
Intangible assets 2.0 0.7

Leases

The Group leases various retail stores, offices, warehouses and esptipmder noncancellable lease arrangements. The liabilities for these leases are
recorded on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group nebtdraatingtleasesnt r ol
where the Group has eated into an obligation but does not yet have control of the underlying asset. The future lease payments to which the Group i

commi tted over the expected | ease term, but not recorded on the Group

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Within 1 year - -
Between 1 and 5 years inclusive - 0.2
In over 5 years - -

- 0.2

The Company had no capital commitments or commitments to leases at pithierd end.
Inventory purchase commitments

202z 2021
Group £m £m
Finished goods 1.8 2.¢
Components 2.0 1.C
Raw materials 2.9 0.€

The Company had no inventory purchase commitments at efieeod end.

Pension arrangements
The Group and Company operate defined contribution schemes. Commitments in respect of pensiodsidee within prepayments and accruals.

80 Games Workshop Group PLC



32. Contingencies
The Company provides indemnities to third parties iperty, undes gpraretcialeefmscont r
in the normal course of business.

The Company has also guaranteed the bank overdrafts of certain Group undertakings. There were no amounts outstandirgsaratesrigements at
either periodend.

For the52 weeksnded 29 May 2022, the subsidiary companies listed below are exempt fremeguirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the
audit of individual financial statements by virtue of section 479A. As a result, the Company guarantees all outstariieg téatvhich the subsidiary
companies are subject.

Country of incorporatio

Name of undertakig or registratior Company registration numb
Games Workshop Limited England and Wal 146709:
Games Workshop International Limited England and Wal 292433(
Games Workshop US Limited England and Wal 746290!
Games Wgrkshop US (Holdings) Limited England and Wal 442881
Games Workshop Step One Limited England and Wal 1244825:

The Group has provided a guarantee of £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) to the Canada Revenue Agency in relation teelidambrsales tax retas of Games
Workshop Limited.

33. Related party transactions
During theperiodthe Company provided management and similar services to Games Workshop Limited, a subsidiary undertaking.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, whickelated parties, have been eliminated on consolidation for the Group.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

2022 2021
Subsidiary Nature of transaction £m £m
Games Workshop Limited Recharges 0.4 0.2
Dividend receied 105.C 78.C
Games Workshop International Limited Dividend received 0.9 3.2

Receivables/(payables) outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:
Amount owed by subsidiari Amount owed to subsidiarit
202z 2021 202z 2021
Subsidiary £m £m £m £m
Games Workshop Limited 8.2 5.7 (0.3 0.3
Games Workshop Retail Inc. 0.2 0.1 - -
Games Workshop Good Hobby (Shanghai) Commercial Co. Ltd 0.1 - - -
Games Workshop Deutschland GmbH - - (0.1 (0.1,
8.5 5.€ (0.4 0.4

Non-current loans outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

Amount owed by subsidiari Amount owed to subsidiarit
202z 2021 2022 2021
Subsidiary £m £m £m £m
Games Workshop Limited 39 3.¢ 27.7 -
Games Workshop Retail Inc. 27.1 - - -
Games Workshop Interactive Limited 6.8 6.8 - -
Less provision for impairment (6.8 (6.8 - -
31.€ 3.¢ (27.7 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

34. Shardased payments

Options to acquire share capital ile Group have been granted to eligible employees who enter irdtagesave contract. Participation in tskaresave
scheme is offered to all employees of the Group who have been employed for a continuous period determined by the boattieldhaersare contract,
participating employeeare granted a share option, giving the future right to purchase shares iGdhgpanyat a15%20% discount on thehareprice at

the time of the invitation Employeesave a regular sum each month up to a maximum 60f%r month for three years, or for two years for the US. At the
end of this periodpn completion of the contract, employees immediately have six months to exercise their options.

Share options outstanding at ttperiodend date have the following expidate and exercise prices:

Share options outstandinc

202z 2021
Scheme Grant date Expiry date Exercise price No. No.
2017 SchemeRest of world 27 Sept 2017 1 May 2021 £13.08 - 27¢E
2018 SchemeRest of world 26 Sept 2018 1 May 2022 £28.59 - 58,08¢
2018 SchemeFrance 26 Sept 2018 1 May 2022 £31.77 - 52¢
2019 SchemeRest of world 25 Sept 2019 1 May 2023 £34.38 74,40¢ 78,17:
2019 SchemeFrance 25 Sept 2019 1 May 2023 £35.87 521 612
2019 SchemeUSA 1 Oct 2019 1 Oct 2021 £39.87 - 3,85¢
2020 SchemeRest of world 23 Sept 2020 1 May 2024 £71.43 47,48 53,50z
2020 SchemeFrance 23 Sept 2020 1 May 2024 £76.99 46E 57C
2020 SchemeUSA 1 Oct 2020 1 Oct 2022 £85.65 2,15¢€ 2,41¢
2021 SchemeRest of world 20 Sept 2021 1 May 2025 £95.07 38,29¢ -
2021 SchemeFrance 20 Sept 2021 1 May 2025 £93.46 421 -
2021 SchemeUSA 1 Oct 2021 1 Oct 2023 £87.98 2,822 -
166,57( 198,021

The following table summarises the movementstiaresave options during theeriod:

2022 2021

Weightec Weightec
average exercis average exercis
No. of options price No. of option: price
Outstanding at beginning of thgeriod 198,02: £43.5] 247,16t £24.6¢
Granted 49,11¢ £94.6( 58,661 £72.0¢
Exercised (63,636 £29.4¢ (101,271 £14.0(
Forfeited (16,81) £74.97 (6,535 £40.8¢
Outstanding at end ofhe period 166,57( £60.7¢ 198,02: £43.5
Exercisable at end dahe period - - 27¢ £13.0¢

All options granted will be equity settled.

The weighted average market price of Games Workshop Group PLC ahifueslate of exercise @haresavescheme options during thperiodwas £95.18
(2021: £98.17).

The assessed fair values at grant date of options granted duringettied were as follows:

Scheme

2021 SchemeRest of world £33.47
2021 Schem- France £34.1:
2021 SchemeUSA £27.4¢

The fair value at grant date is independently determined using an adjusted form of theSlacles model that takes into account the exercise price, the
term of the option, the share price at grantt@aand expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, and tiredshkterest
rate for the term of the option.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

Restatel Restatel Restater Restater

2022 2021 202C 201¢ 201¢

£m £m £m £m £m

Core revaue 386.¢ 353.2 269.7 256.¢ 221.C
Licensing revenue 28.C 16.2 16.€ 11.2 9.€
Revenue 414.¢ 369.5 286.5 267.¢ 230.¢
Operating profit 157.1 151.% 90.C 81.z 74.2
Finance income 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1
Finance costs (0.8 (1.0 (0.7, - (0.1
Profit before taxation 156.5 150.¢ 89.4 81.c 74.c
Income tax expense (28.1 (28.9 (18.1, (15.5 (14.8
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 128./ 122.C 71.2 65.€ 59.E
Basic earnings per ordinary share (pence per share) 391.2 3727 218.% 202.¢ 184.:

Comparative financial information for revenue and gross profit has been restated for the reclassificéitensifig revenueggreviously includeas royalties
receivablein other operating income.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual general meting 21 September 2022
Announcement of half yely report January 2023
Financiaperiodend 28 May 2023
Announcement of final results July 2023
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GLOSSARY

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

Closest equivalent IFRS

APM definitions measure Reonciliation to closest IFRS measure where applicable

Core revenue Revenue Core revene is reconciled to revenue iote 4 to the financial statements.
Direct sales made of our core products to

external customer s,

network of retail stores, independent
retailers and online through the global wek
stores

Coregrossprofit Grosgprofit
Coregrossprofit is corerevenue less all
related cost of sales

Coregrossprofit is reconciled t@rossprofit in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Core operating expenses Operating expenses
Operating expenses relating to the core

business of selling directly to external

customers

Core operating expenses are reconciled to operating expensesérd to the
financial statements.

Core operating profit Operating profit
Cae operating profit is core revenue less ¢

related cost of sales and operating

expenses

Core operating profit is reconciled to operating profiniote 4 to the financial
statements.

Licensing revenue Revenue
Income relating to royalties eardefrom
third party licensees

Licensing revenue is reconciled to revenuadte 4 to the financial
statements.

Licensinggrossprofit Grosgprofit
Licensinggrossprofit islicensing revenue
less ay related cost of sales

Licensingyrossprofit is reconciled tayrossprofit in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Licensing operating expenses Operating expenses Licensing operating expenses are reconciled to operating expenseteid to
Operating expenses relating to thieensing the financial statements.

segments

Licensing operating profit Operating profit Licensing operating profit is reconciled to operating profidte 4 to the

Licensing operating profit is licensing
revenue less all related cost of sales and
operating expenses

financialstatements.

Revenue at constant currency Revenue
Revenue for the current and prior period
converted at a constant exchange rate.

This is calculated by converting underlying revenue amounts atdacancy
value for both the current and prior period #te prior period average
exchange rate.

Operating profit at constant currency Operating profit
Operating profit for the current and prior

periodconverted at a constant exchange

rate.

This is calculated by converting underlying operating profit amouritscat
currencyvalue for both the current and prigreriod at the priorperiod
average exchange rate.

Core average capital employed None
This is a measure of the capital employed

the core business averaged over a 12

month period

This value is calculed by taking monthly net assets and adjusting for any
cash, borrowings, licensing receivables, exceptional provisions, taxation ai
dividends, for each of the 12 months. These are then added together and
divided by 12 to give the core average capital empth

Return on capital employed (ROCE) None
Measure of the profit relative to the

amount of capital employed. The higher th
ROCREhe greater the return for the capital

Return is calculated by dividing the core operating profit by the core geera
capital employed.

employed

Cash generatedpre dividends paid Net increase/(decrease) Net increase in caspre dividends paid can be calculatied taking the net
Movement in cash in thperiodbefore any in cash and cash increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and adding back the
payments of dividends are taken into equivalents dividends which have been paid in theriod.

accour

Cash generated from core activities Net cashgenerated from  This is calculated kpking the net cash generated from operating activities i
Net @ash generated from operating operating activities the cash flowof £121.5 million (2021: £132.7 millickessthe cash received in

activities less the licensing cash received
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual gener al maMdlowiRoagl o f Ga me
Lenton,Nottingham, NG7 W/§ at 10.00 am o021 September 2022 for the following puspes:

Ordinary business
As ordinary business to consider and, if thought fit, to passfollowing resolutions 1 to 18s ordinary resolutions:

Resolution 1

To receive the Company's annual financial statements foy#aeended 29 May 2022 together witthe directors' report, the
remuneration report and the independent auditors’ reprepot on th
and the directors’ report.

Resolution 2

To reelect K D Rountree as a director.

Resolution3
To reelect R F Tongue as a director.

Resolution 4
Toreel ect E O Donnel!l as a director.

Resolution 5
To reelect J R A Brewis as a director.

Resolution 6
To reelect K E Marsh as a director.

Resolution 7
To electR Cassoas a director.

Resolution8
Tore-appoint KPMG.LPas independent auditors to hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which financial
statements are laid by the Company.

Resolution 9
To authorise the directors to fix the auditors

)

remunerati on.

Resolution10
To approve the remuneration report (excl u@tod4sopforthdyearedded 26 Blayor s’ r
2022.

Special business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, of which resolufievilllbe proposed as an ordinary resolution and
resolutions 2 and 13 will be proposed as special resolutions.

Resolution 1L

That the directors of the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with section 551 of the Cdwip20(5

the “Act’') to exercise all the powers of the Companylamauntefl | ot
£541,863provided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, exgidddaeember 2@3 or, if earlier,

the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company save that the Company may, before such expiry, make offermentagre
which would or might require Relevant Securities to be allotted and the directors may allot Relevaniticdeicupursuance of such offer

or agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired. This resolution revokes andsrafplace
unexercised authorities previously granted to the directors to allot Relevant Securiti@gthaut prejudice to any allotment of shares or

grant of rights already made, offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.

Relevant Securities means: (i) shares in the Company other than shares allotted pursuant to an employee shar@satefined by
section 1166 of the Act), a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constitués@uat Becurity or

a right to convert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right iteslitaéed a Relevant Security; (ii) any right to
subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Company other than rights to subscribe for or convert aryisecsahares
allotted pursuant to an employee share scheme (as defined by set1i6é of the Act). References to the allotment of Relevant Securities
in this resolution include the grant of such rights.
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Resolution 2

That subject to the passing of resolution 11 above, the directors of the Company be given the general power pusgaiitns 570 to

573 of the Companies Act 2006 (the *“Act’) to all otursoanttothek e of f
authority conferred by resolution 11 above or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as if §&dt{ahof the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

€)) the allotment of equity securities in connection fwith a ri(
equity securities open faacceptance for a period fixed by the directors to holders of equity securities on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion (as nearly as may be) to their respective holdings of such securities or in accordance with
rights attached thereto but subft to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors consider necessary or expedient
in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitlements or any legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory lyoar any stock exchange in any territory; and
(b) the allotment of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount af 8L

The power granted by this resolution will expire 2mDecember 202 or, if earlier, the conclusion of the Company's next anmygmeral

meeting (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company prior to or on such date) save that the Company may, befgr#ysuch ex

make offers or agreements which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry ane:tharsimay allot

equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this resoluégpites This
resolution revokes and replaces all unexercised powers previously granted to the directors &maity securities as if either section

89(1) of the Companies Act 1985 or section 561(1) of the Act did not apply but without prejudice to any allotment ofeequities

already made or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities. For the purposest hi s resol ution the expre
references to ‘allotment of equity securities’ respectively haea

Resolution B

That the Company be and is hereby granted general and unconditauthority for the purposes of section 701 of the Companies Act
2006 (the *“Act’) to make market purchases (within ttheeapitakohni ng
the Company (‘ or di nardjyswhnanneras the dicectorsamaycfiom time to tmse detenmine provided that:

(a) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Compa2@ or on
December 202 whichever is the earlier;

(b) the maximum agregate number of ordinary shares that may be purchased &3)20

(c) the minimum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share is 5p;

(d) the maximum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share is the highendmount equal to 105
per cent of the average market value of an ordinary share in the Company for the five business days prior to the day on which
the purchase is made; and (ii) the value of an ordinary share calculated on the basis of the highqrimftiquoted for: (a)
the |l ast independent trade of; and (b) the highest current
on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out; and

(e) the Company may make a contract to purchasermadi shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of
such authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of
ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract.

Byorder of the board

R Matthews

Company secretary

25July 202Registered office:

Willow Road, Lenton

Nottingham

NG7 2WS

Registered in England and Wales under number 2670969
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Notes

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Only those members registered on the Company's register of members gp®.8® 1 September 202 or, if this meeting is adjourned, at

6.30pm on the day two days prior to the adjourned meeting, shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

If you are a member of the Company at the time set out in note 1 above, you dtieend appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your rights to
attend, speak and vote at the meeting and you should have received a proxy form with this document. You can only appagintsing the
procedures set out in these notes and the notegte proxy form.

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent you. Details of how to lagpbiair tof the
meeting or another person as your proxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes to thef@moxyf you wish your proxy to speak on your
behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your own choice of proxy (not the chair) and give your instructions diréty t

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed toigxeights attached to different shares. You may not appoint more
than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share. Details of how to appoint more than one proxy are set qudtesttwethe proxy

form.

The notes to the proxy form explain hdwdirect your proxy to vote on each resolution or withhold their vote. A vote withheld is not a vote in law,
which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution. If no votingandggtven, your roxy

will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote (or abstain from voting) as he or shft thim&ktion to any other
matter which is put before the meeting.

To appoint a proxy using the proxy form, the form mustbmpleted and signed and sent or delivered to the Company's regist@rst Bspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA so as to be received no later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holdimggtheérmeetwer of
attorney or any other authrity under which the proxy form is signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authority) must be included with the
proxy form. In the case of a member which is a company, the proxy form must be executed under its common seal or sigbetaifbyt an

officer of the Company or an attorney for the Company.

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointmeitteslibgnthe most
senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is deté@med by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company's register of
members in respect of the joint holding (the firstmed being the most senior).

To change your proxy instructions simply submit a new proxy appointment ugngethods set out above. The eoff time for receipt of proxy
appointments (see above) also applies in relation to amended instructions; any amended proxy appointment received &fevaheautoff

time will be disregarded. If you submit more thaneovalid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the latest time for the receipt
of proxies will take precedence.

In order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice cleagnpstatitention to
revoke your proxy appointment to the Company's registra€y, & Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA. In the case of a member which
is a company, the revocation notice must be executed under its common seal or signed dralfpen officer of the Company or an attorney for
the Company. Any power of attorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly cepyfiefisteh power or
authority) must be included with the revocation notice €Tievocation notice must be received by the Company's registr@satFAspect House,
Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA no later than the time fixed for holding the meeting. If you attempt to revoke your piuxyeayput the
revocation is received aftehe time specified then, subject to the paragraph directly below, your proxy appointment will remain valid.
Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person.

A corporation which is a member can appoint onemmre corporate representatives who may exercise, on its behalf, all its powers as a member
provided that no more than one corporate representative exercises powers over the same share.

As at 2 July 202 (being the last practical date prior to the publiat of this notice), the Company's issued share capital compris&€&d3204
ordinary shares of 5 pence each. Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Compangfarel,the total
number of voting rights in the Cquany as at 2 July 202 is 32840,204 The website referred to in not21 will include information on the number
of shares and voting rights.

If you are a person who has been nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy informasig¢a hgrhinated Person') you
may have a right under an agreement between you and the member of the Company who has nominated you (a '‘Relevant Mémaber') to
information rights to be appointed or to have someone else appointed as a proxy for the mégyiog.either do not have such a right or if you
have such a right but do not wish to exercise it, you may have a right under an agreement between you and the Relevantdgwveber
instructions to the Relevant Member as to the exercise of voting rigfdar main point of contact in terms of your investment in the Company
remains the Relevant Member (or, perhaps, your custodian or broker) and you should continue to contact them (and not #eyCagparding

any changes or queries relating to your perabdetails and your interest in the Company (including any administrative matters). The only
exception to this is where the Company expressly requests a response from you.

You may not use any electronic address provided either in this notice of annuabgereeting or any related documents (including the proxy
form), to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

Under section 338 of the Companies Act 2006, a member or members meeting the qualification criterizasetobe 18 below, may, subject to
conditions, require the Company to give to members notice of a resolution which may properly be moved and is intendedvedaetrthat
meeting. The conditions are that: (a) the resolution must not, if passed, beatiet (whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or
the Company’s constitution or otherwise); (b) the r)ehemduestmapbe must
in hard copy form or in electronic form (seete 19 below), must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given by either setting out the
resolution in full or, if supporting a resolution sent by another member, clearly identifying the resolution which isuggpoged, must be
authenticatd by the person or persons making it (see note 19 below); and must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeke before
meeting to which the request relates.

Under section 338A of the Companies Act 2006, a member or members meeting the qialificééria set out at note 18 below, may, subject to
conditions, require the Company to include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting a matter (other than a propokeirg which may
properly be included in the business (a matter of buss)eThe conditions are that: (a) the matter of business must not be defamatory of any
person, frivolous or vexatious, (b) the request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 19 below), rifysttidenatter of
business by setting it aun full or, if supporting a statement sent by another member, clearly identify the matter of business which is being
supported, must be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the pgressmnamalag it
(see note 19 below) and must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the meeting to which the request relate
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Notes continued

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Pursuant to Chapter 5 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 (sections 527 to 531), where requestemithyeaor members meeting the

qualification criteria set out at note 18 below, the Company must publish on its website, a statement setting out anythratitech members

propose to raise at the meeting rtedtaga mewrgt & o( itrheel wdiidi g tolfe taed iCtoarpsa’'n:
audit) that are to be laid before the meeting. Where the Company is required to publish such a statement on its websjteat raquire the

members making the request to pay any experigearred by the Company in complying with the request, it must forward the statement to the
Company’s auditors no | ater than the time the statemededltwihaspambde ava
of the business oftte meeting. The request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 19 below), either set out the stateaiient in f

or if supporting a statement sent by another member, clearly identify the statement which is being supported, must beicatibebly the person

or persons making it (see note 19 below), and be received by the Company at least one week before the meeting.

In order to be able to exercise the members’ r i ghtnot®5);amafterofr e ci r cul
business to be dealt with at the meeting (see note 16) or the Company to publish audit concerns (see note 17), the egleesinnust be made

by a member or members having a right to vote at the meeting and holding at least %lafdting rights of the Company, or at least 100

members having a right to vote at the meeting and holding, on average, at least £100 of paid up share capital. For imfonnvatiag rights,

including the total number of voting rights, see note 12 aband the website referred to in note 21.

Where a member or members wishes to request the Company to circulate a resolution to be proposed at the meeting (seeinotedksq

matter of business to be dealt with at the meeting (see note 16) or publistit concerns (see note 17) such request must be made in accordance

with one of the following ways: (a) a hard copy request which is signed by you, which states your full name and addseenatulRoss

Matthews, Games Workshop Group PLC, Willow Rbexton, Nottingham NG7 2WS; or (b) a request which states your full name and address, and

is sent to ross.matthews@gwplc.com:maPl ease state ‘' AGM in the subj e
Under section 319A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company must answerestipn you ask relating to the business being dealt with at the

meeting unless answering the question would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disciasurédential

information, the answer has already been given omedosite in the form of an answer to a question or it is undesirable in the interests of the

Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered.

Information regarding the meeting, including the information required by section 311AedEtdmpanies Act 2006, is available from
http://investor.gamesworkshop.com.

The following documents will be available for inspection for at least 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the nf@etiagies of the

service contracts of executive ditecs of the Company and (b) copies of the service agreements of the independent directors of the Company.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service maiisiagthiey

procedures described in the CREST Manual on the Euroclear website (www.euroclear.com). CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST spunseavimevoti

provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf. In order for a proxy appointment made byoff@REST to be valid,

the appropriate CREST message (a ‘' CREST Pr ogvwith EunosldarUK & trelandrLimited'snust b e
(“EUl ") specifications and must contain the infor marhessage, regeadpssiof ed f o
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendmenttte instruction given to a previously appointed proxy, must (in order to be

valid) be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer's agent (ID RA19) by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxyempdpecified in the

notice of meeting. For this ppose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the

CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer's agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the cribeddnyp@RET. The

Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of theddnSedifitizes

Regulations 2001. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service pravicetes thaolEU| does not make

available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will theréfaeatjmpiyto the

input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST roenakeened to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal

member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or votig\sderiss

take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensateatinessage is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this

connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, ito paoseutactions of

the CREST Manualrezerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

As an alternative to completing a hard copy proxy form, a shareholder can appoint a proxy or proxies electronicallydy visiti

www.sharevote.co.uk. Shareholders will need their voting Ik Bsand shareholder reference number (this is the series of numbers printed under

their name on the proxy form). Alternatively, if a shareholder has already registered@ittsE onl i ne port foli o service, S
proxy form at www.shaview.co.uk. Full instructions are given on both websites. To be valid, your proxy appointment(s) and instructions should

reach B) no later than 48 hours before the time fixed to hold the meeting. Any electronic communication sent by a shareholderaim plaeayCor

the registrar that is found to contain a computer virus will not be accepted.

If you are an institutional investor you may be able to appoint a proxy electronically via the Proxymity platform, awhicksss been agreed by

the Company and g@oved by EQ. For further information regarding Proxymity, please gavi@.proxymity.ia Your proxy must be lodged no

later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting in order to be considered Bafidre you can appoint a proxy via this process

you wi || need to have agreed to Proxymity’'s associ aybuevd betbeundbg and c o
them and they will govern the electronic appointment of yquoxy.
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Explanatory notes to the notice of annual general meeting

Resolution 1- Financial statements
This is a standard resolution common to all annual general meetings.

Resolutions 2 to 7 Election and reelection of directors

The following direairs will stand foelectionorre-e | ect i on in accordance with the UK Corporate Gov.
association:

- K D Rountree

- R F Tongue

- E O Donnell
- J R A Brewis

- K E Marsh

- R Casson

Each of the above directors has indicated thvifingness to offer themselves for-aection. The board, having considered the mix of skills, knowledge and
experience of the directors confirms that each director continues to perform their duties effectively, showing integfitiglmdhical standats whilst
maintaining sound, independent judgement in respect of all decisions taken at board level.

Biographical details for each of the directors can be found on pa@ead20 of the 202 annual report.

Resolutions 8 and 9Re-appointment of auditold | YR | dzZRAG2NARQ NBYdzy SN} A2y

The Company is required to appoint an auditor at each meeting at which financial statements are preserk&MaBd.LRave indicated their willingness
to continue in office. Accordingly, resolutions 8 and 9, subject to theayap of the shareholders of the Company-apointsKkPMGLLP as auditors of the
Company and authorises the directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

Resolution 105 A NBOG2NBRQ NBYdzy SNI A2y
Shareholders will be requested to approvethe@d c t or s’ remuneration report (excludi nygarended29di r e c !
May 2022.

Resoluton -5 ANBOG2NARQ LIR26SNI G2 Fft20 NBtSOIyld aSOdaNRi(GASa
Generally, the directors may only allot shares in the Company (or gants fio subscribe for, or to convert any security into, shares in the Company) if they
have been authorised to do so by shareholders.

In line with guidance issued by the Investment Association, if passed, resolution 11 will authorise the directorsidiadiry shares in the Company (and
to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, ordinary shares in the Company) in connection withiasighonly up to an aggregate
nominalamount of£541,863(as reduced by the aggregate novai amount of any shares allotted or rights granted under resolutin This amount
(before any reduction) represents approximately 33% of the issued ordinary share capital of the CompariyJatya2@2, being the last practicable date
before the pullication of this document. The directors intend to follow emerging best practice as regards the use of this authority, includithg as to
requirement for directors to stand for relection.

If given, this authority will expire at the conclusionof thetGpany’' s next annual general meeting or 15 mon
(whichever is earlier). It is the directors’ intention to renew the a

The directors have no current intention to exercise either of the autiesrsought under resolution 11. However, the directors consider that it is in the best
interests of the Company to have the authorities available so that they have the maximum flexibility permitted by insfishiameholder guidelines to

allot sharesor grant rights without the need for a general meeting should they determine that it is appropriate to do so to respondkéd deelopments

or to take advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

Resolution 12 Disapplication of preemption rights on equity issues for cash

Resolution 12, if passed, would enable the directors to allot shares for cash on a remjpiige basis in limited circumstances. It is proposed to authorise

the directors to issue sharesrfoash up to an aggregate nominahaunt of£82,101( whi ch r epresents approxi mately 5%
capital as at 2 July 202), withouthaving to first offer them to shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings. In addition, in accordance with normal
practice, theresolution would enable the board to deal with overseas shareholders and fractional entitlements as it thinks fit in & abany rights

issue or open offer.

p i r el maeting brii®moatlosfram the passing of thé resoldtien Co mp any
e

I f given, this authority will ex r
(whichever is earlier). It is th directors’ intention to renew this
There are no present plans to exercise this authority.

Resolution B - Market purchase of own shares

A canpany may only purchase its own shares by either amafifket purchase, in pursuance of a contract approved in advance in accordance with section
694 of the Act or by a market purchase, aut hoasie’ed s nonae cnoar ddea ntcher owi gt hh
invest ment exchange’. Although the Act only requi r éusont® bepassedasmapecal r es o
resolution (the ABI also recommend that the resolution dtidue passed as a special resolution). This resolution 13 authorises market purchases of the
Company’s own shares to be made but only within the dsthermaximuminomber ofspeci
shares purchsed under this authority must not exceed 84020ordinary shares. The resolution also states the maximum price which may be paid being 5p
per ordinary shares and the maximum price betimg higher of: (i) an amount equal to 105 per cent of the averageketaalue of an ordinary share in the
Company for the five business days prior to the day on which the purchase is made; and (ii) the value of an ordinafgsh#ed ca the basis of the

higher of the price quoted for: (a) the last independenttradé ; and (b) the highest current independent
shares on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out.

As recommended by the Investment Association the Company renews this authority on an annual kadissatneial general meeting.
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The directors have no current intention of exerci si nijonlydxerdgse thimauthooty i t y
to make such a purchase in the market if the directors consideimttie best interests of the shareholders generally to do so.

The Company is permitted to hold shares it has purchased in treasury, as an alternative to cancelling them. Sharesaseld/imtry subsequently be

cancelled, sold forcashorusedtosatiy opti ons exercised under any of the Company’s share
to receive any dividend or dividend equivalent (apart from any issue of bonus shares) and have no voting rights. Trelditiesteits appropriate for

the Company to have the option to hold its own shares in treasury if, at a future date, the directors exercise this adtherityectors will have regard to

investor group guidelines which may be in force at the time of any such gsecholding or resale of shares held in treasury.

, this authority will expire at the concl usdingoftherésolititne Company

I f i ven
(whichever is earl i enorenewlths adtheritytedclkeyeat.i r ect ors’ i ntention
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